
 
 

 

GOLDSBORO	CITY	COUNCIL		
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA		
MONDAY,	SEPTEMBER	23,	2019		
 

(Please	turn	off,	or	silence,	all	cellphones	upon	entering	the	Council	Chambers)	
	
I. ADOPTION	OF	THE	AGENDA 

 

II. WORK	SESSION–5:00	P.M.	–	CITY	HALL	ADDITION,	200	N.	CENTER	ST.,	ROOM	206 
OLD	BUSINESS	
a. City/County Property Discussion (City Attorney) 
b. HV Brown Restroom Project (Engineering)  
 

NEW	BUSINESS	
c. Jaylen Suggs (Juju) Remembrance Discussion  
 

III. CALL	TO	ORDER	–	7:00	P.M.	–	COUNCIL	CHAMBERS,	214	N.	CENTER	ST. 
Invocation (Archbishop Anthony Slater, Tehillah Church Ministries)  
Pledge of Allegiance  

 

IV. ROLL	CALL 
 

V. APPROVAL	OF	MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of July 15, 2019 

 

VI. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Claude Jackson as an 

Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 18 Years 
C. Veterans Stand Down Day Proclamation  
D. Kappa Epsilon Psi Military Sorority, Inc. Goldsboro Sigma Chapter Month Proclamation 

 
VII. PUBLIC	HEARINGS (*Motion/Second) 

E. CU-8-19 Anderson Brewing – (Microbrewery w/ABC) The property is located on the 
northeast corner of W. Pine Street and S. George Street (Planning) 

F. CU-9-19 Goldsboro Brew Works, LLC – The property is located on the southwest corner of 
W. Chestnut Street and S. James Street (Planning) 

G. CU-10-19 Regina Exum - North side of Royall Avenue between Jefferson Street and 
Teakwood Drive (Adult Day Care) (Planning) 

H. CU-11-19 Louis Antonio Jimenez-East side of S. NC 111 Hwy between Mollie Drive and 
Sheridan Forest Road (Planning) 

I. Z-16-19 KG Plaza, LLC – East side of Eleventh Street between Norwood Avenue and 
Englewood Drive (Planning) 

J. Z-17-19 KG Plaza, LLC – East side of Eleventh Street between Norwood Avenue and 
Englewood Drive (Planning) 

K. Z-18-19 KG Plaza, LLC – West side of Eleventh Street between Norwood Avenue and 
Englewood Drive (Planning) 

PLANNING	COMMISSION	EXCUSED 
 
 



 

 

VIII. PUBLIC	COMMENT	PERIOD	(TIME	LIMIT	OF	3	MINUTES	PER	SPEAKER) 
 

IX. CONSENT	AGENDA	ITEMS (*Motion/Second‐‐Roll	Call) 
L. Amending Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance 

Grant (JAG) (P3102) (Finance)  
M. Sole Source Vendor Resolution for Barrier Solutions (Finance) 
N. Correction of stated unit of measurement for the FY18-19 and FY19-20 water rates 

(Finance)  
O. Installment financing for Golf Turf Equipment with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC (Finance)  
P. Bid Award to Stantec for Comprehensive Utility Rate Study (Public Utilities)  
Q. Approve Compost Bulk Pricing (Public Utilities) 
R. Amendment to Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances Title III Administration, Chapter 33: Police 

and Fire Department (Fire)  
S. US Dept. of Justice: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Formula 

Program:  Local Solicitation (Police) 
T. Fall Fest at the First Church – Temporary Street Closing Request (Police) 
U. Thriller Night – Temporary Street Closing Request (Police) 
V. Walk to De-feet Dementia – Temporary Street Closing Request (Police) 
W. Goldsboro Christmas Parade – Temporary Street Closing Request (Police)  
X. Victorian Mourning Practices – Temporary Street Closing Request (Police) 
Y. Downtown Lights Up! - Temporary Street Closing Request (Police)  
Z. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Hire Outside Legal Counsel for and Limited 

Authority to Resolve Liability Claims (City Attorney)   
AA. Departmental Monthly Reports  

 

X. ITEMS	REQUIRING	INDIVIDUAL	ACTION (*Motion/Second) 
 

XI. CITY	MANAGER’S	REPORT 
 

XII. MAYOR	AND	COUNCILMEMBERS’	REPORTS	AND	RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

XIII. CLOSED	SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



1 

MINUTES OF MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
JULY 15, 2019 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work 
Session in the Large Conference Room, City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 
p.m. on July 15, 2019 with attendance as follows: 

Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Antonio Williams  
Councilmember Mark Stevens 
Councilmember Bevan Foster (arrived at 5:30 p.m.) 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 
Ron Lawrence, Attorney 
Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Randy Guthrie, Assistant City Manager  
Melissa Capps, City Clerk 
LaToya Henry, Public Information Officer  
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager  
Jennifer Collins, Planning Director 
Scott Williams, IT Director 
Felicia Brown, Interim P&R Director  
Mike Wagner, Deputy Public Works Director – Utilities 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director  
Joe Dixon, Fire Chief  
Erin Fonseca, Marketing & Events Manager 
Bernadette Dove, HR Director 
Mark Blizzard, Occupational Health Nurse 
Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director  
Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
Marty Anderson, City Engineer 
Allen Anderson, Chief Building Inspector  
Scott Satterfield, Business & Property Development Specialist 
Ken Conners, News Director-Curtis Media Group East 
Eddie Fitzgerald, News Argus Reporter 
Keyon Carter, Citizen 
Lonnie Casey, Citizen 
Bobby Mathis, Citizen 
Della Mathis, Citizen 
Carl Martin, Citizen 
Yvonnia Moore, Citizen  
Alicia Pierce, Citizen 
Andrew Jernigan, Citizen (arrived at 5:25 p.m.) 

Call to Order.  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 5:00 p.m. 

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilmember Stevens requested Council add to the agenda 
stepping down from office as of August 7th.  Councilmember Stevens stated I know it has to be 
in writing but I do not have that right now.  Mayor Allen stated we have you on Item e. to talk 
about Paramount and stuff.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, seconded by 
Councilmember Aycock and unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

2019-20 Resurfacing List.  Mr. Marty Anderson provided Council with a copy of a map 
and list for street resurfacing.  Councilmember Aycock has given me some substitutes.  Mr. 
Anderson stated we have $1.6 million in street bonds.  Mr. Anderson stated I do have another 
item on here that will come out of those street bonds.  It is the contract award for the two dirt 
streets, Oak Hill Drive and East Chestnut Street totaling approximately $610,000, so that is 
going to leave us about a million to do street resurfacing.  Staff and Council discussed refining 
the list and bringing it back.   

Item A 



2 
 
 

  
Update on Upset Bid for 103 N. Slocumb.  Ms. Catherine Gwynn provided Council 

with an update on 103 N. Slocumb Street.  Ms. Gwynn shared the board authorized us to conduct 
upset bids on 103 N. Slocumb Street on May 6th.  We advertised on May 22nd and received an 
upset bid from Mr. Fred Davis.  We advertised again on June 12th and received an upset bid from 
Mr. and Mrs. Merritt.  We then advertised a third time on June 28th and no upset bids were 
received.  Council authorized staff to execute instruments necessary to convey the property, no 
further action is needed, unless Council decides to withdraw.  Ms. Gwynn stated I just wanted to 
give you an update and an opportunity.  No concerns were expressed.  Staff to proceed. 

 
Safety Briefing.  Ms. Bernadette Dove and Mr. Mark Blizzard presented the following 

information: 
 
Vehicle Accident Yearly Summary 

 2017 2018 

2019  
 (Year to 
date) 

TOTAL REPORTED 25 46 32 
CONTRIBUTORY FAULT 18 25 15 

NON-CONTRIBUTORY FAULT 7 21 17 
 

 
 
Contributory Fault Department Comparisons – Yearly 
2017 Year to Date 

Public Works  12 

Police 3 

Fire 1 

Finance 1 

Parks & Rec 1 
 
*18 out of 25 at-fault 
 
  2018 Year to Date  

Public Works  12 

Police 8 

Parks & Rec 4 

Engineering 1 
 
* 25 out of 46 at-fault 
 



3 
 
 

 
2019 Year to Date 

Public Works  8 

Police 3 

Parks & Rec 2 

Fire 1 

Finance 1 
 
*15 out of 32 at-fault 
 
Safety Committee 

 Purpose – To create and sustain a safe work environment for all employees by educating 
and promoting safe work practices, make policy recommendations, and assess on-the-job 
accidents. 

 Appointed by City Manager and comprised of representatives from the following 
departments: 

o Finance 
o Fire 
o Inspections 
o Planning 
o Parks & Recreation 
o Police 
o Public Utilities 
o Public Works 

 
Workers Compensation Year To Date Summary 
  

 2017 2018 
2019 (Year to 
Date) 

Total # of Claims  15 22 20 

Total Cost $376,648,45 $26,172.97  $191,831,93 
 

 
 
2017 Worker’s Comp                                

PD $234,550.40 8 

Finance  $128.51 1 

PU/WTP $7,513.15 1 

P&R $114,329.65 1 



4 
 
 

PW/SS $154.07 1 

Evt Center $561.04 1 

FD $19,411.63 2 

Total $376,648.45 15 
 
2018 Worker’s Comp                           

PD $4,593.29 9 

PW $2,979.39 4 

FD $18,166.66 7 

PU $433.63 2 

Total $26,172.97 22 
 
2019 Worker’s Comp     
 

PD $52,043.66 11 

PW $105,098.66 5 

DGDC $5,850.00 1 

FD $27,000.00 1 

IT $239.61 1 

Finance $1,600.00 1 

Total $191,831.93 20 
 
Point Assignment  
1.  No Fault – Zero (0) points – The accident could not have been have been prevented, because 
employee acted within safety guidelines.  
 
2.  Contributory Fault – Two (2) points – Unclear if employee’s actions caused the accident. 
However, the employee’s actions contributed to the accident.  
 
3.  At Fault – Four (4) points – Evidence indicates that accident could have been prevented by 
employee. Evidence also indicates employee violated City safety policy or procedure. 
  
4.  Negligent Fault – Eight (8) points – Evidence indicates violations of City policy due to 
carelessness, horseplay, and/or reckless disregard for personal safety.  
 
5.  An additional four (4) points shall be assigned to any employee who fails to report an 
accident to his supervisor.  
 
** Vehicle & Personal Injury 
 
Recordkeeping 
Disciplinary Actions are based upon the total point accumulation within a 24   calendar month 
period.  
 



5 
 
 

1. Four (4) points or less – Oral warning 
      *Four points or more in a 12 month period - will not receive merit pay. 
 
2.  Five (5) to seven (7) points – Written reprimand 
 
3.  Eight (8) to eleven (11) points – Automatic suspension for TWO working days without pay 
 
4.  Twelve (12) to thirteen (13) points – Automatic suspension for FIVE working days without  
     pay and any other disciplinary action deemed appropriate by City Manager.     
 
5.  Fourteen (14) or more points – Termination 
 
What Are We Doing…….. 
 

 NSC Defensive Driving Course 
o As of January 2019, twenty eight city employees that where at 

CONTRIBUTORY FAULT for accidents have completed this course. 
o Course dates were: 1/24/19; 1/30/19; 1/31/19; and 4/25/19 
o If points are awarded to a employee by the Safety Committee, the driver is 

required to attend the Defensive Driving Course 
o The course instructor is a NCDMV Drivers Education Specialist and provides this 

class free of charge to the City of Goldsboro. 
 Reviewing and benchmarking driver safety programs with similar sized municipalities   
 Pre-trip inspections for vehicles are completed and verified. 
 Evaluation of newly hired drivers. (NCDMV license checks are performed prior to hire) 
 Improving the maintenance and care of vehicles 
 Providing Spotter training for employees 
 Monitor and receive notifications for driving violations from NCDMV 

 
Recommendations for Improvement 

• Supervisors trained to understand the key role they play in Safety in order to carry out 
their safety and health responsibilities effectively,  

• Supervisors to become more responsible and proactive, i.e. conduct ride-alongs and root 
cause investigations, 

 Research Fleet software programs designed to track driver behaviors and patterns such 
as, speeding, harsh braking, following too close etc.  

• Revise the current Driver Safety policy, 
• Revise current Cell phone policy, 

      *    Install collision avoidance systems such as, wide angle back-up cameras, audio alarms, 
     **   Provide Electronic Learning Management Systems.  
     **   Recruit one additional Safety Officer or consultant to assist with investigations, training,      
            policy implementation/revisions, compliance and enforcement. 
 
 

 
Council discussed adding GPS to vehicles and requested staff look at the costs of adding GPS. 
 

Taking Steps to Save the Paramount from Losing Money – Councilmember Stevens.  
Councilmember Stevens shared he had spoken with Adam Twiss, the Paramount & Event Center 
Director, to discuss ways to decrease the amount of money being lost.   
 
Councilmember Stevens also expressed concerns regarding copyrights, merchandise revenue, 
etc. with the recent agreement with the History Channel.   

 
Investigation of Disclosure Statements – Councilmember Foster.  Councilmember 

Foster stated I asked for paperwork from Attorney Ron Lawrence regarding his investigation into 
Mayor Allen regarding disclosure statements and did not receive it.  Councilmember Foster 
stated he would like the city attorney investigated, how can you do an investigation with no 



6 
 
 

paperwork.  Councilmember Foster stated he would like to see Mr. Allen investigated because he 
did not do the disclosure statements, also an investigation into Council as to why we did not fill 
out our disclosure statements.   
 
Council discussed.  Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway stated I see no reason for an investigation, we 
admit we made an oversight, we admit we did wrong, we have all done a disclosure statement, 
we have corrected it.  Council continued discussing. 
 
Attorney Lawrence stated attorney work notes do not have to be turned over.   
 
Councilmember Williams stated the city clerk should inform all Councilmembers of the 
requirement for disclosure forms.   
 
Councilmember Williams also asked when the city attorney’s contract expires and for a copy of 
the contract.  

 
 
Consent Agenda Review.  As time did not allow for review of all the items, the 

remaining items will be reviewed during the Council meeting.   
 

There being no further business, the meeting recessed until the 7:00 p.m. meeting. 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in regular session 
in Council Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on July 15, 2019 with 
attendance as follows: 
 
 
 Present:  Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
   Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway  

Councilmember Antonio Williams 
Councilmember Mark Stevens  
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock  

  
 The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Pastor John Howard with The First Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of 

Allegiance followed.  
 
Approval of Minutes.  Councilmember Aycock made a motion to approve the Minutes 

of the Special Called Meeting of May 9, 2019 as submitted.  The motion was seconded by Mayor 
Pro Tem Broadaway.  Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, Councilmembers Stevens, Ham 
and Aycock voted in favor of the motion.  Councilmembers Williams and Foster voted against 
the motion.  Mayor Allen stated the motions passed 5:2. 

 
Z-14-19 Mary Sue Fallin- East side of Fallin Boulevard between N. Berkeley 

Boulevard and Central Heights Road-Lot 6A. Public Hearing Held. The property is zoned 
residential and is currently vacant and undeveloped. On Monday, June 2, 2003, Goldsboro City 
Council approved a rezoning change for subject property from NB (Neighborhood Business) to R-
6 Residential Conditional District. The subject property along with surrounding tracts was part of 
a combination rezoning for the construction of 312 apartment units. Once approved, the developer 
chose to build 264 apartments in lieu of 312 and forfeited his option to purchase subject property. 

 
 Frontage: 158ft. (Fallin Blvd.) 
 Area: 117,918 sq. ft., or 2.70 acres 
 Zoning: Residential (R-6CD) 
 

As previously stated, the applicant is requesting a zoning change from R-6 CD (Residential) to 
General Business (GB). 



7 
 
 

 
North: R-6 CD (Residential), SC (Shopping Center);  
South: NB (Neighborhood Business); 
East: RM-8 (Residential Manufactured Non-Conforming); and  
West: GB (General Business), SC (Shopping Center) 
 

The City's Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends high-density residential development for 
the property. 

 
City sewer is available to serve the property. Subject area is located in a Special Flood Hazard 
Area {100-year floodplain). 

 
The subject property has frontage along Fallin Boulevard, which will be extended from Berkeley 
Boulevard to Central Heights Road by the North Carolina Department of Transportation. These 
improvements are part of an overall project to realign Central Heights Road and Royall Ave at 
Berkeley Boulevard. These improvements are scheduled to begin construction in July 2020 with a 
construction duration of 24 months.  

 
Currently, there are no plans for development of the property. The applicant believes the 
marketability of the property would be enhanced if rezoned to General Business. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing, no one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council's 
meeting on August 5, 2019. 

 
Z-15-19 Mary Sue Fallin- East side of Fallin Boulevard between N. Berkeley 

Boulevard and Central Heights Road-Lot 4. Public Hearing Held. The property is zoned 
neighborhood business and is currently vacant and undeveloped. 

 
On Monday, October 24, 19 94, Goldsboro City Council approved a rezoning change for subject 
property from R-16 (Residential) to Neighborhood Business (NB). 

 
Frontage: 581ft. (Fallin Blvd.) 691ft. (Central Heights Rd.) 
Area: 385,807 sq. ft., or 8.85 acres 
Zoning: Neighborhood Business (NB) 
 

As previously stated, the applicant is requesting a zoning change from NB (Neighborhood 
Business) to General Business (GB). 

 
North: R- 6 CD (Residential) 
South: RM-8 (Residential Manufactured), 1-2 CD (General Industry), R-16 RM-NC 
(Residential-Manufactured Nonconforming); 
 East: RM-8 (Residential Manufactured Non-Conforming), R-16 (Residential); and  
West: GB (General Business)  
 

The City's Comprehensive Land Use Plan recommends commercial development for the property. 
 

City water and sewer are available to serve the property. Subject area is located in a Special Flood 
Hazard Area (100-year floodplain). 

 
The subject property has frontage along Fallin Boulevard, which will be extended from Berkeley 
Boulevard to Central Heights Road by the North Carolina Department of Transportation. These 
improvements are part of an overall project to realign Central Heights Road and Royall Ave at 
Berkeley Boulevard. These improvements are scheduled to begin construction in July 2020 with a 
construction duration of 24 months. 

 
Currently, there are no plans for development of the property. The applicant believes the 
marketability of the property would be enhanced if rezoned to General Business. 
 
Mayor Allen opened the public hearing, no one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 

 



8 
 
 

No action necessary. The Planning Commission will have a recommendation for the Council's 
meeting on August 5, 2019. 

 
Public Comment Period.  Mayor Allen opened the public comment period.  The 

following people spoke: 
 

1. Susan Williams shared comments regarding beer parlors.   
2. Charles Wright provided a handout regarding the 2019-2020 Annual Action Plan 

– Draft, Public Comment Sheet, a copy is on file in the City Clerk’s Office.   
3. Alicia Pierce shared comments regarding the disclosure forms. 
4. Carl Martin shared comments regarding the City Attorney’s report at the Work 

Session on April 1, 2-19. 
 
No one else spoke and the Public Comment Period was closed.   
 
 Consent Agenda. As time did not allow for the review of all consent agenda items 
during the work session, staff reviewed Items K. through S.   
 
 Item R. Contract Award – 2018 Street Paving Improvements Project Formal Bid 
No. 2019-003.   Upon motion of Mayor Allen, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried, Council removed Item R. Contract Award – 2018 Street Paving 
Improvements Project Formal Bid No. 2019-003 from the Consent Agenda and deferred until a 
later date.   
 
 Consent Agenda - Approved as Recommended.  City Manager, Timothy Salmon, 
presented the Consent Agenda.  All items were considered to be routine and could be enacted 
simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember so requested, any 
item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately.  In 
that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and 
roll call vote.  Mr. Salmon reminded Council Item R. Contract Award – 2018 Street Paving 
Improvements Project Formal Bid No. 2019-003 was removed from the Consent Agenda and 
deferred until a later date.  Councilmember Aycock moved the items on the Consent Agenda, 
Items D, E, F, G, H, I, J, K, L, M, N, O, P, Q and S be approved as recommended by the City 
Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Ham and a roll call vote 
resulted Mayor Allen, Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway, Councilmembers Stevens, Ham and Aycock 
voting in the affirmative.  Councilmembers Williams and Foster voted against the motion.  
Mayor Allen declared the Consent Agenda approved as recommended with 5:2 vote. The items 
on the Consent Agenda were as follows: 

 
Z-11-19 – (Joyful Play Childcare and Preschool) Subject property is located on the 

East side of Barrow Court between E. Ash Street and Carol Street. Ordinance Adopted. 
Applicant is requesting a zoning change for a portion of the property from R-16 (Residential) to 
GBCD (General Business Conditional District) in conjunction with site plan approval to allow 
the operation of a child daycare. 
 
The property is zoned residential and is currently occupied by a single-family dwelling.   
 

Frontage: 110 ft. (E. Ash Street) 
   420 ft. (Barrow Court) 
 

Area:    47,981 sq. ft. or 1.10 acres   
Zone:    Residential (R-16)        

 
As previously stated, the applicant proposes to rezone a portion of the property from R-16 
(Residential) to General Business Conditional District (GBCD) for the operation of a child 
daycare.   Site and landscape plans have been submitted for separate approval. 
 

Tract One:  (Existing Single-Family Dwelling) 
  110 ft. (E. Ash Street) 

158.98 (Barrow Court) 
Area:  17,522 sq. ft. or 0.402 acres 

  



9 
 
 

Tract Two:  (Proposed Daycare) 
276.87 ft. (Barrow Court) 
Area:  30,459 or 0.699 acres 

 
Surrounding Zones:  

North: General Business (GB); 
South:  Office and Institutional (O&I-1); 
East:   Residential (R-16); Neighborhood Business (NB) 
West:   R-16 (Residential)            

 
The City’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan recommends commercial development. 
 
The submitted site plan indicates a 5,376 sq. ft. building of modular construction and meeting the 
requirements of the North Carolina State Building Code.   
 

Days/Hours of Operation: Monday-Sunday:  6:30am-11pm 
Teachers/Staff:   8 
Children:     The applicant is seeking state licensing for 115 children. 

 
The site will be served by two, 24 ft. wide driveway cuts off Barrow Court and Carol Street.  
Since Barrow Court is an unimproved City street, the applicant is proposing to pave 
approximately 100 linear ft. or 2,200 sq. ft. in order to provide approved access to the site.  Street 
improvements must meet City Engineering standards. 
 
A paved and striped parking lot is shown directly east of the daycare.  Child daycares require one 
parking space per 300 sq. ft. of gross floor area, plus an unloading and loading area capable of 
stacking 4 vehicles.   
 
A total of 14 parking spaces have been provided to include 1 handicap accessible parking space.  
In addition, 4 spaces for loading and unloading are shown at the front entrance of the proposed 
daycare.  The applicant is requesting a modification of required parking from 22 to 18 spaces.  
Applicant states that the daycare’s client base has varied working hours utilizing daytime and 
nighttime childcare services and that the required amount of parking spaces is more than 
sufficient for the proposed use. 
Exterior construction materials shall consist of hardy plank siding, vinyl windows and roofing 
comprised of a rubber membrane with a flat-roof pitch. 
 
In accordance with state daycare licensing requirements, day care centers shall provide an 
outdoor play area of at least seventy-five (75) square feet for each child.  The submitted site plan 
shows an outdoor play area of 8,625 sq. ft.  A chain-link fence four (4) ft. in height will surround 
the play area and daycare center. 
  
The applicant proposes the installation of 7 Autumn Fantasy Maples to serve as required street 
trees along Barrow Court.  In addition, 12 Dwarf Yaupon Hollies are proposed as the required 
vehicular surface buffer.   
 
A Type A, 5 ft. wide buffer is proposed along the western, southern and eastern property lines 
consisting of Autumn Fantasy Maples, Arborvitaes, Chinese Loropetalums and Carissa Hollies.  
Snow Goose Cherries, Autumn Fantasy Maples and Dwarf Yaupon Hollies are proposed as 
plantings to serve the vehicular surface area. 
 
Exterior sidewalks are not shown on the submitted site plan.  Since the proposed use is for new 
construction, sidewalks are required.   
 
Applicant is requesting a modification of the sidewalk requirement.  If the modification is 
approved, a fee in lieu of will be required to be paid to the City of Goldsboro in the amount of 
$4,119.66 for sidewalk construction. 
 
5 ft. wide interior sidewalks including handicap accessible ramps have been provided leading 
from the parking lot and outside play area into proposed building entrances. 
 



10 
 
 

Commercial lighting plans have not been submitted, however, staff will work with the applicant 
to ensure that proposed lighting is compliant with the City’s commercial lighting ordinance. 
The property is not located within a Special Flood Hazard Area.  City water and sewer services 
are available to serve the property. 
 
An 18 ft. wide by 12 ft. wide concrete pad is shown behind the proposed daycare for two solid 
waste receptacles.  The dumpsters will be screened in accordance with City standards. 
Interconnectivity has been provided on the south side of the proposed parking lot. 
 
The applicant is requesting the following modifications: 

1. Modification of parking spaces from 22 to 18. 
2. Modification of exterior sidewalk construction. 

 
At the public hearing held on June 17, 2019, no one spoke for or against the request. 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended approval of the 
change of zone request and the site and landscape plans, with requested modifications, submitted 
for the childcare/preschool.  
 
Staff recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and: 
 

1. Adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from Residential 16 (R-16) to 
General Business Conditional District (GB CD) with development plan approval required 
separately.  The zoning change would be consistent with the City’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan which recommends commercial development; and  

 
2. Approve the submitted site and landscape plans for the proposed childcare/preschool with 

the following modifications: 
 

a) Modification of the sidewalk requirement.  If the modification is approved, a 
fee in lieu of will be required to be paid to the City of Goldsboro in the 
amount of $4,119.66 for sidewalk construction.  

 
b) Modification of parking spaces from 22 to 18.  Consent Agenda Approval.  

Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-44 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 
CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

Z-12-19 (Johnnie Jordan Coley’s Internet Cafe) Subject Property is Located on the 
South side of Arrington Bridge Road between Bill Lane Boulevard and Casey Mill Road.  
Denied.  Applicant is requesting a zoning change for property located at 1462 Arrington Bridge 
Road from Neighborhood Business to General Business Conditional District (GBCD) for an 
electronic gaming operation (internet café). 

 
Subject property was satellite annexed in August of 1989.  Since that time, it has operated as a 
grocery store, convenient store and restaurant.   

 
In 2017, the property sustained extensive damage from the effects of Hurricane Matthew.  Since 
that time, there have been no repairs or renovations made to the existing building. 
 
Currently, the building and lot are vacant and the property owner is in the process of selling the 
property. 
 

Frontage:   100 ft. 
Area:    17,000 sq. ft. or 0.39 acres 
Zoning:  Neighborhood Business (NB) 

As previously stated, the applicant proposes to rezone the subject property from Neighborhood 
Business (NB) to General Business Conditional District (GBCD) for an electronic gaming 
operation (internet café). 
 



11 
 
 

Surrounding Zones:  
North:   Residential (R-20A); 
South:   Residential (R-20A); 
East:    Residential (R-20A); and  
West:    Residential (R-20A) 

 
The City’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan recommends residential-agriculture development. 
On May 8, 2017, Goldsboro City Council approved an ordinance amending the Unified 
Development Ordinance regarding electronic gaming operations within the City limits and the 
City’s one-mile extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
The following regulations were approved by City Council: 

1. Electronic gaming operations are only permitted in the General Business (GB) zoning 
district. 

2. No establishment shall be located within 500 ft. of any residentially zoned or developed 
property, church, school, day care, playground or public park. 

3. No such establishment shall be located within one mile of another similar 
establishment. 

4. The hours of operation for such operations shall be limited from 7:00am to 2:00am. 
5. Electronic Gaming Facilities are only permitted after a Conditional Use Permit has 

been approved by City Council. 
6. The number of parking spaces for electronic gaming operations are based on 1.5 spaces 

per computer/machine and 1 pace per employee. 
The submitted site plan shows an existing 2,393 sq. ft. single-story building of masonry 
construction. The applicant’s proposed floor plan shows an assembly area consisting of 
18 machines, an office, a storage area, lobby and restrooms for patrons of the facility. 

 
Employees:  1 
Hours of Operation: Monday through Sunday;  

9am – Midnight 
 

Parking for the site is based on 1.5 spaces per gaming machine and 1 per employee.  28 parking 
spaces are required to include two handicap parking spaces.   
 
The submitted site plan shows 6 existing paved parking spaces at the front of the facility.  The 
applicant is proposing 12 parking spaces located in the rear yard of the facility and an additional 
11 parking spaces upon private property directly east and adjacent to the site. The adjacent 
private property owner has agreed to enter into a long-term lease with the applicant to use a 
portion of the property (15 ft. x 170 ft.) for parking as long as the business is in operation. 
 
The applicant proposes to remove the existing 400 sq. ft. accessory building located at the rear of 
the property for the provision of customer parking spaces and proper circulation for automobiles 
entering and exiting the site. 
 
Vehicular surface areas and parking areas are required to be paved and striped.  The applicant is 
requesting a modification of the paving requirement for vehicular surface areas and parking 
spaces located in the rear yard and side yard of the property.  If approved, applicant proposes to 
use gravel in lieu of asphalt or concrete.  
 
Due to existing site conditions, the applicant is requesting a modification of the City’s landscape 
requirements as they pertain to street trees, vehicular surface buffers and landscape buffer yards.   
 
The applicant states that landscape plantings will leave insufficient room for parking spaces 
required for the site.   
 
The site is located in the 100-year floodplain.  Any new construction or development will require 
compliance with the City’s floodplain regulations. 
 
Seymour Johnson Air Force Base has been notified of the proposed use.  Because the subject 
property falls within the 70-74 dnl noise contour, the applicant will be required to incorporate 
noise attenuation measures into the design or construction of portions of the building where the 
public is received or assembled.  



12 
 
 

 
The applicant is requesting the following modifications: 
 

1. Modification of 500 ft. separation distance from residentially-zoned or residentially-
developed property. 

2. Modification of paving required for vehicular surface areas and parking spaces. 
3. Modification of City’s landscape requirements. 

 
At the public hearing held on June 17, 2019, no one spoke for or against the request. 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended denial of the 
rezoning request from Neighborhood (NB) to General Business Conditional District (GB CD).   
 
The Planning Commission found the request not consistent with the City’s adopted 
Comprehensive Lane Use Plan and also found the request did not meet the approval criteria as 
outlined in Ordinance #2017-23, Internet Café/Sweepstakes Facilities.  
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission deny the 
rezoning request for zoning of the property from Neighborhood Business (NB) to General 
Business Conditional District (GB CD); finding it not consistent with the recommendation of the 
City’s adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan and the request does not meet the approval criteria 
as outlined in Ordinance #2017-23, Internet Café/Sweepstakes Facilities. Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 

Z-13-19 (Dewey Street Properties, LLC.) Subject properties are located on the 
North side of W. Grantham Street between Hargrove Street and Jordan Boulevard.  
Ordinance Adopted.  Applicant is requesting a zoning change for two individual properties located 
at 1211 and 1203 W. Grantham Street from General Business (GB) to Highway Business (HB). 
Applicant is the owner of both properties. 
 
On October 20, 2014, Council approved 1211 W. Grantham Street for the operation of a used car 
dealership for high-end, high-performance autos including the accessory uses of restoration, service 
and repair.  
 
In addition, Council approved site and landscape plans detailing the proposed development.  The 
following modifications were approved: 
 

1. Modification of a Type C (20 ft. wide) buffer along the western property line; 
2. Modification of eastern Type A (10 ft. wide buffer to allow the placement of a 6 ft. high 

fence with no additional landscaping; and 
3. Modification of the existing freestanding sign height and area from 25 ft. tall to 49 ft. 

tall and from 80 sq. ft. to 100 sq. ft.  

Since that time, the owner acquired the adjacent property directly east of the site and identified as 
1203 W. Grantham Street.  Currently, the owner operates the site as an automotive equipment 
installation, repair and service facility. 

 
1211 W. Grantham St: 
Frontage:      

W. Grantham Street: 181 ft.  
Collier Street:         136 ft.  

Area:   50,019 sq. ft. or 1.14 acres 
Zone: General Business (GB)                 
 
1203 W. Grantham St: 
Frontage: 89 ft. 
Area:    11,335 or .26 acres   
Zone:    General Business (GB)     
    
As previously stated, the applicant proposes to rezone two individual properties located at 1211 and 
1203 W. Grantham Street from General Business (GB) to Highway Business (HB). 
 
Surrounding Zones:  



13 
 
 

North:  Residential (R-6); 
South:    General Business (GB); Office and Institutional (O&I-1); 
East:    Office and Institutional (O&I-1; General Business (GB); Residential (R-16);  
West:    General Industry (I-2) 
 

The property owner proposes to rezone the property for the purpose of reclassifying an existing non-
conforming freestanding sign at 1211 W. Grantham St. to a conforming high-rise sign.  If approved, 
the owner intends to combine the two separate parcels (1211 and 1203 W. Grantham Street) into one 
in order for both businesses to share the proposed high-rise sign. 
 
According to the City’s Unified Development Code, high-rise signs are allowed in the Highway 
Business (HB) zoning district if the business or businesses are contiguous to a controlled access 
highway as defined by NCDOT.  The subject properties are located along W. US 70 Highway which 
is a controlled access highway. 
 
City sign regulations require high-rise signs not to exceed a height of 100 ft. in height and no more 
than 250 sq. ft. in area.  The existing freestanding sign is 49 ft. in height and 100 sq. ft. in area.  
 
The City’s Comprehensive Land-Use Plan recommends commercial development. 
 
At the public hearing held on June 17, 2019, no one spoke for or against the request. 
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended approval of the 
rezoning request from General Business (GB) to Highway Business (HB).   
 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and  
adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from General Business (GB) to 
Highway Business (HB).  The zoning change would be consistent with the City’s adopted 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan, which recommends commercial development.  Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-45 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 
CODE OF ORDINANCES” 
 

UDO-2-19 Microbreweries - Unified Development Ordinance Amendments.  
Ordinance Adopted.  The City Council adopted the Unified Development Ordinance on April 
4, 2005, which replaced existing land development regulations for the City of Goldsboro and its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
Since that time, the UDO has been amended, over the years, to address a number of minor text 
corrections and major changes as directed by the Council.    
 
Currently, a number of proposed changes for consideration are “Minor Text Amendments” to 
Sections within the UDO under Section 5.0 Zoning and Section 9.0 Definitions as follows: 
   

 Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses;  
 Section 5.5 Supplemental Use Regulation; and  
 Section 9.2 Definitions.   

Proposed changes are to reflect the addition of Microbreweries as a conditional use within the 
Central Business District, General Business District, Shopping Center District and the Highway 
Business zoning district.     
 
A Notice of Public Hearing listing all the Sections of the UDO under consideration for 
amendment was advertised for two consecutive weeks in the newspaper and posted on the City’s 
website for review.   
 
Minor changes, which are included for possible amendment include: 

1. Amending Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses by adding Microbreweries as a 
conditional use in the same Business/Personal Services as Bars, nightclubs, pool 
halls, places of entertainment with an ABC permit, bowling alleys, and miniature 
golf facilities; 



14 
 
 

2. Amending Section 5.5 Supplemental Use Regulations by adding to Subsection 5.5.4 
Special and Conditional Use Specific Regulations to include Microbreweries and 
editing the Central Business District Exceptions as it pertains to Bars, Nightclubs, 
Pool Halls, Places of Entertainment (both public and private and for profit) – ABC 
Permit regulations as follows; and 

3. Amending Section 9.0 Definitions by including within Subsection 9.2 Definitions a 
definition of Microbrewery. 

  
At the public hearing held on June 17, 2019, one individual questioned the need for additional places 
of entertainment with ABC permits.   
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended approval of the 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Text Amendment to reflect the addition of 
Microbreweries as a conditional use within the Central Business District, General Business 
District, Shopping Center District and the Highway Business zoning district. 

 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopt 
the following entitled ordinance amending the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to reflect 
the addition of Microbreweries as a conditional use within the Central Business District, General 
Business District, Shopping Center District and the Highway Business zoning district.   Consent 
Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO.  2019-46 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 5 AND ARTICLE 9 
RELATIVE TO ADDITION OF MICROBREWERIES AND ADOPTING UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, 
NORTH CAROLINA, AND ITS EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION” 
 

UDO-3-19 Demolition by Neglect Unified Development Ordinance Amendments.  
Ordinance Adopted.  The City Council adopted the Unified Development Ordinance on April 
4, 2005, which replaced existing land development regulations for the City of Goldsboro and its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 
 
Since that time, the UDO has been amended, over the years, to address a number of minor text 
corrections and major changes as directed by the Council.    
 
Currently, a number of proposed changes for consideration are “Minor Text Amendments” to a 
Section within the UDO under Article 5.0 Zoning as follows: 

   
 Section 5.11  Demolition by Neglect 

Proposed changes are to consider changing the name of the program to Order to Repair and 
update program standards.     
 
A Notice of Public Hearing listing all the Sections of the UDO under consideration for 

amendment was advertised for two consecutive weeks in the newspaper and posted on the City’s 
website for review.   
 

1. Minor changes, which are included for possible amendment include: 
2. Amending Section 5.11 Demolition by Neglect by renaming to Order to Repair; 
3. Amending Section 5.11.1 Standards by including additional standards; 
4. Amending Section 5.11.2 Review Authority by including Planning Director as having the 

authority to assure compliance of the ordinance; 
5. Amending Section 5.11.3 Petition and Action by adding minor language regarding the 

inspection process for Order to Repair; 
6. Amending Section 5.11.4 Safeguards from Undue Economic Hardship by adding minor 

language regarding the hardship filing process; 
7. Amending Section 5.11.5 Committee’s Actions on Demolition by Neglect Claims by 

renaming to Committee’s Actions on Order to Repair Claims and adding minor language 
regarding the Committee’s process to making a finding of undue or no undue economic 
hardship; and 

8. Addition of Section 5.11.8 Penalties and Remedies by adding language that indicate 
enforcement options by the City. 



15 
 
 

At the public hearing held on June 17, 2019, three individuals spoke against the request citing 
clarification of the Planning Director’s role in the review authority of the ordinance and reference to 
General Statue 160A-439.1 as it pertains to receivership authority of a City Employee. 

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended approval of the 
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Text Amendment to reflect changing the name of the 
program to Order to Repair and update program standards. 

 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopt 
the following entitled ordinance amending the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) to reflect 
changing the name of the program to Order to Repair and update program standards.  Consent 
Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-47 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 5.11 DEMOLITION 
BY NEGLECT AND ADOPTING UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT 
AMENDMENTS FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, AND ITS 
EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION” 
 

S-3-19 Bill Lane Lot #78 (Expedited 2-Lot Final Subdivision Plat).  Approved. 
The property is located on the north side of Titleist Drive within Lane Tree Townhomes 
Subdivision. 
 
Total Area:   24.89 acres or 108,421 sq. ft. 
Total Lots:   2 
 
Lot No. 1:   .70 acres or 30,649 sq. ft. 
Lot No. 2:   24.19 acres or 105,372 sq. ft. 
 
Zoning:    Highway Business (HB) 
  
Property is currently vacant and located in the City’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ). 
 
The proposed subdivision has been approved for a two-lot final subdivision as it qualified for an 
expedited subdivision review. 
 
The applicant proposes single-family development on Lot 1 and wishes to provide sewer services 
with the installation of a septic tank system. 
 
Per the City’s Unified Development Ordinance Subdivision Standards, water and sanitary sewer 
mains shall be installed in accordance with City standards and shall be approved by the 
Goldsboro City Engineer and the State of North Carolina, when such utilities are accessible and 
available within one thousand feet of the proposed subdivision.  Sewer is available within one 
thousand feet of the proposed subdivision however; the applicant is requesting a modification of 
tying onto to the existing sewer system. 
 
If modification is granted the septic system shall meet the requirements of the State Board of 
Health and be approved by the Wayne County Health Department.       
 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended approval of the 
2-Lot Final Subdivision Plat with a modification of tying onto the existing sewer system. 
  
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the 2-Lot Final Subdivision Plat with the following modification: 
 

 Modification of tying onto the existing sewer system requirement when such utilities 
are accessible and available within one thousand feet of the proposed subdivision. 
Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
SITE-6-19 Site and Landscape Plans- 4 Points of NC (Automatic Car Wash).  

Approved.  Subject properties are located on the south side of Berkeley Boulevard between 
Cashwell Drive and Langston Drive. 
 



16 
 
 

506 N. Berkeley Boulevard 
Frontage:   105 ft. 

 Depth:   184.42 ft. 
 Area:    18,583 sq. ft. or 0.42 acres 
 Zoning:   General Business 
 
508 N. Berkeley Boulevard 

Frontage: 76.82 ft. 
Depth:  184.42 ft. 
Area:  14,112 sq. ft. or 0.32 acres 
Zoning: General Business  

 
Property located at 506 N. Berkeley is currently occupied by a commercial real estate office and 
an ice cream and shaved ice facility.  Property located at 508 N. Berkeley is currently clear and 
vacant. 
 
The applicant proposes to combine the two subject properties for commercial development. 
   
The submitted site plan indicates a single-story, 2,800 sq. ft. building of metal-framed 
construction proposed for use as a drive-through automatic car wash facility.   

 
A floor plan has been provided and consists of an express tunnel car wash, a customer lobby 
area, an office, a restroom, an equipment room and a janitor’s closet. 

 
In addition to the car wash, two (2) overhead canopies are proposed for the site.  A 2,240 sq. ft. 
canopy is proposed adjacent to the common access drive and will provide cover for 14 parking 
spaces and 14 vacuum stations to be used by customers of the business.    

 
A 375 sq. ft. canopy is proposed in the drive-through aisle along the rear property line adjacent 
to the entrance of the car wash facility to provide cover for two (2) side-by-side automatic pay 
stations.  The canopy is shown within 5 ft. of the rear property line.  As such, a modification will 
be necessary since the rear building setback is 25 ft. 

 
Hours of Operation:   Monday-Sunday  8am-8pm 

Employees:    2-4 
 
The site will be served by an existing 50 ft. wide curb cut off Berkeley Boulevard.  

 
An existing 24 ft. wide paved and shared access drive will extend southward from the curb cut 
approximately 150 ft. from the terminus providing access to two parking lots proposed for the 
site.   

 
A total of 22 parking spaces have been provided including 1 handicap accessible parking space.  
14 spaces will be located adjacent to the common access drive.  8 spaces are shown adjacent to 
the proposed automatic car wash.  A drive-through aisle is shown at the rear of the site for 
stacking 14 vehicles upon entry into the car wash bay area. 

 
Exterior sidewalks are not shown on the submitted site plan.  The applicant will be required to 
install sidewalks along Berkeley Boulevard for approximately 182 linear feet.  

 
A 10 ft. wide interior sidewalk has been provided for pedestrian access leading from the parking 
lots to the building entrances using private walkways and a handicap ramp.  9 additional vacuum 
stations are proposed along the sidewalk adjacent to the car wash facility and located between 
customer parking spaces. 

  
The site plan indicates a required Type A, 5 ft. wide landscape buffer along the western and 
southern property lines.  A total of 10 street trees are proposed along Berkeley Boulevard 
accompanied by 48 evergreen shrubs to serve as the required vehicular surface buffer.  9 trees 
and 108 shrubs will serve as vehicular surface area plantings required for the site. 
 



17 
 
 

The proposed automatic car wash building exterior consists of a metal standing seam roof, split-
face masonry block columns, stucco and brick veneer walls, stacked stone veneer bases and 
architectural wood brackets. 

 
Commercial lighting plans have not been submitted, however, staff will work with the applicant 
to ensure that proposed lighting is compliant with the City’s commercial lighting ordinance. 

 
The property is not located within a Special Flood Hazard area.  City water and sewer are 
available to serve the site. 

 
Storm water calculations, grading and drainage plans have not been submitted.  The applicant 
will be required to submit plans in accordance with City Engineering standards before 
construction permits are released. 

 
A concrete pad is shown at the end of the access drive for the location of a commercial dumpster.  
The dumpster enclosure will match the elevations of the car wash facility and will be screened in 
accordance with City standards. 

 
The applicant is requesting a modification of the rear setback requirement from 25 ft. to 5 ft. for 
the construction of a 375 sq. ft. canopy providing cover for two (2) side-by-side automatic pay 
stations. 

 
The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended site and 
landscape plan approval with modification the rear setback requirement from 25 ft. to 5 ft. for the 
construction of a 375 sq. ft. canopy providing cover for two (2) side-by-side automatic pay 
stations. 
  
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 
approve the site, landscape and building elevation plans for 4 Points of NC (Automatic Car 
Wash)  with the following modification: 

 
 Modification to the rear setback requirement from 25 ft. to 5 ft. for the 

construction of a 375 sq. ft. canopy providing cover for two (2) side-by-side 
automatic pay stations. Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 
Nays) 

 
Street Closing – Titleist Drive.  Ordinance Adopted.  On April 11, 2019, Lane Farms, 

LLC. requested staff to close a portion of Titleist Drive based on NCDOT realignment of Salem 
Church Road and US 70 Bypass that is located within the City Limits.   
 
The referenced street section has been identified on the attached map indicating the length and 
right-of-way width. 
 
The petitioned street closing have been forwarded to the Fire, Police, Engineering and Public 
Works Departments for their review.  No objections to the closing has been submitted. 
 
The Engineering Department has indicated that a utility easement should be retained over this 
section of Titleist Drive for an existing 6-inch water line if the right-of-way is closed.  

 
If the street section is closed, ownership of the right-of-way would return to the property owner. 

 
The Council, on May 6, 2019, adopted a Resolution of Intent setting the public hearing and that 
Resolution was advertised for four weeks in the newspaper.   Adjacent property owners were 
notified of the public hearing by certified mail and the street section was posted with notice of 
the public hearing. 

 
At the public hearing held on June 17, 2019, no one spoke either for or against the closing of 
Titleist Drive. 

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on June 24, 2019, recommended closing a 
portion of Titleist Drive with maintaining a utility easement over this section of Titleist Drive for 
an existing 6-inch water line.  



18 
 
 

 
It was recommended Council accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and adopt 
the following entitled Ordinance officially closing a portion of Titleist Drive and maintaining a 
utility easement over the closed right-of-way for an existing 6-inch water line.  Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-48 “AN ORDINANCE ORDERING THE CLOSING OF PORTIONS 
OF CERTAIN STREET WITHIN THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Contract Award for Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA) 
Marketing and Public Relations Services.  Resolution Adopted.  Goldsboro-Wayne 
Transportation Authority, known locally as GWTA, requested qualifications from qualified 
marketing/public relations firms to manage and expand the public outreach and marketing 
strategy for the GWTA public transportation system. 
 
The scope of services includes development, maintenance and/or creation of the following items: 
 

1. Public outreach materials and promotional items, media kits, corporate information 
packets, advertising media and other associated items; 

2. Customer satisfaction surveys; 
3. Ridership counts; 
4. GWTA website; 
5. All signage and graphics for bus shelters, transit equipment, bus stop signs, etc.; 
6. Attendance at GWTA Board of Directors and staff meetings; 
7. Advertising/marketing strategies for ridership development and growth; 
8. System and route map development and updates, associated comprehensive and individual 

schedule brochures and stop level schedule displays; 
9. Multi-Ride Pass media design and development; 
10. Research and development of revenue generating advertising program options; 
11. Graphics and materials associated with the marketing program and strategies as needed; 

and 
12. Development of high quality, economical production options.   

 
Three consultants’ submitted qualifications and Jennifer Collins, City of Goldsboro Planning 
Director, Shycole Carter-Simpson, Community Relations Director, Amy Hartley, Director of 
Wayne Opportunity Center and Don Willis, Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority 
Director, reviewed each consultant’s submittal.   

 
Upon completion of the submittal review, staff recommended Quest Corporation of America 
(QCA) to the Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority Board of Directors at their June 27, 
2019 meeting.  The recommendation was based on QCA’s qualifications, past experience and 
project approach.  The Board of Director’s recommended and approved the selection of QCA for 
this task. 

 
Staff has worked with the consultant and NCDOT to negotiate a fee for the defined scope.  The 
final proposed cost is $36,810 with an option to extend for up to two one-year periods depending 
on available NCDOT Section 5303 funding.  Section 5303 funds available for the Goldsboro 
MPO and transit planning for FY 20 is $39,000. 
 
The fee proposal for this project has been reviewed by City staff and the North Carolina 
Department of Public Transportation. Eighty percent of the project will be paid with the use of 
NCDOT Section 5303 funds ($29,448) and twenty percent of the cost ($7,362) will be paid for 
by the City of Goldsboro as part of their match for the use of Section 5303 funds.  These funds 
are currently budgeted in the City’s FY 2020 Budget. 
 
This contract shall begin July 1, 2019 and end June 30, 2022 and as previously stated contains an 
option to extend for up to two one-year periods.    
 
It was recommended Council accept the staff’s and Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority 
Board of Director’s recommendation and adopt the following entitled Resolution authorizing the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute a contract in the amount of $36,810 with QCA, for the GWTA 
Marketing and Public Relations Services.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 
Nays) 



19 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-56 “RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION OF A CONTRACT FOR THE GOLDSBORO-WAYNE TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY (GWTA) MARKETING AND PUBLIC RELATIONS SERVICES” 
 

Informal Bid Request-Maintenance of Enhancement Areas and Welcome to 
Goldsboro Signs Service Contract.  Bid Accepted (Enhancement Areas).  Bid Rejected 
(Welcome to Goldsboro Signs).  The City of Goldsboro has maintenance agreements with the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation to maintain three areas along landscaped State 
right-of-ways. 
 
These three locations, known as “Enhancement Areas”, are: 
 

1. Royall Avenue (between Center Street and Berkeley Boulevard and an area extending 
along the east side of Spence Avenue running from Royall Avenue a distance of 
approximately 600 feet; 

2. U. S. Highway 70 East Bypass/Spence Avenue Interchange (includes service road 
quadrant and an area adjacent to BoJangle's Restaurant); and 

3.   US Highway 70 West and US 117/I-795 Bypass Interchange. 
 

The bid request also includes the maintenance of three Welcome to Goldsboro signs at the 
following locations: 

 
1. South side of US 70 West (adjacent to radio station at 2581 US 70 West); 
2. North side of US 70 East (on property owned by New Hope Friends Church at 4451 

US 70 East); and 
3. East side of NC 111 South (963 S NC 111 Highway). 

 
The City advertised and placed out for bid, detailed specifications for maintaining the above 
enhancement areas and welcome to Goldsboro signs.   

 
On Friday, July 5, 2019, bids were opened in the Planning Department.  One bid was received as 
follows: 
  Contractor              Bid Amount 
  Precision Lawn Care & Landscaping Inc. $60,000 

Enhancement Areas 
$19,200 
Welcome Signs 

  
Adequate funds are available within the Fiscal Year 2020 budget in order to perform the 
maintenance of Enhancement Areas only.  Bid amount for Welcome to Goldsboro Sign 
maintenance came in over budget and staff is requesting the welcome to Goldsboro sign 
maintenance be rejected.  Staff intends to revise the scope of work for the Welcome to 
Goldsboro Sign maintenance and rebid for services.     

 
The contract for Enhancement Area Maintenance is for a 12-month period beginning July 1, 
2019 and extending to June 30, 2020. 
 
Staff recommended Council: 
 

1. Accept the low bid submitted by Precision Lawn Care & Landscaping Inc., in the 
amount of $60,000 for maintenance of the Enhancement Areas; 

 
2. Reject contractor’s bid for Welcome to Goldsboro Sign Maintenance in the amount 

of $19,200.00; and  
 

3. Authorize the Planning Director and Finance Director to sign a service contract 
with Precision Lawn Care & Landscaping Inc., for provisions for the Maintenance 
of Enhancement Areas. Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 
Nays) 

 



20 
 
 

Resolution Accepting the State Reserve Loan Program and Creation of the Capital 
Project Fund for the Sewer Rehabilitation Project E-SRP-W-17-0110 Project.  Resolution 
Adopted.  Ordinance Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro recognized the need to rehabilitate 
sewer lines in the areas of the Big Ditch Outfall, Carolina Street and Cherry Hospital area. The 
project encompasses the sewer line rehab of 3,370 LF of 8-inch, 12-inch, and 36-inch gravity 
sewer and will also include rehab of 15 manholes and replacement of 25 services. The City 
received the Letter of Intent from the NC Department of Environmental Quality on March 1, 
2018 to fund a State Reserve Loan Program. 

 
On May 29, 2019 the North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality notified the City of 
its approval of financing from the State Reserve Program in the amount of $1,235,100 at an 
interest rate of 1.82% over 20 years. 

The attached Resolution authorizes the City Manager to accept the loan amount and directs him 
to furnish all necessary information and assurances required to execute the loan closing. The 
closing fee for this loan is $24,702, which is 2% of the total loan amount. The attached 
Ordinance is necessary to create the capital project and appropriate the expenditures for 
engineering, construction and loan fees. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt: 

1. The following entitled Resolution accepting the State Reserve Loan and authorizing the 
City Manager to sign loan documents in the amount of $1,235,100. 

2. Adopt the following entitled Ordinance to create the capital project fund ordinance in the 
amount of $1,259,802. Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-57 “RESOLUTION BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO”  
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-49 “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT 
FUND FOR THE SEWER REHABILITATION SRP-W-17-0110 PROJECT” 
 

Resolution Accepting the State Revolving Fund Loan and Creation of the Capital 
Project Fund for the Water Line Replacement & Booster Pump Station (BPS) Project.  
Resolution Adopted.  The City of Goldsboro recognized the need to replace existing water lines 
at various locations in the City and install a new booster pump station in the New Hope area to 
address low pressure issues and remove outdated pipe materials. The water line replacement 
includes: 

 
 4,000 LF in the Lanetree Subdivision from Fedelon Trail to Titleist Drive 
 3,100 LF on Ash Street from Herman Street to William Street 
 2,700 LF on Ash Street from Berkeley to Meadow Lane School 
 5,300 LF on Elm Street from Madison Avenue to Lee Drive 
 2,700 LF on Slocumb Street from Westbrook Road to SJAFB 

 
The Council approved a resolution to apply for the state revolving loan on September 17, 2017. 
The Wooten Company was selected to perform the engineering services for this project on 
September 18, 2018 
 
On June 6, 2019, we received notification from the North Carolina Department of Environmental 
Quality that financing was approved from the North Carolina Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund (DWSRF) in the amount of $3,610,000 at an interest rate of I .82% over 20 years. 
 
The Resolution authorizes the City Manager to accept the loan amount and directs him to furnish 
all necessary information and assurances required to execute the loan closing. The closing fee for 
this loan is $72,200, which is 2% of the total loan amount. The attached Ordinance is necessary 
to create the capital project and appropriate the expenditures for engineering, construction and 
loan fees 

 
It is recommended that the City Council: 



21 
 
 

 
1. Adopt the following entitled Resolution accepting the State Revolving Loan and 

authorizing the City Manager to sign loan documents in the amount of $3,610,000.00. 
2. Adopt the following entitled Ordinance to create the capital project fund ordinance in the 

amount of $3,682,200.00.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-58 “RESOLUTION BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-50 “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT 
FUND FOR THE WATER LINE REPLACEMENT AND BOOSTER PUMP STATION (BPS) 
PROJECT” 

 
Resolution Accepting the State Revolving Fund Loan and Creation of the Capital 

Project Fund for the Plate Settlers Project.  Resolution Adopted.  Ordinance Adopted.  The 
City of Goldsboro recognized the need to upgrade the Water Treatment Plant to expand its 
capacity, and authorized staff on June 5, 2017 to make application to the NC Department of 
Environmental Quality for a loan to aid in the construction and installation of sedimentation 
basin inclined plate settlers to improve turbidity removal under all flow conditions and increase 
sedimentation basin and filter capacity from 12 to 14 mgd. 
 
On June, 18, 2019, we received notification from the North Carolina Department of 
Environmental Quality that financing was from the North Carolina Drinking Water State 
Revolving Fund in the amount of $1,797,360 at an interest rate of 1.82% over 20 years. 

The Resolution authorizes the City Manager to accept the loan amount and directs him to furnish 
all necessary information and assurances required to execute the loan closing. The closing fee for 
this loan is $35,947, which is 2% of the total loan amount. The attached Ordinance is necessary 
to create the capital project and appropriate the expenditures for engineering, construction and 
loan fees. 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Adopt the following entitled Resolution accepting the State Revolving Loan and 
authorizing the City Manager to sign loan documents in the amount of $1,797,360. 

2. Adopt the following entitled Ordinance to create the capital project fund ordinance in the 
amount of $2,114,307.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-59 “RESOLUTION BY MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL  
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO” 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2019-51 “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE GRANT PROJECT 
FUND FOR THE PLATE SETTLERS PROJECT WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
EXPANSION” 
 

FY19-20 Annual Action Plan and Recommended Budget.  Approved.  The FY19-20 
federal appropriations process was completed on April 15, 2019 and the City was notified of 
final allocations on May 3, 2019.  HUD has awarded $328,479 in CDBG and $214,732 
in HOME funds to the City of Goldsboro for use to develop viable urban communities by providing 
decent housing, suitable living environment, and expanding economic opportunities, mainly for 
persons of low-to-moderate income.  Additionally, the City will have available approximately 
$34,363 in prior year CDBG funds and $324,726 in prior year HOME funds (prior year balances 
as of May 1, 2019). 
 
Due to the restrictive use of funds placed on the HOME program to focus on projects and/or 
activities designed exclusively to create affordable housing for low-income households, the City 
has historically each year carried over a substantial amount of prior years’ HOME funds when it 
has not undertaken large development projects.   
 
A thirty-(30) day comment period was held May 17, 2019 to June 17, 2019 with a public meeting 



22 
 
 

being held on June 14, 2019 to discuss priorities and recommended budget for FY19-20 program 
year. On June 17, 2019 during the City Council’s Regular Meeting, staff provided City Council 
with a preliminary presentation of the draft FY19-20 Annual Action Plan and budget 
recommendations, as well.  In addition, a public hearing was held during the regular meeting to 
gather public input on the use of federal funds.   
 
Four citizens provided their input regarding restructuring CDBG and HOME funds within the 
recommended budget as it related to transitional housing, rehabilitation, and public services.  
These comments are similar in nature to the comments received during the June 14, 2019 public 
comment meeting.  Staff has received two comments from non-profit stakeholders in regards to 
Community Development Housing Organization (CHDO) funds, one pertaining to more 
homeownership and another in favor of allocation to increase affordable housing through multi-
family housing.  Comments will be incorporated into the final submission of the FY19-20 Annual 
Action Plan.  During the Commission on Community Relations and Development meeting of June 
19, 2019, staff provided a preliminary presentation on the draft FY19-20 Annual Action Plan and 
budget recommendations.   
 
The 2019-2020 Annual Action Plan is the 5th and final year of implementing the Five-Year 
Consolidated Plan for 2015-2020.  A summary of the 2019-2020 drafted Annual Action Plan 
proposed activities and use of funds is included, accomplishments will be reported in the CAPER.   
 
Staff recommended Council accept FY19-20 allocation of funds by HUD from the CDBG and 
HOME Programs and:  
 

1. Approve the FY19-20 Annual Action Plan and budget recommendations presented during 
City Council’s Regular Meeting of June 17, 2019 in preparation for HUD’s submission 
deadline on August 16, 2019. 

2. Authorize the Mayor and staff to execute and file the Annual Action Plan, along with the 
required Certifications, the SF-424, and Grant Agreements that are required to receive 
CDBG and HOME funding for and on behalf of the City of Goldsboro, and to make 
necessary changes to those documents where required by HUD. Consent Agenda 
Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 Nays) 

 
Departmental Monthly Reports.  Accepted As Information.  The various departmental  

reports for April, 2019 were submitted for the Council’s approval.  It was recommended that 
Council accept the reports as information.  Consent Agenda Approval.  Aycock/Ham (5 Ayes: 2 
Nays) 

 
End of Consent Agenda.   

  
 City Manager’s Report.  Mr. Tim Salmon stated the Wayne County Veterans and 
Patriot Coalition has requested the Council sponsor the Purple Heart Banquet in the amount of 
$1,250.  Council has funded since 2012.  Council consensus was to provide a sponsorship in the 
amount of $1,250. 
  

Mayor and Councilmembers’ Reports and Recommendations.  Mayor Allen read the 
following Proclamation: 

 
Purple Heart Day Proclamation. Mayor Allen proclaimed August 7, 2019 as “PURPLE 

HEART DAY” in the City of Goldsboro in honor of those who have received the Purple Heart 
and encouraged citizens to support the Purple Heart Banquet on August 3, 2019 where special 
tribute will be given to our local Purple Heart recipients.   
 

Resolution Expressing Appreciation for Services Rendered by Anton Coley as an 
Employee of the City of Goldsboro for More Than 24 Years.  Resolution Adopted. Anton 
Coley retired on July 1, 2019 as a Solid Waste Technician with the Public Works Department of 
the City of Goldsboro with more than 24 years of service. Anton began his career on July 5, 1995 
as a Laborer II with the Public Works Department. On July 1, 2016, Anton’s position was 
reclassified as a Solid Waste Technician with the Public Works Department where he has served 
until his retirement. Anton has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who 
has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of 
Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 



23 
 
 

themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Anton 
Coley their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the 
years. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro express our deep appreciation and 
gratitude for the dedicated service rendered during Anton’s tenure with the City of Goldsboro 
and offer him our very best wishes for success, happiness, prosperity and good health in his 
future endeavors. 
 
Upon motion of Mayor Allen, seconded by Councilmember Ham and unanimously carried, 
Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-60 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 
FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY ANTON COLEY AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 24 YEARS” 
 
 Councilmember Aycock stated no comment. 
 
 Councilmember Ham stated no comment. 
 
 Councilmember Foster stated no comment. 
 
 Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway stated I would like to give a shout out to the Goldsboro 
Police Department for the Cars & Cops event they had this past Saturday, all part of their 
community policing and results are starting to show. 
 
 Councilmember Stevens stated I would like to make a motion, if you will accept, in me 
stepping down from the seat of District 3 on August 2nd and allow to pay out the remainder of his 
stipend because I have other opportunities to go back into the film and animation industry that is 
why I am stepping down.  
 
Mayor Allen stated I do not believe it has to be made in motion.  Councilmember Stevens and 
Mayor Allen discussed his request regarding the stipend.  Mayor Allen asked that he give them 
time to research that.  
 
Councilmember Stevens shared comments regarding each Councilmember and thanked them.  
Councilmember Stevens stated he looks at this as a learning experience.  Councilmember 
Stevens stated I will pray for the City of Goldsboro and the citizens and wish you well. 
 
 Councilmember Williams stated I would have liked to see you finish out your term but 
you know what is best for you sir.  I wish you luck.  Councilmember Williams stated I would 
like to thank all the people who stood beside me and supported me throughout the censuring 
process.  It has not been easy.  It has not been easy on the city.  It has not been easy on my 
family.  It has not been easy on my business.  I thank everyone from the bottom of my heart that 
stood by me and supported me.   

 
 There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:47 p.m. 
 
        
     

___________________________ 
       Chuck Allen 
       Mayor 
   
       ___________________________ 
       Melissa Capps, MMC/NCCMC  
       City Clerk  



Item B



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-79 

 
RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION 

FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY CLAUDE JACKSON 
AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

FOR MORE THAN 18 YEARS 
 
 WHEREAS, Claude Jackson retires on October 1, 2019 as a Police Corporal with the Goldsboro 
Police Department of the City of Goldsboro with more than 18 years of service; and 
 

WHEREAS, Claude began his career on May 16, 2001 as a Police Officer with the Goldsboro 
Police Department; and  

 
WHEREAS, On November 8, 2006, Claude was promoted to Police Corporal with the 

Goldsboro Police Department where he has served until his retirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Claude has proven himself to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who 

gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Claude Jackson 
their deep appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 
 

1. We express our deep appreciation and gratitude for the dedicated service rendered during 
Claude’s tenure with the City of Goldsboro and offer him our very best wishes for success, 
happiness, prosperity and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
2. This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and 

shall be in full force and effect from and after this 23rd day of September, 2019.  
    
 
 
 
  
         _______________________ 
         Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



Item C



Item D



E













F









G











H















I











J

















K











Item _____ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Amending Special Revenue Fund Ordinance – Edward Byrne 
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) (P3102) 

BACKGROUND:  On February 18th, the Board approved an appropriation for the 2017 
Governor’s Crime Commission Gang Equipment Grant funded by 
the 2017 Edward Byrne Justice Assistance Grants in the amount of 
$21,365.54. The funds have been approved to purchase a mobile 
camera, computer, printer and other equipment for the Gang 
Program. 

DISCUSSION: The funding was appropriated in the General Fund, as has been the 
past practice.  The funds were not obligated by June 30, 2019 and 
therefore the appropriation lapsed.  Police staff managing the grant 
are ready to carry out the terms of the grant agreement and require 
the appropriation.   

Attached is an amendment to the special revenue fund established on 
June 17th for the JAG grant funding to include the GCC JAG grant.  
Funds appropriated in a special revenue or capital project fund do not 
lapse annually.  

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the attached Special Revenue Fund 
Ordinance for the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant 
(JAG) (P3102) be amended for $21,365.64 for the 2017 GCC Gang 
Equipment Grant. 

. 

Date:  ___________________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date: _____________  __________________________________ 
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

9/23/19

L



ORDINANCE NO. 2019- 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING A SPECIAL REVENUE PROJECT FOR THE EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) (P3102) 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been approved for the Governor’s Crime 
Commission 2017 Gang Equipment grant funded by the 2017 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures for the purchase of a mobile 
camera, computer, printer and other equipment for the Gang Program to fulfill the terms 
of the grant agreement that will be funded with grant revenue. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that the following special revenue project budget is hereby amended: 

Current Budget Amended Budget
Increase 

(Decrease)
Revenues:

Grant Revenue Federal 2017 44,985.00$           44,985.00$            -$            
Grant Revenue Federal 2018 48,372.00            48,372.00              -             
Grant Revenue Federal Prior 1,277.64              1,277.64 -             
Grant Revenue Federal/GCC 21,365.64              21,365.64    
Interest Income 25.00 25.00 -             

Total Revenues 94,659.64$           116,025.28$          21,365.64$  

Expenditures:
JAG Expenditures 2017 44,985.00$           44,985.00$            -$            
JAG Expenditures 2018 48,372.00            48,372.00              -             
GCC Expenditures 2017 21,365.64              21,365.64    
Transfers to Fund Balance 1,302.64              1,302.64 -             

Total Expenditures 94,659.64$           116,025.28$          21,365.64$  

Adopted this  day of , 2019. 

___________________________ 
Mayor  

Attested by: 

______________________ 
City Clerk  































Item _____ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Sole Source Vendor Resolution for Barrier Solutions 

BACKGROUND:  After Hurricane Matthew, staff was tasked with finding an 
economical and efficient way to prevent flooding at the Water 
Treatment Plant.  Staff researched various methods to find a balance 
between cost, swift deployment and proven flood proofing results. 

DISCUSSION: Staff proposes to purchase floodstop barriers from Barrier Solutions 
LLC with the funds allocated in the FY19-20 Adopted Budget.  The 
product is patented and due to its unique design and function, there 
are no other vendors that provide a similar water proof solution in 
the U.S.  Since staff proposes to sole source the item, General Statute 
requires the Board to approve the purchase by resolution.  

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the attached Resolution for the Purchase of 
Floodstop Barriers be approved for $50,000.00. 

Date:  ___________________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date: _____________  __________________________________ 
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

9/16/19

M



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 

 
RESOLUTION FOR THE PURCHASE OF FLOODSTOP BARRIERS 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro produces drinking water for its residential and commercial and sells 
water to five additional public water supply systems; and 

 WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to mitigate and protect the Water Treatment Plants assets 
during a flooding event; and 

 WHEREAS, staff has researched multiple methods of flood mitigation and the most cost effective 
solution to protect the Water Treatment Plant assets was determined to be the use of patented flood defense 
barriers; and 

 WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. 143-129(e) lists the authorized exceptions to the formal bid procedures, and 
N.C.G.S. 143-129(e)(g) allows for purchases of apparatus, supplies, materials, or equipment to be purchasing 
using sole-source exception when: (i) performance or price competition for a product are not available; (ii) a 
needed product is available from only one source of supply; or (iii) standardization or compatibility is the 
overriding consideration; and  

WHEREAS, Barrier Solutions is the sole patented provider of floodstop barriers; and 

 WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to purchase floodstop barriers through Barrier Solutions in 
an amount not to exceed $50,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina 
that: 

1. Performance or price competition for this product is not available, and Barrier Solutions is 
declared a sole source vendor for the floodstop barriers. 

2. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract with Barrier 
Solutions, in an amount not to exceed $50,000 to provide floodstop barriers. 

 
This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 23rd day of September 2019. 

 

         _______________________ 
         Mayor 
 

 

Attested by: 

 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 



 Item ________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Correction of stated unit of measurement for the FY18-19 and FY19-20 water 
rates 

BACKGROUND: The City Council adopted the FY19 Water and Sewer rates on June 4, 2018 and 
the FY20 rates on June 17, 2019.  The FY19 rate structure included a change from 
cubic feet to gallons.  In the resolution adopted on June 4, 2018 there was a 
clerical error where industrial water customer using more than one hundred fifty 
million gallons (150,000,000) was stated incorrectly.  There were two sections 
where the written amount was incorrect (one million five hundred thousand) but 
the numerical amount was correct (150,000,000) and one section where the 
written and numerical amount were incorrect. 

Then in preparing the FY20 rate schedule, the prior resolution was used as the 
underlying template.  The numerical amount had been corrected to match the 
(incorrect) written amount in late 2018.  Although, I had staff proof the document, 
it was still overlooked.  The written and numerical amount in FY20 read 
incorrectly as one million five hundred thousand (1,500,000).   

DISCUSSION: It is necessary to amend for the technical clerical errors.  FY19 rates were adopted 
as a resolution.  FY20 rates were adopted as an ordinance due to communication 
error.   

RECOMMENDATION: 
1. It is recommended that Council adopt the attached resolution to correct the

FY18-19 Water and Sewer Rates to make a clerical correction to the
written amount of industrial water customer annual usage from “one
million five hundred thousand” to “one hundred fifty million” in Sections
1, 4 and 5.

2. It is recommended that Council adopt the attached ordinance to correct the
FY19-20 Operating Budget Ordinance, Section 10(a) to make a clerical
correction to the written amount of industrial water customer annual usage
from “one million five hundred thousand” to “one hundred fifty million”,
and “1,500,000” to “150,000,000”.

Date:__________________________ ______________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn   
Finance Director 

Date:__________________________ ______________________________ 
Timothy M. Salmon 
City Manager 

N



RESOLUTION NO. 2019 – 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATE AND SANITARY 
SEWER RATE FOR WATER USAGE TECHNICAL CORRECTION 

 FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

WHEREAS, the present rate structures administered by the City of Goldsboro for water and 
sanitary sewer service became effective on July 2005 and January 1987 respectfully; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the water and sewer rate schedule for FY18-19 on June 4, 
2018; and 

WHEREAS, amendments may become necessary as circumstances arise; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Section 1 for a clerical error in the written amount for 
industrial water customer annual usage. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. Resolution 2018-29 “RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATE AND SANITARY SEWER RATE,
THE MONTHLY MINIMUM CHARGE, THE LATE FEE AND UTILITY SERVICE PENALTY FOR THE CITY
OF GOLDSBORO” is hereby corrected to read as follows:

a. Section 1
i. “The industrial bulk monthly water rate for customers using one hundred fifty

million (150,000,000) gallons”
b. Section 4

i. “Industrial bulk rate for customers using one hundred fifty million
(150,000,000) gallons”

c. Section 5
i. “The capitalized sanitary sewer monthly rate for industrial bulk customers using

one hundred fifty million (150,000,000) gallons”

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 1st date of July 2018. 

Attest: _________________________ 

_____________________________ 

City Clerk 

Mayor 

This the 23rd day of September, 2019. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2019-20 FISCAL YEAR 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the FY2019-2020 Annual 
Operating Budget on June 17, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, amendments may become necessary as circumstances arise; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Section 10(a) for a clerical error in the written and 
numerical amount for industrial water customer annual usage. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that: 

1. The Budget Ordinance (2019-43) for the 2019-20 Fiscal Year is and hereby, amended:

A. Section 10(a) is corrected to read as follows:  
“The industrial bulk monthly water rate for customers using one hundred fifty million 
(150,000,000) gallons”. 

2. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after July 1, 2019.

Attest: _________________________ 

_____________________________ 

City Clerk 

Mayor 

This the 23rd day of September, 2019.



Cop
y

RESOLUTION NO. 2018 - J9 

RESOLUTION AMENDING THE WATER RATE AND SANITARY SEWER RATE, THE MONTHLY 
MINIMUM CHARGE, THE LATE FEE 

AND UTILITY SERVICE PENALTY FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

WHEREAS, the present rate structures administered by the City of Goldsboro for water and sanitary 
sewer service became effective on July 2005 and January 1987 respectfully; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of operating the Water Plant and Sanitary Sewer Treatment Facility and 
maintaining their respective utility distribution and collection lines has increased since the rate schedules 
currently utilized were placed into effect; and 

WHEREAS, an increasing number of City of Goldsboro utility customers pay their bills after the due 
date thereof, resulting in additional work for the staff and, thereby, increasing costs; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Late Fee and the Service Penalty for payment of utility bills after the extended payment 
period results in recovery of only a portion of these increased costs; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina that: 

1. Customers inside the City, the monthly water rate shall be two dollars and eighty-seven cents 
($2.87) per one thousand (1,000) gallons and five dollars and seventy-five cents ($5.75) per one 
thousand gallons (1 ,000) for outside City customers. The industrial bulk monthly water rate for 
customers using one million, five hundred thousand (150,000,000) gallons and over per year inside the 
City, shall be two dollars and thirteen cents ($2.13) per one thousand (1,000) gallons and four dollars 
and twenty-five cents ($4.25) per one hundred thousand (1 ,000) gallons for outside City customers. 
All customers shall be billed in ten ( 10) gallon increments. 

2. Each water customer outside the City shall pay a monthly minimum charge based upon meter size, 
provided that this charge shall not provide for any water consumption. 

Meter Size 
3/4" 
l " 
1 1/2" 
2" 
3" 
4" 
6" 
8" 

10" 

FY 2018-19 Minimum Charge 
$ 16.78 

17.66 
19.14 
20.96 
26.62 
34.24 
51.96 
82.28 

135.36 

cgwynn
Highlight



Cop
y

3. Each water customer inside the City shall pay a monthly minimum charge based upon 
meter size, provided that this charge shall not provide for any water consumption. 

Meter Size 

3/4" 
1" 
1 1/2" 
2" 
3" 
4" 
6" 
8" 

10" 

FY 2018-19 Minimum Charge 

$ 12.14 
12.58 
13.32 
14.23 
17.06 
20.87 
29.73 
44.89 
70.89 

4. Any person discharging waste water into the sanitary sewer of the City shall pay a sewer service 
charge of six dollars and twenty-two cents ($6.22) per one thousand (1 ,000) gallons for in-City 
service, and twelve dollars and forty-three cents ($12.43) per one thousand (1,000) gallons for 
outside-City service. Industrial bulk rate for customers using one million, five hundred thousand 
(1 ,500,000) gallons and over per year inside the City, the monthly rate shall be five dollars and 
fifty-seven cents ($5.57) per one thousand (1 ,000) gallons and eleven dollars and fifteen cents 
($11.15) per one thousand (1 ,000) gallons for outside City customers. The charges shall be based 
upon the actual metered water consumption in ten (10) gallon increments. 

5. The capitalized sanitary sewer rate for FY 2018-19 shall be two dollars and seventy-five cents 
($2.75) per one thousand (1,000) gallons of metered water usage for in-City service, and five 
dollars and fifty-one cents ($5.51) per one thousand (1 ,000) gallons of metered water usage for 
outside City service. The capitalized sanitary sewer monthly rate for industrial bulk customers 
using one million, five hundred thousand (150,000,000) gallons and over per year inside the City, 
shall be two dollars and fifty cents ($2.50) per one thousand (1 ,000) gallons and five dollars 
($5.00) per onethousand (1 ,000) gallonsforoutsideCitycustomers. 

6. The Late Fee of $5.00 for utility bills past due and the Service Penalty of $15.00 assessed on utility 
bills after the expiration of the extended payment period will both remain in effect. The 
reconnection fee of $10.00 for customers disconnected due to nonpayment will remain the same and 
be charged before water service is restored. 

7. The deposit of an advance payment for all new single-family residential domestic utility customers 
shall be $100 inside the City limits and $125 for those customers located beyond the corporate 
boundaries of the City. 

8. The deposit of advance payment for new non-residential users of City of Goldsboro utility service 
shall be equal to the projected bi-monthly utility bill of each metered account, but not less than $100 
nor greater than $5,000 for each metered account. 

cgwynn
Highlight

cgwynn
Highlight



Cop
y

9. The new rates shall become effective with the July l, 2018 billing. 

10. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 1st date of July 2018. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed By: 

City Attorney 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019- <-13 

THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

Section 1. Summary· 

SUMMARY REVENUES APPROPRIATIONS 

Gener~! Fund 

General Fund Capital Reserve 

Stormwater Fund 

Community Development Fund 

Utility Fund 

Downtown Special District Fund 

. Occupancy Tax Fund 

TOTAL BUDGET 

$ 

$ 

43,395,311 

1,000 

1,366,249 

800 

17,207,328 

100,351 

1,113,732 

63,184,771 

$ 43,395,311 

1,000 

1,366,249 

800 

17,207,328 

100,351 

1,113,732 

$ 63,184,771 

Section 2. There is hereby levied the following rates of tax on each hundred dollars ($100). valuation ·of taxable 
property, as listed for taxes as of January 1, 2019, for the purpose ofraising revenue from current year's property tax to 
finance the appropriations following this Ordinance: · · 

TOTAL RATE PER $100 VALUATION $.65 

Such rates of tax are based on an estimated total ass.essed valuation of real property for the purpose of taxation of 
$2,529,667,961 !llld an estimated rate of collection of 98.34%. 

Section 2-A. An additional special tax of twenty-three and one-half cents (.235) per $100 assessed valuation is 
hereby levied upon those properties within the Downtown Service District as defined in Resolution 1977-102. 

TOTAL RATE PER $100 VALUATION $.235 

Section-3. There is hereby levi_ed and shall be collected for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2019, and each year 
thereafter until amended or repealed, on every business, trade or profession enumerated in the North Carolina Revenue Act 
of 1939 as amended through 2017, the maximum allowed by said Act .and the General Tax Ordinances of the City of 
Goldsboro. Nothing therein shall be construed·to repeal any license tax heretofore levied by the City of Goldsboro and not 
enumerated in said Act nor prohibited by said Act. 

Section 4. There _is hereby levied a monthly refuse charge of $22.00 against each residential customer and $40.50 
for each business customer located within the City of Goldsboro that utilizes a commercial roll out container service. A 
charge of $5.50 per cubic yard per pick~up is hereby levied against each commercial refuse customer of the City of 
Goldsboro. All revenue collected through this source shall be deposited into the General Fund. 

Section 5. There is an annual backflow prevention inspectioq fee assessed to businesses for small devices 2" or 
· less in diameter of $75.00 and $90.00 for larger devices that are more than 2" in diameter. The fee is assessed to businesses 
that elect to have the City inspect theif device on an annual basis. 

Section 6. All uncollected taxes shall, when collected, be placed in the General Fund. 

Section 7. There is hereby levied an annual vehicle licensing tax of $10.00 per vehicle. This tax will b~ levied to · 
all vehicles listed within the City limits of Goldsboro. 

Section 8. All residenti~l developed property within the city limits will be charged $4.50 per month effective July 
1, 2019. Single family residential units 'Vill be charged $4.50 per month and multi-family and commercial properties will 
be billed based on their individual impervious area (ERU). The stormwater fee will be charged monthly on the utility bill. 

. - I 
_ Numberiof ERUs Monthly Rate PerERU 

First 60 (Includes Residential) $ 4.50 

61to100 $ 3.00 

101to150 $ 2.00 

Above1$o $ 1.00 

-:-.-

Cop
y



I • 

Section 9. The golf fees are as follows: (1) Cart Fees - $13 per rental; (2) Regular Golf Membership - $816 per 
year; (3) Senior Golf Membership - $684 per year; and ( 4) Junior Golf Membership - $684 per year. 

' 
Section 10. Utility Rates increaseias follows: 

a) The industrial bulk monthly water rate for customers using one million, five hundred thousand (1,500,000) 
gallons and over per year inside the City, shall increase ten percent (10%) from two dollars and thirteen 
cents ($2.13) per one thousand (1,000) gallons to two dollars and thirty four cents ($2.34); and four dollars 
and twenty-five cents ($4.25) per one hundred thousand (i,000) gallons for outside City customers. All 
customers shall be billed in ten (10) gallon increments. The new rates shall become effective with the July 
1, 2019 billing. 

b) All other utility rates, fees and charges previously established are hereby levied and heretofore established, 
authorized and adopted by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro. 

Section 11. All fees, permits, charges previously established are hereby levied at rates heretofore established, 
authorized and adopted by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro. 

Section 12. The following is a schedule of the estimated revenues anticipated by the City of Goldsboro for the 
Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2019, and ending June 30, 2020. 

FUND 
GENERAL.FUND 
Tax Revenues 
Licenses and Pennits 
Revenue from Other Agencies 
Charges fur Services 
Capital Investment Retmns 
Miscellaneous Revenues 
Appropriated Fund Balance 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

GENERAL FUND CAPITAL RESERVE 
Transfers In 
Appropriated Fund :Salance 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND CAPITAL RESERVE REVENUES 

REVENUE 

16,924,894 
385,888 

18,695,499 
4,974,549 
1,199,692 

490,322 
724,467 

43,395,311 

1,000 

1,000 

Cop
y

cgwynn
Highlight



ITEM_____________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

September 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Installment financing for Golf Turf Equipment with PNC Equipment 
Finance, LLC  

BACKGROUND: Staff brought a request to execute a new operating lease for six (6) pieces of 
golf turf equipment with PNC Equipment Finance at the August 5th meeting.  
This was due to the current 60 month lease having been executed on April 
7, 2014 and expired in May, 2019. The Board requested more information 
on the existing equipment and usage which was brought before the Board at 
the August 19th and September 9th meetings. 

DISCUSSION: At the September 9th meeting, the Board voted to allow staff to execute a 
capital lease with PNC Equipment Finance to lease-purchase the seven (7) 
pieces of equipment from the 2014 lease on a 2 year term for a total of 
$105,000.00. 

The lease payment will be $4,673.86 per month.  The funds for the 
equipment operating lease were appropriated in the FY19-20 budget under 
Equipment Rent (11-7461-4391), however since this is no longer an 
operating lease, but rather a capital lease it is necessary to appropriate the 
purchase of the capital outlay and the funding with debt revenue 
($105,000.00 total).  It will also require a reallocation of rent payments to 
debt payments ($4,673.86 @ 9 months for a total of $42,064.74).  This does 
not require approval by the LGC since it does not meet the criteria for 
approval. Since this is a capital lease PNC Equipment Finance does stipulate 
that formal Board approval is required. 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council adopt: 

1. The attached Resolution accepting the agreement with PNC Equipment
Finance, LLC for the purchase of used golf turf equipment from Smith
Turf & Irrigation and  incumbency certificate authorizing the Mayor or
the Finance Director to act on behalf of the City to execute the
appropriate financing documents.

2. Adopt the attached Operating Budget Amendment to appropriate the
expenditures and revenue for the purchase of the used golf turf
equipment in the amount of $ 105,000.00, and debt payments due for
the remainder of the fiscal year in the amount of $42,400.00 funded with
a reduction in rent expense.

Date: _______________________________________________ 
Catherine F. Gwynn, Finance Director 

Date: 
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

O



RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 
 

PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE, LLC CAPITAL LEASE FOR GOLF TURF EQUIPMENT 
 
At a duly called meeting of the governing body of Lessee held in accordance with all applicable legal requirements, 
including open meeting laws, on the 23rd day of September 2019, the following resolution was introduced and 
adopted: 
 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LEASE AGREEMENT, 
EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE, AND RELATED INSTRUMENTS, AND DETERMINING OTHER MATTERS IN 
CONNECTION THEREWITH. 
 
WHEREAS, the governing body of the CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NC, (“Lessee”) desires to obtain certain 
equipment (the “Equipment”) described in the Equipment Schedule to the Lease Agreement (collectively, the 
“Lease”) between PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE, LLC, (“Lessor”) and Lessee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Equipment is essential for Lessee to perform its governmental functions; and Lessee has 
determined that is may lawfully pledge its full faith and credit and taxing powers to its obligations under the Lease; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Lessee has satisfied the legal requirements and the execution and delivery of the Lease; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lessee proposes to enter into the Lease with PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE, LLC substantially in the 
forms presented to this meeting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF LESSEE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. It is hereby found and determined that the terms of the Lease and the Escrow Agreement (collectively, 
the “Financing Documents”) in substantially the forms presented to this meeting and incorporated in this resolution 
are in the best interests of Lessee for the acquisition of the Equipment. 
 
Section 2. The Financing Documents and the acquisition and financing of the Equipment under the terms and 
conditions as described in the Financing Documents are hereby approved. The Finance Director of Lessee and the 
Mayor of Lessee who shall have power to execute contracts on behalf of Lessee be, and each of them hereby is, 
authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Financing Documents with any changes, insertions and 
omissions therein as may be approved by the officers who execute the Financing Documents, such approval to be 
conclusively evidenced by such execution and delivery of the Financing Documents. The City Clerk of  Lessee  and 
any other officer of Lessee who shall have power to do so be, and each of them hereby is, authorized to affix the 
official seal of Lessee to the Financing Documents and attest the same. 
 
Section 3. The proper officers of Lessee be, and each of them hereby is, authorized and directed to execute and 
deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, certificates, affidavits and other documents and to do or cause to 
be done any and all other acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out this resolution and the Financing 
Documents. 
 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
The undersigned further certifies that the above resolution has not been repealed or amended and remains in full 
force and effect and further certifies that the Lease and Escrow Agreement executed on behalf of Lessee are the 
same as presented at such meeting of the governing body of Lessee, excepting only such changes, insertions and 
omissions as shall have been approved by the officers who executed the same. 
 
DATE:  September  _______, 2019   CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NC, 
      Lessee 
      BY: ___________________________________ 
      Name: Chuck Allen 

Title: Mayor 
 
 
      Attested By: __________________________________ 
      Name: Melissa Capps 
      Title: City Clerk 
 
  



1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019 - 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ANNUAL OPERATING  BUDGET ORDINANCE OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2019-20 FISCAL YEAR 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the FY2019-2020 Annual 
Operating Budget on June 17, 2019; and 

WHEREAS, amendments may become necessary as circumstances arise, and it is necessary to 
amend the General Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro operates a municipal golf course to 
provide cultural and recreational activities for the citizens of Goldsboro and Wayne County, and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to provide for the maintenance of the turf with multiple pieces of 
specialized golf turf equipment; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has authorized the execution of an installment financing contract in the 
form of a two year capital lease with PNC Equipment Finance, LLC for the purchase of seven pieces of 
used golf turf equipment; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures for the purchase of the capital equipment, 
and this will be funded with an appropriation of debt revenue within the General Fund; and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate expenditures for the debt payments which shall be paid 
in advance monthly, and this will be funded with a reduction of rent expense within the Golf division of 
the Parks and Recreation department. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that the Budget Ordinance for the 2019-20 Fiscal Year is and hereby, amended by: 

General Fund 
1. Establishing a revenue line item “Loan Proceeds” (11-0005-8267) in the amount of $105,000.00.

2. Establishing an expenditure line item “Golf Course Equipment (11-7461-5938) in the amount of
$105,000.00.

3. Establishing an expenditure line item “Golf Course Equipment Loan” (11-8111-7131) in the
amount of $42,400.00.

4. Reducing an expenditure line item “Equipment Rent”  (11-7461-4391) in the amount of
$42,400.00.

5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after _____________________.

_____________________________ 
Mayor 

Attest: _________________________ 
City Clerk 



Quoted To: Quoted From:

Mr. Joe Martikke Charlotte Office

City of Goldsboro 4355 Golf Acres Dr

Charlotte, NC 28208

Account Executive: Matt Sorrell

919-207-7909

Qty Model Description Unit Price  Extended  

Currently Leased Equipment

1 Toro Greensmaster 3150-Q $12,250.00

1 Toro Greensmaster 3150-Q $12,250.00

1 Toro Reelmaster 5510 $19,500.00

1 Toro Reelmaster 5510 $19,500.00

1 Toro Groundsmaster 4500 $24,000.00

1 Toro Groundsmaster 3500-D $9,000.00

1 Toro Groundsmaster 3280-D 2WD $8,500.00

Prices Do Not Include Sales Tax

Payment Terms: Net 10th Prox (Upon Credit Approval) Sub Total

 Est. Sales Tax

Total

Quote Prepared By:   Matt Sorrell Date:  8/5/2019

Quote Accepted By:   Date:  

EQUIPMENT QUOTATION

Prices And Payment Terms Shown Will Be Valid For 30 Days From Date

Quoted. After This Period, We Reserve The Right To Make Any Necessary

Adjustments To Prices And/Or Payment Terms.

Total End of Term Equipment Purchase- $105,000 Plus Tax

24 Month $1 Buyout Monthly Payment- $4,673.86 Plus Tax

With this option, The City of Goldsboro would own 

this equipment at the end of the 24 months.



C03

September 17, 2019

Lease Number 1188013-2

City of Goldsboro 
200 NORTH CENTER STREET
GOLDSBORO, NC 27530

Enclosed are the necessary documents needed to complete your lease transaction.  Please review, sign and return the following:

 Lease – Purchase Agreement – Please have the Authorized Signor execute the documents and provide their title.
Opinion of Counsel – Please have your attorney sign and provide the name of the law firm, if applicable.
Certificate of Acceptance – At the point of delivery, fill out this form and return the original to us. We will be unable to disburse
funds until we receive this signed form.  
Schedule of Payments – Please sign and provide the title of the signor.

 Resolution-Certificate of Incumbency – List your Authorized Representative(s) and their title(s) in the body of the Resolution. Have the
Authorized Representatives provide their names, title and signatures(s) on the lines which appear under the Authorized Representative
Signature Section near the bottom of the Resolution. Finally, have the Secretary or appropriate Trustee attest to the information of the
Authorized Representative(s) by signing and printing his/her name, title and date on the last signature line provided. The person who
validates the signature should not sign the Lease Agreement. The Resolution must reflect the title(s) of the individual(s) who have
authorization to sign the documents.

 Insurance Request Form – Fill in your insurer’s information and sign. Please contact your insurer, prior to delivery, to obtain a certificate of
insurance.  Please enclose the certificate with the signed documentation or have the insurer fax the certificate directly to me.

 IRS Form 8038-G or 8038GC – Please sign, date and include the title of the signor.

 PNC Automatic Payment Authorization Form – Optional.

 Copy of Vendor Invoices – Vendor should send invoices directly to PNC with “Ship To” and “Bill To” in Lessee’s name.

 Sales Tax Exemption Certificate – Please return a copy with the documents.

 Minutes of Governing Body (approving the purchase & finance of equipment) – Please return a copy with the documents.

 Invoice for advance payment – Please send your check in the amount of $4,923.86, made payable to PNC Equipment Finance, LLC.

Please return the documents to PNC Equipment Finance, LLC, Attn: Staysi  Garcia  Morillo 655 Business Center Drive, Horsham, PA 19044 in the
postage paid envelope enclosed.

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to adjust the payment factors in the enclosed documentation to 
reflect any changes in market conditions up to the date of funding.

Our goal is to ensure that you receive the lowest payment available. Therefore, it is important that the documents are completed and returned by
October 17, 2019.

If you have any questions please contact Staysi Garcia Morillo at (267) 960-4076.

Sincerely,

Staysi Garcia Morillo
Commercial Transaction Coordinator



E04

Lease-Purchase Agreement Dated as of __________, 20___

Lease Number: 1188013-2

Lessor: PNC Equipment Finance, LLC
655 Business Center Dr.
Horsham, PA 19044

Lessee: LESSEE FULL LEGAL NAME FEDERAL TAX ID

City of Goldsboro 566000228
200 NORTH CENTER STREET
GOLDSBORO, NC 27530

Equipment See attached Certificate of Acceptance for Equipment Description
Description

Rent Lease Term is for 24 months, with Rent payments due in

Payment Advance  monthly;  quarterly; semi-annual; annually;

Schedule each in the amount of $4,673.86 beginning______________.

Lessee shall pay Rent payments exclusively from legally available funds in U.S. currency to Lessor in the amounts and on the
dates set forth herein, without notice or demand.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. LEASE.  Subject to the terms of this Lease, Lessee agrees to lease from Lessor the equipment (“Equipment”) described in the attached Certificate of
Acceptance when Lessor accepts this Lease.  Lessee agrees to be bound by all the terms of this Lease.
2. DELIVERY AND ACCEPTANCE OF EQUIPMENT.  Acceptance of the Equipment occurs upon delivery.  When Lessee receives the Equipment,
Lessee agrees to inspect it and to verify by telephone or in writing such information as Lessor may require.  Delivery and installation costs are Lessee’s
responsibility.  If Lessee signed a purchase contract for the Equipment, by signing this Lease Lessee assigns its rights, but none of its obligations under the
purchase contract, to Lessor.
3. RENT.  Lessee agrees to pay Lessor Rent (plus applicable taxes) in the amount and frequency stated above.  If Lessee’s Rent payments are due in
Advance, Lessee’s first Rent payment is due on the date Lessee accepts the Equipment under the Lease.  Lessor will advise Lessee as to (a) the due date of
each Rent payment, and (b) the address to which Lessee must send payments.  Rent is due whether or not Lessee receives an invoice from Lessor.  Lessee will
pay Lessor any required advance rent when Lessee signs this Lease.  Lessee authorizes Lessor to change the Rent by not more than 15% due to changes in the
Equipment configuration, which may occur prior to Lessor’s acceptance of this Lease.  Restrictive endorsements on checks Lessee sends to Lessor will not
reduce Lessee’s obligations to Lessor.  Unless a proper exemption certificate is provided, applicable sales and use taxes will be added to the Rent.
NON-APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS.  Lessee intends to remit all Rent and other payments to Lessor for the full Lease Term if funds are legally available.
In the event Lessee is not granted an appropriation of funds at any time during the Lease Term for the Equipment subject to this Lease and operating funds are
not otherwise available to Lessee to pay the Rent and other payments due and to become due under this Lease, and there is no other legal procedure or
available funds by or with which payment can be made to Lessor, and the non-appropriation did not result from an act or omission by Lessee, Lessee shall have
the right to return the Equipment in accordance with Section 16 of the Lease and terminate this Lease on the last day of the fiscal period for which
appropriations were received without penalty or expense to Lessee, except as the portion of Rent for which funds shall have been appropriated and budgeted.
At least 30 days prior to the end of Lessee’s fiscal year, Lessee’s chief executive officer (or legal counsel) shall certify in writing that (a) funds have not been
appropriated for the upcoming fiscal period, (b) such non-appropriation did not result from any act or failure to act by Lessee, and (c) Lessee has exhausted all
funds legally available for the payment of Rent.
4. UNCONDITIONAL OBLIGATION.  LESSEE AGREES THAT IT IS UNCONDITIONALLY OBLIGATED TO PAY ALL RENT AND ANY
OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE IN ALL FISCAL YEARS IN WHICH FUNDS HAVE BEEN APPROPRIATED NO MATTER
WHAT HAPPENS, EVEN IF THE EQUIPMENT IS DAMAGED OR DESTROYED, IF IT IS DEFECTIVE OR IF LESSEE HAS TEMPORARY
OR PERMANENT LOSS OF ITS USE.  LESSEE IS NOT ENTITLED TO ANY REDUCTION OR SET-OFF AGAINST RENT OR OTHER
AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THIS LEASE FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER.
5. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES.  THE EQUIPMENT IS BEING LEASED TO LESSEE IN “AS IS” CONDITION.  LESSEE AGREES
THAT LESSOR HAS NOT MANUFACTURED THE EQUIPMENT AND THAT LESSEE HAS SELECTED THE EQUIPMENT BASED UPON
LESSEE’S OWN JUDGMENT.  LESSEE HAS NOT RELIED ON ANY STATEMENTS LESSOR OR ITS EMPLOYEES HAVE MADE. LESSOR
HAS NOT MADE AND DOES NOT MAKE ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES WHATSOEVER,
INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE EQUIPMENT’S  MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE,
SUITABILITY, DESIGN, CONDITION, DURABILITY, OPERATION, QUALITY OF MATERIALS OR WORKMANSHIP, OR COMPLIANCE
WITH SPECIFICATIONS OR APPLICABLE LAW.  Lessee is aware of the name of the Equipment manufacturer and Lessee will contact the
manufacturer for a description of Lessee’s warranty rights.  If the manufacturer has provided Lessor with a warranty, Lessor assigns its rights to such warranty
to Lessee and Lessee may enforce all warranty rights directly against the manufacturer of the Equipment.  Lessee agrees to settle any dispute regarding
performance of the Equipment directly with the manufacturer of the Equipment.
6. TITLE AND SECURITY INTEREST.  Unless otherwise required by the laws of the state where Lessee is located, Lessee shall have title to the
Equipment immediately upon delivery and shall be deemed to be the owner of the Equipment as long as Lessee is not in default under this Lease.  In the event
of a default, title to the Equipment shall revert to Lessor free and clear of any rights or interest Lessee may have in the Equipment.  To secure all of Lessee’s



obligations to Lessor under this Lease Lessee hereby grants Lessor a security interest in (a) the Equipment to the extent of Lessee’s interest in the Equipment,
(b) anything attached, added, replaced and/or substituted to the Equipment at any time, (c) any money or property from the sale of the Equipment, and (d) any
money from an insurance claim if the Equipment is lost or damaged.  Lessee agrees that the security interest will not be affected if this Lease is changed in any
way.
7. USE, MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR.  Lessee will not move the Equipment from the Equipment Location without Lessor’s advance written consent.
Lessee will give Lessor reasonable access to the Equipment Location so that Lessor can check the Equipment’s existence, condition and proper maintenance.
Lessee will use the Equipment in the manner for which it was intended, as required by all applicable manuals and instructions, and keep it eligible for any
manufacturer’s certification and/or standard full service maintenance contract.  At Lessee’s own cost and expense, Lessee will keep the Equipment in good
repair, condition and working order, ordinary wear and tear excepted.  Lessee will not make any permanent alterations to the Equipment.
8. TAXES.  Lessee agrees to pay Lessor, when invoiced, all taxes (including any sales, use and personal property taxes), fines, interest and penalties relating
to this Lease and the Equipment (excluding taxes based on Lessor’s net income).  Lessee agrees to file any required personal property tax returns and, if Lessor
asks, Lessee will provide Lessor with proof of payment.  Lessor does not have to contest any tax assessments.
9. INDEMNITY.  Lessor is not responsible for any injuries, damages, penalties, claims or losses, inducing legal expenses, incurred by Lessee or any other
person caused by the transportation, installation, manufacture, selection, purchase, lease, ownership, possession, modification, maintenance, condition,
operation, use, return or disposition of the Equipment.  To the extent permitted by law, Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor for and defend Lessor against any
claims for such losses, damages, penalties, claims, injuries, or expenses.  This indemnity continues even after this Lease has expired, for acts or omissions that
occurred during the Lease Term.
10. IDENTIFICATION.  Lessee authorizes Lessor to insert or correct missing information on this Lease, including Lessee’s official name, serial numbers
and any other information describing the Equipment.  Lessor will send Lessee copies of such changes.  Lessee will attach to the Equipment any name plates or
stickers Lessor provides Lessee.
11. LOSS OR DAMAGE.  Lessee is responsible for any loss of the Equipment from any cause at all, whether or not insured, from the time the Equipment is
shipped to Lessee until it is returned to Lessor.  If any item of Equipment is lost, stolen or damaged, Lessee will promptly notify Lessor of such event.  Then, at
Lessor’s option, Lessee will either (a) repair the Equipment so that it is in good condition and working order, eligible for any manufacturer’s certification, or
(b) pay Lessor an amount equal to the Net Book Value (as defined in Section 14) of the lost, stolen or damaged Equipment.  If Lessee has satisfied their
obligations under this Section 11, Lessor will forward to Lessee any insurance proceeds which Lessor receives for lost, damaged, or destroyed Equipment.  If
Lessee is in default, Lessor will apply any insurance proceeds Lessor receives to reduce Lessee’s obligations under Section 14 of this Lease.
12. INSURANCE.  Lessee agrees to (a) keep the Equipment fully insured against loss, naming Lessor as loss payee, and (b) obtain a general public liability
insurance policy covering both personal injury and property damage in amounts not less than Lessor may tell Lessee, naming Lessor as additional insured, until
Lessee has met all their obligations under this Lease.  Lessor is under no duty to tell Lessee if Lessee’s insurance coverage is adequate.  The policies shall state
that Lessor is to be notified of any proposed cancellation at least 30 days prior to the date set for cancellation.  Upon Lessor’s request, Lessee agrees to provide
Lessor with certificates or other evidence of insurance acceptable to Lessor.  If Lessee does not provide Lessor with evidence of proper insurance within ten
days of Lessor’s request or Lessor receives notice of policy cancellation, Lessor may (but Lessor is not obligated to) obtain insurance on Lessor’s interest in the
Equipment at Lessee’s expense.  Lessee will pay all insurance premiums and related charges.
13. DEFAULT.  Lessee will be in default under this Lease if any of the following happens: (a) Lessor does not receive any Rent or other payment due under
this Lease within ten days after its due date, (b) Lessee fails to perform or observe any other promise or obligation in this Lease and does not correct the default
within ten days after Lessor sends Lessee written notice of default,  (c) any representation, warranty or statement Lessee has made in this Lease shall prove to
have been false or misleading in any material respect, (d) any insurance carrier cancels or threatens to cancel any insurance on the Equipment, (e) the
Equipment or any part of it is abused, illegally used, misused, lost, destroyed, or damaged beyond repair, (f) a petition is filed by or against Lessee under any
bankruptcy or insolvency laws, or (g) Lessee defaults on any other agreement between it and Lessor (or Lessor’s affiliates).
14. REMEDIES.  Upon the occurrence of a default, Lessor may, in its sole discretion, do any or all of the following:  (a) provide written notice to Lessee of
default, (b) as liquidated damages for loss of a bargain and not as a penalty, declare due and payable, the present value of (i) any and all amounts which may be
then due and payable by Lessee to Lessor under this Lease, plus (ii) all Rent payments remaining through the end of the then current fiscal year, discounted at
the higher of 3% or the lowest rate allowed by law (collectively, the “Net Book Value”) and (c) require Lessee to immediately return the Equipment to Lessor.
Lessor has the right to require Lessee to make the Equipment available to Lessor for repossession during reasonable business hours or Lessor may repossess the
Equipment, so long as Lessor does not breach the peace in doing so, or Lessor may use legal process in compliance with applicable law pursuant to court order
to have the Equipment repossessed.  Lessee will not make any claims against Lessor or the Equipment for trespass, damage or any other reason.  If Lessor takes
possession of the Equipment Lessor may (a) sell or lease the Equipment at public or private sale or lease, and/or (b) exercise such other rights as may be
allowed by applicable law.  Although Lessee agrees that Lessor has no obligation to sell the Equipment, if Lessor does sell the Equipment, Lessor will reduce
the Net Book Value by the amounts Lessor receives.  Lessee will immediately pay Lessor the remaining Net Book Value.  Lessee agrees (a) that Lessor only
needs to give Lessee ten days’ advance notice of any sale and no notice of advertising, (b) to pay all of the costs Lessor incurs to enforce Lessor’s rights against
Lessee, including attorney’s fees, and (c) that Lessor will retain all of Lessor’s rights against Lessee even if Lessor does not choose to enforce them at the time
of Lessee’s default.
15. LESSEE’S OPTION AT END OF LEASE.  Provided Lessee is not in default, upon expiration of the Lease Term, Lessee has the option to purchase all
but not less than all of the Equipment for $1.00 (plus all sales and other applicable taxes).
16. RETURN OF EQUIPMENT.  If (a) default occurs, or (b) a non-appropriation of funds occurs in accordance with Section 3, Lessee will immediately
return the Equipment to any location(s) in the continental United States and aboard any carriers(s) Lessor may designate.  The Equipment must be properly
packed for shipment in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendations or specifications, freight prepaid and insured, maintained in accordance with
Section 7, and in “Average Saleable Condition.”  “Average Saleable Condition” means that all of the Equipment is immediately available for use by a third
party buyer, user or lessee, other than Lessee named in this Lease, without the need for any repair or refurbishment.  All Equipment must be free of markings.
Lessee will pay Lessor for any missing or defective parts or accessories.  Lessee will continue to pay Rent until the Equipment is received and accepted by
Lessor.
17. LESSEE’S REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES.  Lessee hereby represents and warrants to Lessor that as of the date of this Lease, and
throughout the Lease Term:  (a) Lessee is the entity indicated in this Lease; (b) Lessee is a State or a fully constituted political subdivision or agency of the
State in which Lessee is located; (c) Lessee is duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State in which they are located; (d) Lessee is
authorized to enter into and carry out Lessee’s obligations under this Lease, any documents relative to the acquisition of the Equipment and any other
documents required to be delivered in connection with this Lease (collectively, the “Documents”); (e) the Documents have been duly authorized, executed and
delivered by Lessee in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances, and regulations, the Documents are valid, legal, binding agreements, enforceable
in accordance with their terms and the person(s) signing the Documents have the authority to do so, are acting with the full authorization of Lessee’s governing
body, and hold the offices indicated below their signature, each of which are genuine; (f) the Equipment is essential to the immediate performance of a
governmental or proprietary function by Lessee within the scope of Lessee’s authority and shall be used during the Lease Term only by Lessee and only to



perform such function; (g) Lessee intends to use the Equipment for the entire Lease Term and shall take all necessary action to include in Lessee’s annual
budget any funds required to fulfill Lessee’s obligations for each fiscal year during the Lease Term; (h) Lessee has complied fully with all applicable law
governing open meetings, public bidding and appropriations required in connection  with this Lease and the acquisition of the Equipment; (i) Lessee’s
obligations to remit Rent under this Lease constitutes a current expense and not a debt under applicable state law and no provision of this Lease constitutes a
pledge of Lessee’s tax or general revenues, and any provision which is so constructed by a court of competent jurisdiction is void from the inception of this
lease; (j) all payments due and to become due during Lessee’s current fiscal year are within the fiscal budget of such year, and are included within an
unrestricted and unencumbered appropriation currently available for the lease/purchase of the Equipment; (k) Lessee shall not do or cause to be done any act
which shall cause, or by omission of any act allow the interest portion of any Rent payment to become includible in Lessor’s gross income for Federal income
taxation purposes under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (the “Code”); (l) Lessee shall maintain a complete and accurate record of all
assignments of this Lease in the form sufficient to comply with the book entry requirements of Section 149(a) of the Code and the regulations prescribed there
under from time to time; (m) Lessee shall comply with the information reporting requirements of Section 149(e) of the Code; such compliance shall include,
but not be limited to, the execution of IRS Form 8038-G or 8038-GC; and (n) all financial information Lessee has provided to Lessor is true and accurate and
provides a good representation of Lessee’s financial condition.
18. LESSEE’S PROMISES.  In addition to the other provisions of this Lease, Lessee agrees that during the term of this Lease (a) Lessee will promptly
notify Lessor in writing if it moves its principal office or changes its name or legal structure, (b) Lessee will provide to Lessor such financial information as
may reasonably request from time to time, and (c) Lessee will take any action Lessor reasonably requests to protect Lessor’s rights in the Equipment and to
meet Lessee’s obligations under this Lease.
19. ASSIGNMENT.  LESSEE WILL NOT SELL, TRANSFER, ASSIGN, PLEDGE, SUB-LEASE OR PART WITH POSSESSION OF THE
EQUIPMENT OR FILE OR PERMIT A LIEN TO BE FILED AGAINST THE EQUIPMENT.  Lessee will not attach any of the Equipment to any real
estate.  Upon Lessor’s reasonable request and at Lessee’s cost, Lessee will obtain from each person having an interest in the real estate where the Equipment is
located a waiver of any rights they may have in the Equipment.   
20. ASSIGNMENT BY LESSOR.  This Lease, and the rights of Lessor hereunder and in and to the Equipment, may be assigned and reassigned in whole or
in part to one or more assignees by Lessor or its assigns at any time without the necessity of obtaining the consent of Lessee; provided, however, no such
assignment or reassignment shall be effective unless and until Lessee shall have been given written notice of assignment disclosing the name and address of the
assignee or its agent authorized to receive payments and otherwise service this Lease on its behalf.  Upon receipt of notice of assignment, Lessee agrees to
record the same in records maintained for such purpose, and further, to make all payments as designated in the assignment, notwithstanding any claim, defense,
setoff or counterclaim whatsoever (whether arising from a breach of this Lease or otherwise) that Lessee may from time to time have against Lessor or Lessor's
assigns.  Lessee agrees to execute all documents, including acknowledgments of assignment, which may reasonably be requested by Lessor or its assigns to
protect their interests in the Equipment and in this Lease.
21. COLLECTION EXPENSES, OVERDUE PAYMENT, TERMINATION.  Lessee agrees that Lessor can, but does not have to, take on Lessee’s behalf
any action which Lessee fails to take as required by this Lease, and Lessor’s expenses will be in addition to that of the Rent which Lessee owes Lessor.  If
Lessor receives any payment from Lessee after the due date, Lessee shall pay Lessor on demand as a late charge 5% of such overdue amount, limited, however,
to the maximum amount allowed by law.  Upon 30 days’ prior written notice by Lessee to Lessor, and so long as there is no Event of Default then existing,
Lessee shall have the option to purchase all, but not less than all, of the Equipment covered by the Lease on any Rent Payment due date by paying to Lessor all
Rent Payments then due (including accrued interest, if any) plus the Termination Value amount set forth on the Payment Schedule to the applicable Lease for
such date.  Upon satisfaction by Lessee of such purchase conditions, Lessor shall release its Lien on such Equipment and Lessee shall retain its title to such
Equipment “as is, where is,” without representation or warranty by Lessor, express or implied, except for a representation that such Equipment is free and clear
of any Liens created by Lessor.  
22. AGREED LEASE RATE FACTOR.  Lessee understands that the Equipment may be purchased for cash (the “Equipment Cost”) or it may be leased.
By signing this Lease, Lessee acknowledges that it has chosen to lease the Equipment from Lessor for the Lease Term and that Lessee has agreed to pay Rent.
Each payment of Rent includes a principal amount based on the Equipment Cost and a lease charge rate.  If it is determined that Lessee’s payments under this
Lease result in an interest payment higher than allowed by applicable law, then any excess interest collected will be applied to the repayment of principal and
interest will be charged at the highest rate allowed by law.  In no event will Lessor charge or receive or will Lessee pay any amounts in excess of the legal
amount.
23. MISCELLANEOUS.  This Lease contains the entire agreement and supersedes any conflicting provision of any equipment purchase order or any other
agreement.  TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE IN THIS LEASE.  If a court finds any provision of Lease to be unenforceable, the remaining terms of this Lease
shall remain in effect.  THIS LEASE IS A “FINANCE LEASE” AS DEFINED IN ARTICLE 2A OF THE UNIFORM COMMERCIAL CODE.  Lessee
authorizes Lessor (or Lessor’s agent) to (a) obtain credit reports, (b) make such other credit inquires as Lessor may deem necessary, and (c) furnish payment
history information to credit reporting agencies.  To the extent permitted by law, Lessor may charge Lessee a fee of $250.00 to cover Lessor’s documentation
and investigation costs.
24. NOTICES.  All of Lessee’s written notices to Lessor must be sent by certified mail or recognized overnight delivery service, postage prepaid, to Lessor at
Lessor’s address stated in this Lease, or by facsimile transmission to Lessor’s facsimile telephone number, with oral confirmation of receipt.  All of Lessor’s
notices to Lessee may be sent first class mail, postage prepaid, to Lessee’s address stated in this Lease.  At any time after this Lease is signed, Lessee or Lessor
may change an address or facsimile telephone number by giving notice to the other of the change.
25. ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING/INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMPLIANCE.  Lessee represents and warrants to Lessor, as of the date of this
Lease, the date of each advance of proceeds under the Lease, the date of any renewal, extension or modification of this Lease, and at all times until the Lease
has been terminated and all amounts thereunder have been indefeasibly paid in full, that:  (a) no Covered Entity (i) is a Sanctioned Person; or (ii) does business
in or with, or derives any of its operating income from investments in or transactions with, any Sanctioned Country or Sanctioned Person in violation of any
law, regulation, order or directive enforced by any Compliance Authority; (b) the proceeds of the Lease will not be used to fund any unlawful activity; (c) the
funds used to repay the Lease are not derived from any unlawful activity; and (d) each Covered Entity is in compliance with, and no Covered Entity engages in
any dealings or transactions prohibited by, any laws of the United States.  
As used herein:  “Compliance Authority” means each and all of the (a) U.S. Treasury Department/Office of Foreign Assets Control, (b) U.S. Treasury
Department/Financial Crimes Enforcement Network, (c) U.S. State Department/Directorate of Defense Trade Controls, (d) U.S. Commerce
Department/Bureau of Industry and Security, (e) U.S. Internal Revenue Service, (f) U.S. Justice Department, and (g) U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission; “Covered Entity” means Lessee, its affiliates and subsidiaries and direct and indirect owners; “Sanctioned Country” means a country subject to
a sanctions program maintained by any Compliance Authority; and “Sanctioned Person” means any individual person, group, regime, entity or thing listed or
otherwise recognized as a specially designated, prohibited, sanctioned or debarred person or entity, or subject to any limitations or prohibitions (including but
not limited to the blocking of property or rejection of transactions), under any order or directive of any Compliance Authority or otherwise subject to, or
specially designated under, any sanctions program maintained by any Compliance Authority. 



26. USA PATRIOT ACT NOTICE.  To help the government fight the funding of terrorism and money laundering activities, Federal law requires all
financial institutions to obtain, verify and record information that identifies each lessee that opens an account.  What this means:  when the Lessee opens an
account, Lessor will ask for the business name, business address, taxpayer identifying number and other information that will allow the Lessor to identify
Lessee, such as organizational documents.  For some businesses and organizations, Lessor may also need to ask for identifying information and documentation
relating to certain individuals associated with the business or organization.
27. WAIVERS.  LESSOR AND LESSEE EACH AGREE TO WAIVE, AND TO TAKE ALL REQUIRED STEPS TO WAIVE, ALL RIGHTS TO A
JURY TRIAL.  To the extent Lessee is permitted by applicable law, Lessee waives all rights and remedies conferred upon a lessee by Article 2A (Sections
508-522) of the Uniform Commercial Code including but not limited to Lessee’s rights to:  (a) cancel or repudiate this Lease; (b) reject or revoke acceptance of
the Equipment; (c) recover damages from Lessor for any breach of warranty or for any other reason; (d) grant a security interest in any Equipment in Lessee’s
possession.  To the extent Lessee is permitted by applicable law, Lessee waives any rights they now or later may have under any statute or otherwise which
requires Lessor to sell or otherwise use any Equipment to reduce Lessor’s damages, which requires Lessor to provide Lessee with notice of default, intent to
accelerate amounts becoming due or acceleration of amounts becoming due, or which may otherwise limit or modify any of Lessor’s rights or remedies.  ANY
ACTION LESSEE TAKES AGAINST LESSOR FOR ANY DEFAULT, INCLUDING BREACH OF WARRANTY OR INDEMNITY, MUST BE
STARTED WITHIN ONE YEAR AFTER THE EVENT, WHICH CAUSED IT.  Lessor will not be liable for specific performance of this Lease or for any
losses, damages, delay or failure to deliver Equipment.
28. SMALL ISSUER STATEMENT.  Lessee hereby certifies to Lessor and its assigns that:  a) the Lessee designates the Lease as a “Qualified Tax-Exempt
Obligation” for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code; b) Lessee will own and operate the Equipment in the performance of its public purposes; and the
Equipment will not be subject to the use or control of any other entity; c) Lessee will not designate more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations during the
current calendar year as “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligation”, Lessee reasonably expects to issue no more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations during
the current calendar year; and d) For purposes of Paragraph 3 herein above, the amount of tax-exempt obligations stated as either issued or designated as
“Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations” includes tax-exempt obligations issued by all subordinate entities of Lessee, as provided in Section 265 (b) (3) (E) of the
Code. 
29. IMPORTANT INFORMATION ABOUT PHONE CALLS.  By providing telephone number(s) to Lessor, now or at any later time, Lessee authorizes
Lessor and its affiliates and designees to contact Lessee regarding Lessee account(s) with Lessor or its affiliates, whether such accounts are Lessee individual
accounts or business accounts for which Lessee is a contact, at such numbers using any means, including but not limited to placing calls using an automated
dialing system to cell, VoIP or other wireless phone number, or leaving prerecorded messages or sending text messages, even if charges may be incurred for
the calls or text messages.  Lessee consents that any phone call with Lessor may be monitored or recorded by Lessor.

IMPORTANT:  READ BEFORE SIGNING.  THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE SHOULD BE READ CAREFULLY BECAUSE ONLY THOSE
TERMS IN WRITING ARE ENFORCEABLE.  TERMS OR ORAL PROMISES WHICH ARE NOT CONTAINED IN THIS WRITTEN
AGREEMENT MAY NOT BE LEGALLY ENFORCED.  THE TERMS OF THIS LEASE MAY ONLY BE CHANGED BY ANOTHER WRITTEN
AGREEMENT BETWEEN LESSEE AND LESSOR.  LESSEE AGREES TO COMPLY WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS
LEASE.  LESSEE AGREES THAT THE EQUIPMENT WILL BE USED FOR BUSINESS PURPOSES ONLY AND NOT FOR PERSONAL,
FAMILY OR HOUSEHOLD PURPOSES.

LESSEE CERTIFIES THAT ALL THE INFORMATION GIVEN IN THIS LEASE AND LESSEE’S APPLICATION WAS CORRECT AND
COMPLETE WHEN THIS LEASE WAS SIGNED.  THIS LEASE IS NOT BINDING UPON LESSOR OR EFFECTIVE UNLESS AND UNTIL
LESSOR EXECUTES THIS LEASE.  THIS LEASE WILL BE GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF THE LESSEE.  

City of Goldsboro
(“Lessee”)

X                                                                
Authorized Signature

_______________________________________
Print Name

_______________________________________
Title:

                                                                                
Date

200 NORTH CENTER STREET
GOLDSBORO,NC27530

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC
(“Lessor”)

X                                                                
Authorized Signature

_______________________________________
Print Name

_______________________________________
Title:

655 Business Center Dr.
Horsham PA 19044

OPINION OF COUNSEL

I have acted as counsel to the above-referenced Lessee (“Lessee”) with respect to this Lease-Purchase Agreement by and between the Lessee and Lessor (the
“Lease”), and in this capacity have reviewed the original or duplicate originals of the Lease and such other documents as I have deemed relevant.  Based upon
the foregoing, I am of the opinion that:  (A) Lessee is a state or a fully constituted political subdivision or agency of a state within the meaning of Section 103
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; (B) the execution, delivery and performance of the Lease by Lessee has been duly authorized by all
necessary action on the part of Lessee; (C) the Lease constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of Lessee enforceable in accordance with its terms, except
as limited by laws of general application affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights, and does not constitute a debt of Lessee which is prohibited by state
law; (D) the authorization, approval and execution of the Lease and all other proceedings of Lessee related to the transactions contemplated thereby have been
performed in accordance with all open-meeting laws, public bidding laws, and all other applicable state laws.  The undersigned certifies that (s)he is an
attorney duly authorized to practice law in the State of North Carolina.

The foregoing opinions are limited to the laws of such State and federal laws of the United States.

Attorney of Lessee

By:                                                                                                

Print Name:                                                                                 

Law firm:                                                                                    



E24

RESOLUTION AND CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY
Lease Number 1188013-2

Lessee:  City of Goldsboro

Amount:  $112,172.64

WHEREAS, Lessee, a body politic and corporate duly organized and existing as a political subdivision, municipal corporation or similar public entity of the State or
Commonwealth (the “State”) is authorized by the laws of the State to purchase, acquire and lease certain equipment and other property for the benefit of the
Lessee and its inhabitants and to enter into contracts with respect thereto; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to applicable law, the governing body of the Lessee (“Governing Body”) is authorized to acquire, dispose of and encumber real and personal
property, including, without limitation, rights and interest in property, leases and easements necessary to the functions or operations of the Lessee.

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby finds and determines that the execution of one or more Lease-Purchase Agreements or lease schedules (“Leases”) in the
principal amount not exceeding the amount stated above for the purpose of acquiring the property (“Equipment”) to be described in the Leases is appropriate and
necessary to the functions and operations of the Lessee.

WHEREAS, PNC Equipment Finance, LLC (“Lessor”) shall act as Lessor under said Leases.

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Ordained by the Governing Body of the Lessee:

Section 1. Either one of the _______________________ OR _______________________ (each an “Authorized Representative”) acting on behalf of the Lessee,
is hereby authorized to negotiate, enter into, execute, and deliver one or more Leases in substantially the form set forth in the document presently before the
Governing Body, which document is available for public inspection at the office of the Lessee. Each Authorized Representative acting on behalf of the Lessee is
hereby authorized to negotiate, enter into, execute, and deliver such other documents relating to the Lease as the Authorized Representative deems necessary
and appropriate.  All other related contracts and agreements necessary and incidental to the Leases are hereby authorized.

Section 2. By a written instrument signed by any Authorized Representative, said Authorized Representative may designate specifically identified officers or
employees of the Lessee to execute and deliver agreements and documents relating to the Leases on behalf of the Lessee.

Section 3. The aggregate original principal amount of the Leases shall not exceed the amount stated above and shall bear interest as set forth in the Leases and
the Leases shall contain such options to purchase by the Lessee as set forth therein.

Section 4. The Lessee’s obligations under the Leases shall be subject to annual appropriation or renewal by the Governing Body as set forth in each Lease and
the Lessee’s obligations under the Leases shall not constitute general obligations of the Lessee or indebtedness under the Constitution or laws of the State.

Section 5. As to each Lease, the Lessee reasonably anticipates to issue not more than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (other than “private activity bonds”
which are not “qualified 501(c)(3) bonds”) during the fiscal year in which each such Lease is issued and hereby designates each Lease as a qualified tax-exempt
obligation for purposes of Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 6.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and approval.

SIGNATURES AND TITLES OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES:  AUTHORIZED LEASE SIGNORS ONLY

________________________________

Name

________________________________

Title

________________________________

Signature

________________________________

Name

________________________________

Title

________________________________

Signature

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this ________________, 20__.

Section 7. I, the undersigned Secretary/Clerk identified below, does hereby certify that I am the duly elected or appointed and acting Secretary/Clerk of the above
Lessee, a political subdivision duly organized and existing under the laws of the State where Lessee is located, that I have the title stated below, and that, as of the
date hereof, the individuals named below are the duly elected or appointed officers of the Lessee holding the offices set forth opposite their respective names.

The undersigned Secretary/Clerk of the above-named Lessee hereby certifies and attests that the undersigned has access to the official records of the Governing
Body of the Lessee, that the foregoing resolutions were duly adopted by said Governing Body of the Lessee at a meeting of said Governing Body and that such
resolutions have not been amended or altered and are in full force and effect on the date stated below.

LESSEE:  City of Goldsboro

________________________________________________________ [SEAL]
Signature of Secretary/Clerk of Lessee

Print Name:_______________________________________________

Official Title:______________________________________________

Date: ________________________________________                  



E23

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE
Lease Number: 1188013-2

Quantity Description Serial Number

1 2014 Toro Greensmaster 3150-Q

1 2014 Toro Greensmaster 3150-Q

1 2014 Toro Reelmaster 5510

1 2014 Toro Reelmaster 5510

1 2014 Toro Groundsmaster 4500

1 2014 Toro Groundsmaster 3500-D

1 2014 Toro Groundsmaster 3280-D 2WD

Together with all attachments, tooling, accessories, appurtenances, and additions thereto.

Equipment Location: 200 North Center Street
        Goldsboro, NC 27530

Lessee, through its authorized representative, hereby certifies to Lessor that:

1. The Equipment has been delivered to the location where it will be used, which is the Equipment Location given in
the Lease-Purchase Agreement (“Lease”);

2. All of the Equipment has been inspected and is (a) complete, (b) properly installed, (c) functioning, and (d) in
good working order;

3. Lessee accepts the Equipment for all purposes under the Lease as of _________________, 20__ (the
“Acceptance Date”), which is the date on which the Equipment was delivered and installed;

4. The Equipment is of a size, design, capacity and manufacture acceptable to Lessee and suitable for Lessee’s
purposes; and

5. Lessee is not in default under the Lease, no Non-Appropriation of Funds (as described in the Lease) has
occurred, and all of Lessee’s statements and promises set forth in the Lease are true and correct.

Lessor is hereby authorized to insert serial numbers on the Lease.

THIS CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE IS SIGNED THIS ____ DAY OF _______________________, 20__.

City of Goldsboro (“Lessee”)

X          
Authorized Signature

_______________________________________
Print Name

_______________________________________
Title:

Date

200 NORTH CENTER STREET
GOLDSBORO,NC,27530



9/18 PNC Automatic Payment Auth Form

The undersigned hereby irrevocably authorizes and directs PNC EQUIPMENT FINANCE, LLC (“PNCEF”) and PNCEF’s parent company, PNC BANK,
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION (“PNC Bank”), to initiate debit entries for payments on our lease and loan obligations with PNCEF to our Checking Account indicated
below, at the depository financial institution named below, hereinafter called DEPOSITORY, and to debit the same to such account. We acknowledge that the
origination of ACH transactions to our account must comply with the provisions of U. S. law. The undersigned acknowledges and agrees that, to the extent there
are insufficient funds in any such account to pay the required amounts when due, the undersigned shall immediately pay to PNCEF all sums remaining unpaid.
This authorization supplements, and does not limit, PNCEF’s rights under the undersigned’s lease agreement or loan agreement and other documents
evidencing or securing the obligations to PNCEF.

A. CUSTOMER INFORMATION:

Customer Name(s)
City of Goldsboro

Customer Number
1188013

B. DEPOSIT ACCOUNT INFORMATION:

     Checking
Account Number :

     Savings

Routing / ABA :

Name on Checking / Savings Account:

Bank Name:

Bank Address:

**Note:  If not a PNC bank account, please return a copy of a voided check with this form.

I WISH TO RECEIVE MONTHLY INVOICES FOR NOTIFICATION PURPOSES:     YES     NO

Each person signing below is authorized to make this request, and PNCEF and PNC Bank are entitled to rely conclusively on the above authorization until this
authorization is terminated by PNCEF or the undersigned.

Customer:  City of Goldsboro
(a(n) North Carolina Municipal )

Signature

X
Print Name 

Title

Date

Automatic Payment Authorization



7/19 SE Insurance Letter (Lease)

September 17, 2019

City of Goldsboro
200 NORTH CENTER STREET
GOLDSBORO, NC  27530
Attn: Accounts Payable
Lease Number: 1188013-2

RE: Insurance Coverage Requirements for Equipment Financing Transaction between
PNC Equipment Finance, LLC and City of Goldsboro

Before funding your transaction, PNC Equipment Finance, LLC requires evidence of appropriate insurance coverage on the equipment
described in your transaction documents. Please forward this request to your insurance company, agent or broker as soon as possible and
ask for the evidence of insurance to be sent to the address below.  

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC will have an insurable interest in the following equipment:

Quantity Description Serial No.

1 2014 Toro Greensmaster 3150-Q

1 2014 Toro Greensmaster 3150-Q

1 2014 Toro Reelmaster 5510

1 2014 Toro Reelmaster 5510

1 2014 Toro Groundsmaster 4500

1 2014 Toro Groundsmaster 3500-D

1 2014 Toro Groundsmaster 3280-D 2WD

As a condition to entering into the equipment financing transaction, PNC Equipment Finance, LLC requires the following at all times during
the term of the transaction:

1. All of the equipment must be insured for its full insurable value on a 100% replacement cost basis or as set forth in the documents.

2. PNC Equipment Finance, LLC must be named as lender loss payee under a property insurance policy insuring all risks to the equipment,
including fire, theft, and other customary coverage under an "extended coverage" endorsement, with a deductible not to exceed $10,000 per
occurrence.

3. PNC Equipment Finance, LLC must receive evidence that a comprehensive general liability insurance policy is in place with a minimum
coverage of $1,000,000.  PNC Equipment Finance, LLC must be named as an additional insured under the liability policy.

4. Each property insurance policy must contain a lender's loss payable clause, or special endorsement, in which the insurer agrees that any
loss will be payable in accordance with the policy terms, notwithstanding any act or negligence of the insured.

5. Each policy must provide for 30 days’ written notice to PNCEF prior to any cancellation, non-renewal or amendment of the policy.

The evidence of insurance can consist of a Certificate of Insurance form, Evidence of Insurance form, Memorandum of Insurance, binder for
insurance, declarations page, or the actual policy and endorsements, in each case naming PNC Equipment Finance, LLC as follows:

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC, and its successors and assigns, as lender loss payee
Attn:  Insurance Department
655 Business Center Drive, Suite 250
Horsham, PA  19044

When completed, the evidence of insurance should be provided to the following address:

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC
655 Business Center Drive, Suite 250
Horsham, PA  19044

Request for Insurance



7/19 SE Insurance Letter (Lease)



PNC Equipment Finance, LLC
655 Business Center Drive, Suite 250 · Horsham, PA  19044

Questions?  Call (800) 559-2755
Fax:  (888) 888-3695

7/19 SE Customer Information Form

Lease # 1188013-2

Please provide the following information.  By providing such information, you will enable us to ensure prompt payment of your vendor and the 
correct processing of your lease transaction. 

Thank you.

Lessee Information
Full Business Legal Name:

City of Goldsboro
Federal Tax ID Number:

566000228
Invoices should be directed to: Attention:

Address City: State: Zip:

Preferred Method of Payment:  (Please check)

  Monthly Invoice (Mail)

Invoices should be directed to: Attention:

Address City:

  Monthly Invoice (Email)

Email:

Billing Contact:

Contact Information
In order to verify receipt of equipment and review terms and conditions of the lease, please provide contact information for one or more staff
that can assist in this process.

Contact 1: Phone:

Email:

Contact 2: Phone:

Email:

Signature

X
Date

I hereby attest the above information is accurate.

Email:

Customer Information



PLEASE COMPLETE AND SIGN FORM
7/19 SE Tax Notification

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC a Delaware limited liability company (“PNC”), is required to collect and remit sales/use tax in
the taxing jurisdiction where your equipment will be located. If you select that you are exempt by marking one of the
checkboxes below, you must provide a valid exemption certificate. If you do not provide this certificate prior to the booking of
your transaction, you will be responsible for sales tax on all accrued payments.

 If tax has been remitted up front and financed into your lease payment, your account will not be marked sales tax
exempt if you provide an exemption certificate after your transaction has been booked.  

 If your tax is remitted on a monthly basis, your lease may be marked sales tax exempt for the remaining
payments left to be invoiced if you provide a valid exemption certificate after your transaction has been booked.  

 In the event we do not receive a valid sales tax exemption certificate prior to the date your lease commences, you
will be charged sales/use tax.

Personal property tax returns will be filed as required by local law. In the event that any tax abatements or special exemptions
are available on the equipment you will be leasing from us, please notify us as soon as possible and forward the related
documentation to us.  This will ensure that your leased equipment will be reported correctly.

Please indicate below if your lease is subject to tax or whether a valid exemption exists.

Sales Tax
¨   I agree that my lease is subject to sales/use tax.
¨   I am exempt from sales/use tax and I have attached a completed exemption certificate to PNC.
¨ I am claiming a partial exemption from tax. I have attached a completed exemption certificate or other documented proof of
this partial exemption.
¨ I agree that my business is subject to sales/use tax and I have attached a completed resale certificate. This certificate
indicates that I will be responsible for collection and remittance of sales/use tax based on the subsequent re-rental of the
property.
If applicable to the tax rates in your state, are you outside the city limits or in an unincorporated area?
¨  Inside city limits ¨  Outside city limits ¨  Unincorporated area

Property Tax
¨   I have a valid abatement or property tax exemption (documentation attached).
¨   Location: State                                            

Taxing District                                           
Additional comments:
                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                                                                   
                                                                                                                                                                                                   

Lease Number 1188013-2

Lessee:  City of Goldsboro
Signature:

X
Print Name:

Title:

Date:

Notification of Tax Treatment



PO BOX 931034  CLEVELAND OH 44193

INVOICE

INVOICE NUMBER   INVOICE DATE

1188013-2 09/17/2019

CONTRACT NUMBER   DUE DATE

1188013-2 10/15/2019

City of Goldsboro

BILLING SUMMARY

RENTAL PAYMENT $4,673.86

DOCUMENTATION FEE $250.00

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE: $4,923.86

PNC Equipment Finance, LLC (USD)

PO BOX 931034

Cleveland OH 44193-0004



Item_______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 

SUBJECT: Bid Award to Stantec for Comprehensive Utility Rate Study 

BACKGROUND: The City’s last comprehensive rate study was done in 1987. The City 
is seeking a user-friendly rate model that can incorporate various fees, 
Capital Improvement Plan estimates as developed from the City’s 
Master Plan and corresponding debt components with the ability to 
make adjustments to these amounts and expenses. Allowing these 
adjustments to the model should allow for dynamic or scenario 
modeling to the rate structure thereby calculating bond coverage and 
cash reserves with flexibility over a 10-year period. The rate model 
should equitably distribute costs between water and wastewater and 
between base and volume or fixed and variable and include 
comparisons of regional and similar size cities. The study should 
include analysis by normalizing the comparative rates against the 
local economics, thereby identifying possible differences in 
production costs to deliver similar services. The firm should inform 
the City of any upcoming regulatory changes that may affect the 
City’s rate or rate structure. 

DISCUSSION: The City of Goldsboro advertised for Request For Qualifications 
RFQ# 2019-004 on July 18, 2019 and received five responsive firms 
on August 5, 2019 at 10:00AM. 

Interviews were conducted on August 28, 2019 with all five 
responsive firms. After staff discussion and reference checks, Stantec  
Winston-Salem, NC was selected to submit a proposal for the 
Comprehensive Utility Rate Study.  

A proposal has been received from Stantec for these services in an 
amount not to exceed $75,000. The City allocated monies in its 
current FY 19-20 for these services.     

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council approve the attached 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with 
Stantec not to exceed $75,000 to provide services for the 
Comprehensive Utility Rate Study. 

Date:  ___________ __________________________________________ 
Michael Wagner, Public Utilities Director 

Date:  ___________ ___________________________________________ 
Timothy A. Salmon, City Manager 

P



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING AND AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
FOR COMPREHENSIVE UTILITY RATE STUDY 

 
WHEREAS, on August 5, 2019 the City of Goldsboro received a responsive 

Request For Qualifications for the Comprehensive Utility Rate Study; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has received a proposal for $75,000 from Stantec to prepare a 
Comprehensive Utility Rate Study to evaluate current rate structure for managing the City’s 
water and sanitary sewer systems; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro to 
authorize a contract for services to Stantec in an amount not to exceed $75,000. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute a contract 
with Stantec, in an amount not to exceed $75,000 to provide services for the 
Comprehensive Utility Rate Study. 

 
2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 23rd day of 

September 2019. 
 

 
 
 

           
  _______________________ 

Mayor 
 
 
 
 

Attested by: 
 
 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 



 

 

 

September 13, 2019 

Mr. Mike Wagner, MPA 
Public Utilities Director 
City of Goldsboro 
200 N. Center Street 
Goldsboro, NC 27530 
 

Re:  RFP 2019-004 Professional Engineering Services Comprehensive Utility Rate Study  

Dear Mr. Wagner:  

We are pleased to present this proposal to perform the Water and Sewer Comprehensive Rate Study for the 
City of Goldsboro.  We have assembled our project team to provide you with the dedicated and experienced 
resources needed to conduct the requested services in a timely manner and address your unique issues and 
areas of emphasis.   

The enclosed proposal outlines the details of what will be completed under each task, including deliverables 
and the number of onsite and webinar meetings that we expect to conduct. Given the amount of time that has 
passed since the City’s last formal rate study, we have developed a scope of work that will provide the City with 
a comprehensive water and sewer rate study, including the development of a long-term financial management 
plan, cost of service analysis and rate structure analysis.  The cost proposal attached in Section 3 of this 
document outlines the estimated time for each task by consultant. The total cost is calculated by applying the 
billing rates for each consultant position to the estimated total hours required for each position.  The work plan 
demonstrates that the project can be completed for a fee of $75,000.  Based upon this cost estimate, we 
propose to complete the project for a lump sum cost of $75,000 that would be invoiced monthly based upon the 
percentage of each task completed.  To the extent that any additional presentations, meetings, analysis, or any 
other services are requested beyond the scope identified in the work plan, they would be completed based 
upon the necessary time and the hourly rates identified on the work plan. We can begin work on this project 
immediately upon notice to proceed and estimate that the effort will require approximately 3 and half months for 
completion. 

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and scope of work to the City for your consideration. 
Please do not hesitate to contact me at (443) 538-1175 or Mihaela Coopersmith at (854) 202-8272 if you have 
any further questions.   

Sincerely,  

Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  

David Hyder   

Principal, Financial Services 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
 One West Fourth Street, Suite 820, Winston-Salem NC 27101-3818  



City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  

1. Past Performance .................................................................... 2 

Firm Background .......................................................................2 

General Experience & Specializations ......................................3 

Local Experience .......................................................................3 

2. Scope of Work .......................................................................... 4 

Task 1: Project Initiation & Data Collection ...............................4 

Task 2: Development of Financial Management Plan ..............5 

Task 3: Conduct Cost Allocation Analysis .................................6 
Task 4: Rate Design and User Fees .........................................6 

Task 5: System Development Charges .....................................7 
Task 6: Reports & Presentations ..............................................8 

3. Cost Proposal ........................................................................... 9 

4. Schedule ................................................................................. 12 

5. Project Team .......................................................................... 13 

Contents 



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 2 

 

 

1. Past Performance  

Firm Background 
The Stantec community unites more than 22,000 employees working in over 400 
locations across the globe. Our local strength, knowledge, and relationships, coupled with 
our world-class expertise, have allowed us to go anywhere to meet our clients’ needs in 
more creative and personalized ways.  With long-term commitment to the people and 
places we serve, Stantec has the unique ability to connect to projects on a personal level 
and advance the quality of life in communities across the globe.  

Stantec’s Financial Services practice is home to an impressive amount of experience and 
knowledge, including 35 full-time professional rate consultants who have completed 
over 1,500 financial and rate-related studies for utilities and local governments combined. 
It is this deep bench of experience that brings value to your project. As a group, we 
collaborate and learn from each other’s experiences every day. This combination of 
diverse backgrounds and experience has made us who we are today – a resource to 
over 275 communities in providing independent and objective financial management 
services to local governments and utilities throughout the country. This sharing of 
knowledge and observed best practices will be brought to your project as well.  

We are trusted partners to our clients and our national perspective is 
second to none.  But we know local governments live in unique conditions, 
so our work in Goldsboro will reflect your situation, needs, funding 
constraints and opportunities, and vision.  Only locally relevant and 
implementable outcomes are worth the effort.  Our focus is to develop 
solutions tailored for your specific situation.  



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 3 

 

General Experience & Specializations  
We have a vast amount of experience and knowledge with a variety of accepted 
ratemaking and cost of service methodologies, including practices and approaches 
identified in American Water Works Association Manuals M1 and M54 and Water 
Environment Federation MOP 27, as well as accepted industry practices in various parts 
of the country. Several members of our team are active members of AWWA Rates 
and Charges Committee and were contributing authors to the most recent edition 
of M1. The members of Stantec’s Financial Services practice have proudly served over 
275 municipal utilities across the United States.   

In addition, we are very familiar with the financial criteria used by the municipal rating 
agencies in evaluating the financial health of municipal water and sewer systems. In fact, 
our project team has conducted financial feasibility analyses and other services in 
support of the issuance of $1 billion in utility bonds in just the past five years. Our practice 
covers a broad range of financial issues for our clients, listed below. 

Rate Studies 

• Water & Wastewater 
• Solid Waste & Recycling 

• Reclaimed Water 
• Stormwater  

• Electric / Gas 
• General Government Services 

Cost-of-Service Analysis 

• Wholesale/Outside-City rates 
• Functionalized cost allocation  

• Custom cost allocation 
modeling 

• Regional cost-sharing models 
• Customer class determinations 
• Asset/rate base allocation 

Long-Term Financial & Capital Plans 

• Setting financial goals and KPI’s 
• Managing reserve levels 

• Bond feasibility plans 
• Live scenario analysis 

• Sensitivity analysis 
• Bond rating improvement plans 

System Development Fees/Capacity Fees 

• Legal compliance evaluation 
• Buy-in fee development 

• Incremental fee development 
• Expert witness assistance 

• Hybrid fee approaches 
• Developer reimbursement 

plans 

Benchmarking 

• Proprietary U.S. database 
• 100 data points per record 

• 50,000 financial metrics  
• Audited financial statements 

• 1, 3, 5-year industry averages 
• Custom group comparisons 

Affordability 

• Innovative approach (WARi®) 
• Industry-changing technique 

• Multi-year affordability metrics 
• Output to high-definition maps 

• Regulatory case support 
• Low-income programs 

Local Experience 
Our project team has extensive experience working in the southeast and in North 
Carolina, including rate studies for Burlington, Cary, Union County, High Point, OWASA, 
BRWA, Jacksonville, Southeast Brunswick Sanitary District, and more. We are familiar 
with local standards for ratemaking, as well as the complex issues associated with 
multiple utilities providing closely related services.  



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 4 

 

2. Scope of Work  
Our approach to conducing utility rate analyses is centered on our interactive decision 
support process that engages your staff, management and other stakeholders. This 
approach will enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of the rate study process. 
While our team will facilitate all aspects of the study, provide industry expertise, and give 
specific recommendations, we believe that City input is essential to achieving successful 
outcomes.  

Our interactive process effectively facilitates staff input in an efficient manner while 
providing transparency and ultimately a comprehensive look at our clients’ utility systems.  
You can use this process to facilitate input from other parties, including elected officials or 
other agencies if such opportunities would be helpful in broadening the base of support. 
We have prepared the following task plan, which outlines our proposed approach to 
completing a comprehensive Water and Sewer Cost of Service and Rate Study for the 
City of Goldsboro.  The figure below provides the key aspects of the comprehensive 
water and sewer rates study. 

 

Task 1: Project Initiation & Data Collection 
To initialize the study, we will submit a data request to the City.  Shortly thereafter, we will 
conduct an onsite kickoff meeting with staff to: 

• Familiarize our team with current practices and procedures 
• Discuss goals and objectives of the study 
• Discuss key issues, roles and responsibilities 
• Confirm data requirements and discuss the data already received 
• Finalize the project schedule, including milestones and deliverables 



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 5 

 

Once all data has been received, we will review it in detail – including reports, past 
studies, historical information, etc. Follow-up calls with staff will be made to ensure full 
understanding of all data received.   

Task 1 Summary 
Deliverables Data Request List 
Meetings 1 In Person Project Kickoff Meeting  
Timeline Within 2 weeks of signed contract 

 

Task 2: Development of Financial Management Plan  
We will prepare an analysis to determine the revenue required to support the water and 
wastewater operations, including capital spending. We will use our financial models to 
develop financial management plans (including 5-year near term and 10-year long term 
plans) and will identify projected annual revenue requirements and rate adjustments. 
Within the models, we will examine historical operating expenses, customer growth and 
volume trends, alternative capital improvement spending levels (including backlog of 
maintenance), debt service coverage ratios, levels of operating and capital reserves, and 
other financial policies that drive the revenue requirements of the utilities.  

In addition to evaluating financial goals and objectives, we will also evaluate alternative 
revenue source projections, cost escalation factors, changes in usage patterns, elasticity 
of customer demand in response to rate and fee increases, and other variables that could 
affect the financial performance of the utility. The models allow for the distinction of 
revenue types by customer class that can be grouped into fixed and variable 
components.  

Our financial planning model provides a valuable capital planning tool which we will use 
to review the City's projections for capital improvements and evaluate the impacts of 
alternative projects, costs, timing, and funding sources. For all scenarios reviewed, the 
financial planning module will develop a funding plan, including the identification of the 
amount, timing, and type of borrowing required, if necessary. We will examine the utility’s 
use of debt versus cash financing for capital improvements and build a financing plan to 
support a proper balance of debt service coverage and rate stabilization over the 
planning period.  

Closely related to this analysis is an examination of the adequacy of each system’s 
reserves. Adequate reserves are fundamental to achieving financial stability and can help 
some systems avoid sudden or disruptive rate adjustments in the face of unanticipated 
operating or capital needs or changes in demand. We will examine your current reserve 
balances relative to management goals, the age and condition of infrastructure, and 
industry standards, and incorporate these balances and alternative reserve policies into 
the financial planning model and into the conversations we will have regarding financial 
sustainability. 

As part of this task, our team will also perform a comparative analysis of the rates of local 
communities including the service rates, fees and rate structures of comparable water 
and wastewater utilities to the fees recommended during the study. This analysis is often 
necessary to address questions from key stakeholders related to how your rates compare 
to surrounding communities.  



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 6 

 

Additionally, the City has requested assistance with reviewing and providing 
recommendations regarding the adequacy of the staffing levels for the water and 
wastewater utilities. We will work with our engineering group to provide an engineering 
review of the water and wastewater budget and staffing levels, and offer input on the 
adequacy of both, including identification of any gaps. As part of this review, we will also 
provide high level recommendations on augmentation of staff and budget as appropriate.  

Task 2 Summary 
Deliverables Assumptions & Results Workbook(s) 
Meetings 1 In-Person Interactive Work Session, 2-3 GoToMeeting 

Interactive Work Sessions 
Timeline 4-6 weeks 
 

Task 3: Conduct Cost Allocation Analysis 
We will perform an in-depth review of the allocation of costs between customer classes 
(i.e. retail and bulk, inside and outside for water and sewer) and within each segment or 
sub-group within the retail class (i.e. residential, multi-family, commercial, etc.). The cost-
of-service module of our modeling system allows for the total cost of service and revenue 
requirements for each utility service to be functionalized and distributed to and within 
customer classes. Each utility’s cost of service and revenue requirements are 
functionalized to defined categories, which are then allocated to each class of customer 
based upon their characteristics or units of service. We identify the most appropriate 
industry-accepted cost of service allocation methodologies, such as those defined by the 
AWWA and WEF, based upon available data, legal requirements, system configuration, 
service agreements, resources, customer base, demand and usage characteristics, local 
practice, and public policy objectives. We customize the cost of service module to employ 
the identified methodologies and concepts best suited for the utility that build upon your 
existing approaches.  

At the conclusion of the cost of service analysis, we compare the resulting allocation of 
revenue requirements to the revenue generated by the current rates for each customer 
class segment of the utility. To the extent current revenue recovery levels are not in line 
with the results of the cost of service allocation analysis, we evaluate alternative levels of 
revenue recovery by class and segment of customer within the rate structure analysis 
that would better comport with the identified cost of service allocations.  

Task 3 Summary 
Deliverables Assumptions & Results Workbook(s) 
Meetings 1 In-Person Interactive Work Session, 2-3 GoToMeeting 

Interactive Work Sessions 
Timeline 4-6 weeks 

Task 4: Rate Design and User Fees   
Based upon the annual revenue requirements identified in Task 2 and the cost allocation 
analysis completed in Task 3, we will work to develop new rates, including rates for water 
and sewer, for a five-year projection period. It is important to note that our analysis will 
include an allowance for price elasticity to account for changes in consumption patterns 
by your customers due to rate structure, metering, or other modifications.  



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 7 

 

As part of this task, our project team will discuss with the City the various alternative rate 
structures that the City may want to consider based on pricing goals and objectives for 
each utility. We are well versed in the wide range of rate structures that can be 
implemented and will review the pros and cons of each rate structure including items 
such as revenue volatility, customer understanding and affordability, administrative 
requirements and the feasibility of the City to implement the structure. 

Our scope of work assumes that a maximum of three alternative rate structures will be 
developed for water and three will be developed for sewer.  For each rate structure 
considered for the study, we will provide an analysis of the impacts to each customer 
class and segment, bill impacts at various levels of volume, and revenue impacts as 
appropriate. Customer impact analyses will be provided for all customer classes and 
segments, and high-level summaries of the impacts will be critical for public presentation 
purposes.  

Throughout this process, we will work closely with staff to evaluate the best ways to 
recover the costs of providing service, while minimizing the impact to customers and 
keeping affordability in mind. To the extent that significant changes are necessary, we will 
develop a phased approach, such that customer impacts are moderated over a multi-year 
period rather than observed in a single change. 

Task 4 Summary 
Deliverables Assumptions & Results Workbook(s) & Rate Schedules 
Meetings 1 In-Person Interactive Work Session concurrent with Task 3, 

2-3 GoToMeeting Interactive Work Sessions concurrent with 
Task 3 

Timeline 4-6 weeks (concurrent with Task 3) 
 

Task 5: System Development Charges 
As the cost of utility infrastructure has increased, the cost of maintaining or building new 
capacity to serve new customers has become its own kind of financial burden. When 
properly designed, system development charges or capacity fees get new customers to 
pay their fair share of the capital costs that have been incurred to have system capacity 
available to serve them. Yet, system development fees are one of the most contested of 
all utility charges. Getting it right requires a rigorous evaluation of both the system itself 
and the costs of expanding it.  

Our system development charges model is adjusted for each client to reflect the specific 
system configuration, available data, and local legal requirements (such as the 2017 
findings of the NC Supreme Court in the case of Quality Built Homes, Inc. v. Town of 
Carthage). We will review all data relative to the system to determine the portion of the 
costs eligible for recovery from system development charges.  

We will then provide recommendations related to the system development fees based on 
the analysis of the available data and financial impacts and/or benefits of such fees. We 
will provide a comparative fee survey of other localities in the region and evaluate 
alternative levels of fees in the context of consistency with industry practice and the 
capital requirements of the system. 

 



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 8 

 

Task 5 Summary 
Deliverables Assumptions & Results Workbook(s) & Rate Comparison 
Meetings 1 In-Person Interactive Work Session to review the fees and 

final rate design, 1 GoToMeeting Interactive Work Session 
Timeline 3-4 weeks (concurrent with other tasks) 

 

Task 6: Reports & Presentations 
The City will gain long-term value in a report that clearly and comprehensively documents 
the results of the study. We will first prepare a draft report for your review, and once 
comments are received, we will incorporate them into a final report. The report provides a 
simplified and straightforward synopsis of the analysis, and includes appendices that 
contain a series of graphs, charts, and tables that provide the supporting details of the 
study described in the body of the report. The report will include a stand-alone Executive 
Summary for distribution, which often serves as an effective communication tool with 
stakeholders.  

When the report is finalized, we will prepare a summary presentation for the City Council 
members. Finally, we will present the results in a public meeting with the City Council, 
management, staff and other stakeholders. Our scope of work assumes that Stantec will 
participate in one onsite meeting to present the results of the study.  The meeting will 
include an initial briefing to City Management follow by a presentation of the final results 
to the City Council.   

During the course of the study, we will populate and customize our financial modeling 
tools to meet the specific needs of the City’s utilities. At the conclusion of the study, we 
will provide you with any of the modeling tools used during the study at no additional cost. 
The models you will receive are fully functioning Microsoft Excel based models and can 
be used by staff for future updates. We do require that you sign a usage and non-
disclosure agreement for any of our modeling tools. Upon request, we can provide a 
sample agreement that we have used with our clients. We would also provide a 
customized user manual for the financial models and onsite training for staff to ensure the 
future beneficial use of the model by the City, if desired. 

Task 6 Summary 
Deliverables Draft Report, Final Report, Council Presentation 
Meetings 1 Presentation to Staff and Council  
Timeline Draft report within 100 Days of Award; Final Report within 15 

days after comments received from City staff  
 

  



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 9 

 

3. Cost Proposal  

 

 

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina

Project Work Plan and Cost Estimate Schedule

Director Managing 
Consultant Sr. Analyst Engineer Analyst Admin

Hourly Rates → $275 $225 $150 $140 $125 $90

Task 1
1.1 0 1 1 0 1 4 7

1.2 4 8 8 0 1 0 21

1.3 0 1 2 0 4 0 7

Task 2
2.1 0 1 2 0 2 0 5

2.2 0 1 1 0 2 0 4

2.3 1 6 10 0 20 0 37

o
- Project listing by year
- Evaluation of existing and alternative capital improvement programs 
- Work with City staff to determine a capital funding solution that the City can 

 o

o
- Identify any borrowing required and/or appropriate to fund certain CIP projects, to 

include but not necessarily be limited to, revenue bonds and state programs.
- Determine timing of the need for borrowed funds

o
- Annual revenue and operations & maintenance expense projections
- Projections of other revenue requirements such as R&R, minor capital, transfers, 

debt service/loan payments, replenishment of reserves, etc. 
- Evaluation of adequacy of revenue provided by existing rates to meet current and 

projected system requirements
- Alternative plans of annual percentage rate adjustments to provide sufficient 

revenues over a multi-year projection period.
2.4 0 1 2 0 2 0 5

2.5 3 2 2 0 2 0 9

2.6 2 2 4 0 4 0 12

2.7 1 1 2 0 4 0 8

2.8 4 8 8 0 0 0 20

2.9 0 1 2 0 2 0 5

2.10 0 0 2 0 4 0 6

2.11 0 0 0 34 0 0 34

2.12 0 0 0 10 0 0 10

Total 
Project

Engineering review water and wastewater budget and staffing levels and provide input on 
adequancy including identification of gaps.
Provide high level recommendations on augmentation of staff and budget as appropriate. 

Comprehensive Utility Rate Study 

Input current financial and billing data into our modeling system, run the module, and 
produce preliminary output, including a ten year financial management program that will 
include the following:

Review results with consulting team, QA/QC, make adjustments as needed.  

Make adjustments to the module as required to calibrate to the utility's specific financial 
dynamics.

Prepare for and meet with City staff in an interactive work session to review preliminary 
assumptions and results [GoToMeeting].
Make adjustments as required based upon input from City staff and prepare workbook of 
assumptions and preliminary results.
Prepare for and meet with City staff  in an interactive work session to review updated 
results [On-Site Meeting #2].
Make adjustments as required based upon input from City staff and prepare revised 
workbook of assumptions and results.
Prepare comparative residential water & sewer rate structure comparison and bill 
calculations.

Capital Improvements Program

Financial Policy Review, including reserve levels (operating, capital, and rate 
stabilization), capital reinvestment, etc.
Borrowing Program

Revenue Sufficiency Analysis

Estimated Labor-Hours

Project Tasks

Prepare initial data request list and preliminary project schedule.  Perform project set up 
and administrative activities.

Project Initiation & Data Collection

Compile and review historical, current, and projected financial, system, and billing data. 
Perform a detailed review and analysis of historical billed volume and customer data to 
observe trends in demands, usage patterns and customer growth in order to develop 
projections of customers and usage for all customer classes.
Evaluate budget versus actual performance (O&M and capital) to determine proper 
funding levels to include in rate revenue requirements, as well as trends in annual 
expenses to inform future cost escalation factors/assumptions.

Conduct kickoff meeting with City Staff for data collection and to finalize study 
objectives, approach, timeline, etc. [On Site Meeting # 1]

Development of Financial Management Plan

Compile and review historical, current, and projected financial, and other system data as 
provided by staff.



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 10 

 

 

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina

Project Work Plan and Cost Estimate Schedule

Director Managing 
Consultant Sr. Analyst Engineer Analyst Admin

Hourly Rates → $275 $225 $150 $140 $125 $90

Task 3 
3.1 1 2 2 0 2 0 7

3.2 1 2 4 0 6 0 13

3.3 1 2 2 0 2 0 7

3.4 1 2 2 0 2 0 7

3.5 3 1 2 0 3 0 9

3.6 4 8 8 0 0 0 20

3.7 0 1 4 0 6 0 11

Task 4
4.1 0 2 3 0 6 0 11
4.2 0 1 2 0 2 0 5
4.3 0 2 4 0 6 0 12

o

o
o
o
o
o

4.4 0 1 2 0 4 0 7

4.5 0 1 2 0 2 0 5
4.6 1 2 2 0 2 0 7

4.7 2 1 2 0 3 0 8

4.8 1 2 2 0 2 0 7

Task 5
5.1 0 1 1 0 2 0 4

5.2 0 1 1 0 4 0 6
5.3 0 1 1 0 4 0 6
5.4 0 1 1 0 2 0 4

5.5 0 1 2 0 0 0 3

5.6 0 1 2 0 3 0 6

5.7 1 1 2 0 2 0 6

5.8 1 1 1 0 1 0 4

5.9 1 1 1 0 0 0 3

Task 6
6.1 4 6 8 0 1 1 20
6.2 4 8 1 0 1 0 14

6.3 2 3 4 0 1 0 10

Total Estimated Labor Hours 43           89             114            44              117         5           412          
Total Estimated Fee 11,825$   20,025$     17,100$     6,160$       14,625$  450$     70,185$   
Total Estimated Expenses 4,815       
Total Estimated Project Cost 75,000$ 

Meet with City staff in an interactive work session to review preliminary results [On-Site 
Meeting #3].
Make adjustments based upon input from City staff in the prior sub-task and distribute 
workbook of preliminary results.
Meet with City staff to review adjusted results and finalize analysis [GoToMeeting].

Funding requirements for all current long-term liabilities and debt requirements

Consistency with industry practice for utility rate making in the region and in North 
Carolina

Review results with consulting team and adjust as required.

Prepare a summary customer impact analysis to compare the recommended water and 
sewer rates for each class of customer existing rates.

Affordability of rates for all City customers, ensuring equity and fairness 

Recovery of current and future costs of service in accordance with established and 
anticipated legal standards and regulations

Make adjustments as required based upon input from City staff and prepare revised 
workbook of assumptions and results.

Capabilities of the City's billing system
Elasticity of demand associated with the conservation elements of each structure 

Rate Design and User Fees
Load updated billing data into our Excel rate model and create a bill frequency analysis.
Conduct a revenue test to ensure accuracy of billing data.
Run the model and prepare rate structures that reflect the following considerations:

Prepare for and meet with City staff  in an interactive work session to review updated 
results [GoToMeeting].

Total 
Project

Allocate costs/revenue requirements to functional and customer classes based upon 
industry standard allocation criteria and usage characteristics as provided by Goldsboro.
Review existing rates and rate structure methodologies including the cost distribution to 
various rate categories, inside/outside differentials, bulk customers.

Prepare for and meet with City staff in an interactive work session to review preliminary 
assumptions and results [On-Site Meeting #3].
Make adjustments as required based upon input from City staff and prepare workbook of 
assumptions and preliminary results.

Comprehensive Utility Rate Study 

Prepare for and present results of study to the City Council at one (1) meeting. [On Site 
Meeting #5]

Prepare draft report of the analysis and presentation for the City Council.

Update analysis as required and prepare Final Report.

Presentation and Report

Cost of Service Analysis
Identify all test year costs/revenue requirements associated with the provision of water 
and sewer service. 

Estimated Labor-Hours

Project Tasks

System Development Fees
Obtain and review relevant ordinances, master plan, capital improvement information, 
capacity reports, and system GIS data.
Obtain and review fixed asset records for all major system components.
Prepare reproduction cost schedule of fixed assets by major system component.
Review City's designation of purpose for CIP projects for expanded capacity and renewal 
and rehabilitation.
Allocate fixed assets and CIP between major facility components of supply, treatment, 
transmission/collection, disposal, reuse, etc.
Load appropriate data into our system development fee model, adjust and calibrate for 
City specific needs. 

Meet with City staff in an interactive work session to review results of the fees and final 
rate design. [On-Site Meeting # 4]
Perform adjustments based upon input from City staff to finalize fee analysis.

Prepare workbook of results, review with consulting team and make any necessary 
adjustments.



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 11 

 

 

 

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina
Project Work Plan Summary

Hours Cost
Task 1 Project Initiation & Data Collection 35 $6,110
Task 2 Development of Financial Management Plan 111 $24,860
Task 3 Cost of Service Analysis 118 $13,300
Task 4 Rate Design and User Fees 62 $10,025
Task 5 System Development Fees 42 $6,900
Task 6 Presentation and Report 44 $8,990

Totals 412 $70,185
Estimated Expenses $4,815

Total Project Cost $75,000

Comprehensive Utility Rate Study 



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 12 

 

4. Schedule  
Our proposed project schedule for the completion of the Comprehensive Water and 
Sewer Rate Study is presented below.  The project assumes a notice to proceed by mid-
October and the completion of the project by the end of January 2020.  Our project team 
has extensive experience completing comprehensive water and sewer rate studies within 
the timeframe outlined in our schedule.    

 

 

  

Task 1 Project Initiation & Data Collection

Task 2 Development of Financial 
Management Plan

Task 3 Cost of Service Analysis

Task 4 Rate Design and User Fees

Task 5 System Development Fees

Task 6 Presentation and Report

Month

City of Goldsboro, North Carolina
Comprehensive Utility Rate Study 

Proposed Project Schedule

Tasks
October November December January



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 13 

 

5. Project Team  
Our Financial Services Practice offers a depth of resources to the City. We have compiled 
a project team to best serve the City’s needs and objectives for this study, including 
personnel experienced in:   

• Development of Multi-Year Financial Management Plans and Rate Programs, for 
systems of similar size operated by local government agencies, including capital 
and operations & maintenance expense budgeting, grant funding, and ensuring 
finance best practices. 

• Cost of Service Allocations According to AWWA, WEF, and EPA Guidelines, with 
the expertise to analyze system configurations, facilities, plans, design criteria, 
usage characteristics, etc. in the context of allocating costs in order to establish 
fair and equitable rates for all customer classes. 

• Retail and Wholesale Rate Structure Concepts and their practical application to 
address specific local policy objectives (such as affordability, conservation, fixed 
cost recovery/revenue stability) while conforming to accepted industry practice 
and legal precedent. 

• Financial Policy Review including the development of specific targets relative to 
various types of reserves, capital funding strategies, debt levels, affordability, and 
other metrics.  

• Development of Specific Fees and Charges, including development of impact 
fees, connection fees, tap fees, and other miscellaneous charges. 

• Preparation of Public Education and Outreach Initiatives, including special 
purpose public engagement meetings and presentation of information about the 
rate study process, identification of key system issues/challenges, necessity of 
any rate adjustments, national trends and local benchmarking, as well as 
customer impacts. 

The organization chart on the following page presents our project team. Resumes for all 
project team members are presented in the appendix of our proposal. 



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 14 

 

 
  



 

City of Goldsboro, NC | Comprehensive Water and Sewer Rate Study  Stantec 15 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix – Staff Resumes 



8

Mihaela Coopersmith
Project Manager

Mihaela is a Managing Consultant with Stantec. She has 
over 12 years of professional experience as a municipal 
financial consultant serving local government utilities. 
She has experience with financial modeling, capital 
planning, system development fee calculation, and 
budget forecasting. She has been involved in several 
financial planning projects for different water, sewer, 
stormwater, gas and electric utilities.

Education
International MBA, Finance, University of South Carolina
BBA, Management, Brenau University

Relevant Experience
• Orange Water and Sewer Authority, NC. Ms.

Coopersmith was the project manager for a recent
update to the financial models and impact fee models
for the Orange Water and Sewer Authority.  During the
study, Ms. Coopersmith developed a ten-year financial
management plan and plan of annual rate adjustments
using our FAMS-XL modeling system to replicate the
dynamics of the Authority’s water and sewer system.
The analysis also included updating of water and
sewer impact fees, including an analysis of the usage
household size to complete the impact fee analysis.

• Athens-Clarke County Public Utilities Department
(ACC PUD), GA. Ms. Coopersmith has worked with
ACC PUD for 10 years serving as their financial
consultant. During that time, she has assisted in the
creation of a financial planning model, annual updates
of the model, impact fee model development and
update, and assistance with the implementation of
their Service Delivery Plan for the next 20-year planning
period.

• City of Jacksonville, NC. Ms. Coopersmith is the
project manager for a recent update to the financial
models and system development fee models for the
City of Jacksonville, NC.  The study included the
development a ten-year financial management plan
and plan of annual rate adjustments using our FAMS-
XL modeling system to replicate the dynamics of the
City’s water and sewer system. The analysis also
included updating of water and sewer system
development fees.

• City of Anderson, SC. Ms. Coopersmith was the
project manager for the water and sewer financial
model and cost of service analysis for the City of
Anderson, SC. During the study, we developed a
10-year financial planning model for each of the City’s
water and sewer systems, as well as a cost of service
model to update their sewer partner rate.

David Hyder
Project Director

David is a Principal with Stantec, applying engineering, 
environmental and financial expertise to a broad range of 
projects. He specializes in assisting public sector clients 
with the financial and managerial aspects of environmental 
infrastructure. He has managed hundreds of cost of service 
and rate studies for water, wastewater, storm water, reclaimed 
water and solid waste utilities, including development of 
financial plans, cost of service analysis, rate structure design 
and evaluation, customer affordability, total utility cost of 
ownership analysis, and project reporting. He has also 
assisted several communities around the country with the 
establishment of regional water utilities including the Cape 
Fear Public Utility Authority in Wilmington, North Carolina.

Education
MBA, Finance, Johns Hopkins University
BS, Civil/Environmental Engineering, Michigan State University

Relevant Experience
• Union County, NC. Mr. Hyder has provided Union County

with financial consulting expertise for several years. He
recently served as the Project Director for the completion
of a revenue bond feasibility study in support of a recent
$70 million bond issue for the water and sewer utility. He
has also assisted with the completion of a comprehensive
system development fee analysis and water and sewer
cost of service and rate study for the County.

• City of High Point, NC. Mr. Hyder is currently serving as
Project Director for the completion of a comprehensive
water and sewer system development fee and financial
planning engagement with the City.  The study has
included the evaluation of various fee structure options,
presentations to key stakeholders and demonstration of
potential customer impacts.

• Orange Water and Sewer Authority, NC. Mr. Hyder has
assisted OWASA with water and sewer financial planning
for the past four years. The engagements have included
oversight of the development of long-term financial plans,
water and sewer cost of service analysis, reclaimed water
pricing, system development fee analysis and water and
sewer rate structure modifications.

• City of Cleveland, OH. Mr. Hyder is currently serving
as the Project Manager responsible for completion
and oversight of five-year financial plan for Cleveland
Division of Water and Water Pollution Control. The City
provide water to over 500,000 retail customers and
over 50 wholesale customers serving a large portion of
Northeast Ohio.  The Study includes development of fully
functionalized cost of service, rate structure evaluation,
demand model development and project reporting.



9

Katie Morrissey
Senior Analyst

Katie is a Senior Financial Analyst with experience in 
populating and customizing the long-term planning modules 
of our proprietary financial management modeling system. 
She has assisted management consultants in providing 
client specific financial sustainability solutions based on 
application of sound financial and economic concepts. 
Katie has contributed to the development of long-term 
financial plans for our utility and municipal clients, with a 
focus on water, sewer and stormwater utilities. Katie has 
also provided financial analysis support for utility acquisition 
valuations, new utility implementation studies and ancillary 
fee studies for our clients. 

Education
MS, Finance, Florida State University
BS, Finance, Florida State University

Relevant Experience
• Multiple System Development Fee Studies for Utilities in

NC
(Southeast Brunswick Sanitary District, Town of
Wrightsville Beach, City of Burlington, Pender County,
Union County). Project analyst for multiple system
development fee studies regarding compliance with the
Public Water and Sewer System Development Fee Act,
S.L. 2017-138. All study recommendations were adopted
by the respective boards.

• Bonita Springs Stormwater Utility Program, Bonita
Springs, FL. Project analyst for a new stormwater utility
program feasibility and implementation study.

• Revenue Sufficiency Analysis, City of Venice, FL. Project
analyst who used FAMS-XL, to develop multiple scenarios
of capital funding and rate plans that would help the City
achieve their financial goals and maintain their mandated
operating policies.

• Annual Rate Study Update, Pasco County, FL. Project
analyst for the County’s annual rate study update and the
acquisition analysis for Florida Governmental Utility
Authority.

• Water & Sewer Utility Rate Study, City of Atlantic Beach,
FL. Project analyst who employed industry standard
assumptions and used the City’s financial and operational
data to evaluate the sufficiency of the cash inflows.
Contributed to the development of an unanimously
adopted multi-year rate plan that will help maintain
reserve levels, adequately cover operating expenditures
and capital spending, and reduce the need for future debt
financing.

Linda Pass, PE
Technical Advisor

Linda has more than 20 years of experience engineering multi-
million-dollar projects with a variety of roles from design engineer 
to construction and project manager. Her experience includes 
the planning, design and construction of water and wastewater 
treatment plants ranging in size from 1 to 30-mgd capacity, 
elevated storage tanks, lift stations, sewer force mains, booster 
pumping stations, large diameter water transmission lines, 
distribution mains, gravity sewer interceptors, trenchless sewer 
rehabilitation, stream bank stabilization, stream restoration, 
and large stormwater culverts and drainage projects. Linda is 
particularly effective as program manager of projects with multiple 
design teams, engineering consultants and sub-consultants to 
achieve project objectives and meet aggressive schedules. Linda is 
a resourceful decision-maker whose hands-on engagement during 
all project phases ensures our client’s objectives are being met.

Education
Master of Civil Engineering, North Carolina State University
BS, Civil Engineering, North Carolina State University
BA, Industrial Design, Auburn University

Relevant Experience
• Brawley School Road Utility Relocations, Mooresville, NC.

Project engineer for utility easement determinations, design, cost
estimating, work sequencing and permitting for the parallel
replacement and relocation of 3,500 linear feet of 6-inch to
16-inch water mains, 2,400 linear feet of 8-inch gravity sewer, and
150 linear feet of 24-inch ductile iron sanitary sewer force main.
Project challenges include the relocation of the 24-inch force
main under a new box culvert while maintaining continuous
wastewater pumping service. Two 24-inch by 24-inch bypass hot
taps and two temporary 24-inch linestops on the existing force
main were designed to allow continuous wastewater pumping
during construction of the relocated sewer force main.

• Ooltewah-Georgetown Road Water Main Extension, Savannah
Valley Utility District, Georgetown, TN. Project engineer for
design of 1,400 linear feet of 12-inch restrained joint water main
extension within road rights-of-way.

• Sewer Rehabilitation Project, Winston-Salem, NC. Project
manager, engineer and construction administrator for preliminary
and final design, bidding, and construction services. Preliminary
design included subsurface utility engineering (SUE) vacuum
bores, pipe cleaning and CCTV inspections to determine the
existing condition of the sewers, prioritization for rehabilitation,
and an opinion of probable construction cost to reduce the
proposed rehabilitation improvements to match project funding.
Using GIS maps inset with snapshot photos, the “worst case”
defect of each pipe segment was presented to the city. Pipe
defects were easily reviewed by the City to confirm high priority
pipes. Approximately 12,000 LF of 8-inch to 18-inch sanitary
sewer lines were rehabilitated using open-cut pipe replacements,
cured-in-place (CIPP) liner, HDPE pipe bursting, and manhole
rehabilitation.



10

Morgan Brosch
Analyst

Morgan is a Financial Analyst at Stantec with a background 
in accounting and project management. Her strong attention 
to detail coupled with her ability to look at the bigger picture 
makes her a valuable asset to the financial analysis team. She 
has experience developing long-term financial plans within 
the FAMS-XL financial planning module, working directly with 
clients to populate cost-of-service modules, collaborating with 
engineers to develop funded capital improvement programs, 
and creating customized miscellaneous fee analyses to 
meet client needs. In addition to her excellent analytical 
and business skills, Morgan is well-versed in effective 
communication and is passionate about delivering exceptional 
client service.

Education
Master of Accounting, University of Tampa
Bachelor of Accounting, Florida State University

Relevant Experience
• Town of Cary Water & Sewer RSA and Billing Data

Analysis, Cary, NC. Morgan performed a revenue
sufficiency analysis for the Town of Cary's water and sewer
utility to develop a multi-year financial plan to sustain
operations and fund capital projects. Per the Town's request,
Morgan also performed a deep dive into the water, sewer,
irrigation, and reclaimed water billing data to reconcile billing
data revenues to actual reported revenues. This study
accomplished the closest reconciliation of billing data to
actual revenues of any previous study.

• James City Service Authority - Water and Sewer Rate
Study, Williamsburg, VA. Morgan worked directly with
JCSA Staff to annually update the customized financial
models to ensure financial sustainability could be achieved
with the proposed rate adjustment plans. She also helped
the utility plan for anticipated extraordinary water supply
sourcing capital costs expected within the projection period.

• City of Palmetto RSA , Palmetto, FL. Morgan conducted a
revenue sufficiency analysis for Water, Wastewater,
Reclaimed Water, and Stormwater utilities. She assisted in
developing a multi-year financial plan to achieve financial
sustainability in each fund. She also performed a
comparative analysis of residential and commercial rate
structures of neighboring utilities.

• City of Port Orange Stormwater Rate Study, Port Orange,
FL. Morgan conducted a revenue sufficiency analysis for the
Stormwater utility and assisted in an in-depth analysis of
impervious area calculations to redesign the City's
stormwater fee from a flat rate for all parcels to a tiered rate
structure based on impervious area that more equitably
distributed and recovered costs of stormwater services. She
also performed a comparative analysis of rate structures of
neighboring utilities and identified sample bill impacts to
customers.



Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
SEPTEMBER 23, 2019  

SUBJECT:  Approve Compost Bulk Pricing 

BACKGROUND:  Following three years of increased sales, average compost and mulch sales 
have decreased since August 2018. At that time, wholesale and retail bulk 
compost prices were increased $6.00 per cubic yard and mulch $2.00 per 
cubic yard. This preceded Hurricanes Florence and Michael and the next 
nine months of wet and rainy weather.  

DISCUSSION:  Compost and mulch sales were increasing steadily over the last three 
years. However, due to weather out of our control and negative feedback 
from some regular customers on the price increases, sales declined. It is 
essential that the Compost Facility move compost and mulch products to 
ensure compliance with the facility’s stormwater and biosolids permits. 
Space has become limited due to an abundance of product.  

Onsite there is around 4,880 cubic yards of bulk compost and around 8,640 
cubic yards of mulch on the ground. October tends to be a time of 
replanting cover crops and maintaining healthy soils. In order to make 
room at the Compost Facility, it is recommended that October 2019 pricing 
for bulk compost be reduced $6.00 and mulch be available free.  

RECOMMENDATION:  1. It is recommended that the City Council approve compost pricing for
October 1, 2019 – October 31, 2019 as follows: $9.00/cubic yard for 
compost purchases over 20 cubic yards, $15.00/cubic yard for compost 
purchases less than 20 cubic yards; $2.00 per 30‐lb. bag (minimum order of 
100 bags) for regular wholesale buyers; $4.00 per 30‐lb. bag for non‐
wholesale buyers; and mulch free.   

2. This Resolution will be in full force and effect from and after the 23rd

day of September 2019. 

Date: ___________  ______________________________________                       ____ 
Michael Wagner, Public Utilities Director 

Date: ___________  ________________________________________                    _    _
Timothy A. Salmon, City Manager 

Q



 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019‐ 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING COMPOST PRICING FOR OCTOBER 2019 
 

  WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro produces and sells high quality bulk compost to commercial 

landscapers, nurseries, and similar businesses; and 

  WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to increase compost revenues to offset operational 

costs; and 

  WHEREAS, it is in the City’s best interest to make room for new compost and mulch by increasing 

October sales on existing compost and mulch with historical purchasing trends. 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina 

that: 

1.  A temporary price of $9.00 per cubic yard of compost be established, for new bulk 
wholesale compost buyers for purchases over 20 cubic yards, effective October 1, 2019 – 
October 31, 2019.  

2.   A temporary price of $15.00 per cubic yard for compost purchases less than 20 cubic 
yards at the time of advance purchase be established effective October 1, 2019 – October 
31, 2019. 

3.   A temporary price for bulk mulch at $0.00 per cubic yard be established effective           
October 1, 2019 – October 31, 2019. 

 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 23rd day of September 2019. 

 

                 _______________________ 
                 Mayor 
 

 

Attested by: 

 

__________________________ 
City Clerk 



Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

September 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT:           Amendment to Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinances Title III 
Administration, Chapter 33: Police and Fire Department   

BACKGROUND: After council approval, the City of Goldsboro established the 
newly created position of Deputy Fire Chief. The first Deputy 
Fire Chief was appointed in February of 2019.    

DISCUSSION:        The Deputy Fire Chief position is critical in providing 
continuity of service to the citizens and guests of the Goldsboro 
community. The current language of the City of Goldsboro 
Code of Ordinances should be changed to reflect the addition 
to the Goldsboro Fire Department’s organizational command 
structure. 

RECOMMENDATION:     It is recommended that the City Council adopt the attached  
Ordinance amending Title III Administration, Chapter 33:  
Police and Fire Department of the City of Goldsboro’s Code   
of Ordinances. 

Date:________________________     __________________________________ 
Joe Dixon, Fire Chief 

Date:________________________   __________________________________ 
Timothy Salmon, City Manager 

R



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-___ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE III- ADMINISTRATION, CHAPTER 33: 
POLICE AND FIRE DEPARTMENT   

 
   WHEREAS, through due process, the City of Goldsboro has approved and recently 
appointed a new Deputy Fire Chief; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Ordinance currently does not currently reference the position of 
Deputy Fire Chief; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to define the title, position and associated powers of 
Deputy Fire Chief; and   
 
 BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina, that Title III: §33 of the City of Goldsboro Code of Ordinances be amended as 
outlined below:   

 
1. Title III: § 33: Police and Fire Department 

§ 33.16 APPOINTMENT OF FIRE CHIEF. 

The Fire Department shall be headed by a Fire Chief who is appointed by the 
City Manager. 

2. Title III: 33.17 – Assistant Fire Chief - Revised Title and Sub-paragraph 
 
   § 33.17 Assistant Deputy Fire Chief 
 
   In the absence of the Fire Chief from the city, or in the event of his being prevented  
              from attending to his duties by sickness or otherwise, the Assistant Fire Chief shall  
              perform all duties required of the Fire Chief, and shall be clothed with the same  
              authority as the Fire Chief. 
 

3. Title III: § 33.18- Fire Chief, Assistant Authorized to Arrest Offenders - Revised 
 
§ 33.18- Fire Chief, Assistant Deputy Fire Chief Authorized to Arrest Offenders 
 
The Fire Chief and Assistant Deputy Fire Chief are hereby vested with all the powers 
of a police officer of the city insofar as to make arrest within the city during the 
existence of any fire for the violation of any of the provisions of this Code of 
Ordinances regulating the Fire Department. 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is adopted in the interest of public safety and general 
welfare of the residents of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and shall be in full force 
and effect from and after its adoption. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Goldsboro, that this Ordinance shall take effect on this 23rd day of September 2019. 
 
 
  
         _______________________ 
         Mayor 
 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 



Item:_____ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

 SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: US DEPT. OF JUSTICE: EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL 
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) FORMULA PROGRAM: 
LOCAL SOLICITATION 

BACKGROUND: The Goldsboro Police Department has been notified that Federal  
grant funds are available from the 2019 Edward Byrne Memorial 
Justice Assistance Grant (JAG).  This is the same grant that was 
applied for in 2018.  

DISCUSSION: The total amount of the grant is $47,003.00.  As in 2018, the Grant 
requires that the application be filed on behalf of both the Goldsboro 
Police Department and the Wayne County Sheriff’s Office.  Each 
agency would receive $23,501.50. 

The grant requires that an Interlocal Agreement is submitted with 
the application indicating the agreement between both agencies, the 
amount each agency will receive and how the grant will be 
administered.  In addition, the Interlocal Agreement and Grant 
Application are required to be distributed to the City Council for 
review only, no fewer than 30 days prior to the application 
submission, or before the grant will be awarded.  

The Goldsboro Police Department has agreed to purchase   
additional patrol rifles to improve officer safety by having the ability 
to confront heavy-duty firepower situations that cannot be 
accomplished through the use of traditional sidearms and the Wayne 
County Sheriff’s Office has agreed to purchase 32 Ballistic Shields. 

RECOMMENDATIONS: It is recommended that the attached resolution be adopted  
supporting the Police Department applying for this grant. 

DATE: _____________________ _______________________ 
Michael West, Chief of Police 

DATE: ______________________ _______________________ 
Timothy M. Salmon, City Manager 

S



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 

 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2019 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL 
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) APPLICATION 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro wishes to submit an application for the 2019 

Justice Assistance Grant Funds; and 
    
 WHEREAS, The Goldsboro Police Department wishes to purchase patrol rifles 
with JAG Funds to improve officer safety and better protect citizens by having the ability 
to confront heavy-duty firepower situations that cannot be accomplished through the use 
of traditional sidearms. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 

1. The Goldsboro Police Department is authorized to apply for the 2019 JAG 
Funds in the amount of $47,003.00. 

 
2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the 23rd day of 

September, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
         _______________________ 
         Mayor 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
 



       Item_______  

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Fall Fest at the First Church – Temporary Street Closing Request 

 BACKGROUND: The First Church is seeking a permit to close First Church 
Road so that the Fall Fest can take place on October 31, 
2019.  

DISCUSSION: Due to the logistics of the event and to keep attendees safe, 
the First Church has requested the closing of First Church 
Road from 9:00 a.m. - 11:00 p.m. on October 31, 2019.   

All vendor booths, entertainment attractions and displays will 
be arranged to secure proper access to all fire hydrants, 
alleyways and driveways.   

Affected city departments will be contacted and the following 
concerns are to be addressed: 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department
traffic control.

2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained in the center of the
street to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.

3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated
with the Police Department.

4. Police, Fire and Public Works Departments are to be
involved in the logistical aspects of the event.

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, grant the requested temporary closing of First 
Church Road for the Fall Fest at the First Church from 9:00 
a.m. - 11:00 p.m. on October 31, 2019.   

Date: _ 
Mike West, Police Chief 

Date: _ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

T

















Item _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Thriller Night – Temporary Street Closing Request 

BACKGROUND: A request was received from the Downtown Goldsboro Merchants 
Association requesting permission to close a portion of certain City 
streets on October 25, 2019 from 2:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. in order to 
hold Thriller Night. 

DISCUSSION: The street closing request is as follows: 

The Downtown Goldsboro Merchants Association has requested the 
closing of the 100 and 200 block of North Center Street between Ash 
and Walnut Streets to include the intersection at Center and Mulberry 
Streets. 

A rain date has been scheduled for October 26, 2019. 

The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices have 
been notified of this request. 

Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.

2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to
provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.

3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the
Police Department.

4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices
are to be involved in the logistical aspects of this event.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council by motion, grant a street 
closing at the 100 and 200 block of North Center Street between Ash 
and Walnut Street to include the intersection at Center and Mulberry 
Streets on October 25, 2019 from 2:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. in order that 
the Annual Thriller Night event may take place, subject to the above 
conditions. 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Mike West, Police Chief  

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

U



















Item _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Walk to De-feet Dementia – Temporary Street Closing Request 

BACKGROUND: A request was received from the Dementia Alliance of North Carolina 
requesting permission to close a portion of certain City streets on 
October 26, 2019 from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. in order to hold Walk 
to De-feet Dementia, an event that recognizes caregivers, sponsors and 
teams.  The event sponsors will supply dementia educational 
information.      

DISCUSSION: The street closing request is as follows: 

The closing of the 200 block of North Center Street between Ash and 
Mulberry Streets.  

The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices have 
been notified of this request. 

Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.

2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to
provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.

3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the
Police Department.

4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices
are to be involved in the logistical aspects of this event.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council by motion, grant a street 
closing at the 200 block of North Center Street on October 26, 2019 
from 7:00 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. in order that the Walk to De-feet 
Dementia event may take place, subject to the above conditions. 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Mike West, Police Chief  

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

V

















         Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Goldsboro Christmas Parade – Temporary Street Closing Request 

BACKGROUND: The annual Christmas Parade is one of the many local traditions 
helping to usher the holiday season into the Goldsboro area.  The 
parade is organized, coordinated and sponsored by the Wayne County 
Chamber of Commerce. 

DISCUSSION: The street closing request for Saturday, December 7, 2019 is as 
follows: 

Parade Route:  South on Center Street beginning at Ash Street to 
Chestnut Street; going around traffic circle heading North on Center 
Street to Walnut Street; East on Walnut Street to John Street; North on 
John Street to Mulberry Street: West on Mulberry Street to Center 
Street; North on Center Street to Ash Street ending at Ash Street. 

Staging Areas:  Oak Street between James and William Streets, Vine 
Street between Center and William Streets, Beech Street between John 
and William Streets, and Center Street from Oak to Ash Streets.   

Streets closed for the Staging Area: Center Street from Holly Street to 
Ash Street; John Street from Holly Street to Ash Street; and Center 
Street at Spruce Street. 

Additional Closures recommended by the Police Department to 
manage traffic flow will encompass: James Street from Oak to Ash 
Streets, John Street from Chestnut Street to Ash, Mulberry Street from 
James to William, Walnut Street from James to Ormond Ave, Chestnut 
Street from James to Ormond Ave; and Ash Street from James to John 
Streets. 

Parking Restrictions: No parallel parking on Center Street from Spruce 
Street to Ash Street.    

The time requested for the closing is from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  
Police have indicated that traffic will be restricted from 8:00 a.m. until 
3:30 p.m. and all traffic stopped at 3:30 p.m.  The actual parade will 
begin at 4:00 p.m. and end at approximately 7:00 p.m. 

The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Goldsboro offices have 
been notified of this request. 

W



 
 
 Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the following 

conditions: 
 
 1.  All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control. 
 2.  A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to  
      provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 
 3.  All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with the  
      Police Department. 
 4.  The Police, Fire, Public Works and DGDC offices are to be  
       involved in the logistical aspects of this event. 

             
RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Council approve the street closing of 

sections of Pine, Spruce, Center, Walnut, John, Mulberry, James, and 
Chestnut Streets for the Christmas Parade route from 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 
p.m. on Saturday, December 7, 2019.   
 
 
 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
      Mike West, Police Chief 
 
 

 
DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
      Tim Salmon, City Manager 









9/9/19









           Item  _  ___ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Victorian Mourning Practices – Temporary Street Closing Request 

BACKGROUND: The Wayne County Historical Association is requesting 
permission to close a portion of certain City streets beginning at 
5:00 p.m. until 10:30 p.m. on Saturday, October 26, 2019 to hold 
their Victorian Mourning Practices event. 

DISCUSSION: The street closing request is for Chestnut Street between George 
and James Streets.  

The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Development 
offices have been notified of this request. 

Staff recommends approval of this request subject to the 
following conditions: 

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic
control.

2. A 14-foot fire lane is maintained in the center of the street to
provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.

3. All activities, changes in plans, etc. will be coordinated with
the Police Department.

4. The Police, Fire, Public Works and Downtown Development
offices are to be involved in the logistical aspects of this event.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends Council, by motion, grant the street closings 
for Chestnut Street between George and James Street from 5:00 
p.m. until 10:30 p.m. on Saturday, October 26th for the Wayne 
County Historical Association’s Victorian Mourning Practices 
event, subject to the above conditions. 

DATE: ____________________ _____________________________________ 
Mike West, Police Chief  

DATE:  ___________________ ______________________________ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

X









9/18/19







Item No. _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Downtown Lights Up! - Temporary Street Closing Request  

BACKGROUND: Downtown Lights Up! Is an annual holiday event held 
downtown to celebrate the “flipping of the switch” - 
officially beginning the holiday season.  All the decorative 
lights, including those along Center Street, the traffic circle 
Magnolia tree, and the Water Tower are turned on 
simultaneously.  Before conducting this ceremony of lights, 
our Mayor, Santa, the Grinch and children ride a horse-drawn 
trolley down to City Hall to welcome guests. We’re even 
trucking in tons of snow to set the tone for a very festive 
downtown holiday season. 

DISCUSSION: Downtown Development completes the evening by hosting 
an array of free activities, including: holiday entertainment, 
horse drawn trolley rides, Santa Claus, face painting, and 
providing warm beverages and treats.  It is a wonderful time 
of the year for people to experience the warm atmosphere 
and festive activities downtown has to offer.  The majority of 
the event takes place on the 200 block of North Center Street, 
in front of City Hall, which will provide a natural backdrop 
for the Mayor when he speaks to the crowd wishing them a 
happy holiday season.  Trolley rides will take place along 
Center Street from Mulberry to Walnut St, a holiday movie 
will play in the John Street Parking Lot, a large ice slide will 
be set up for sledding and much more. The NC Symphony 
performs at 8 p.m. at the Paramount Theatre that same 
evening to continue the holiday celebration.  Each year our 
crowd gets larger and we believe this year to be no different 
with an expected 5000+ in attendance.     

Due to the logistics of the horse drawn trolley, this event has 
always been promoted as a street fair.  Downtown Development 
is requesting that the 200 block of North Center Street be closed 
on Tuesday, November 26, 2019 from 9:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. 
and the 100 block of South Center and the 100 block of North 
Center be closed from 4:15 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. to keep guests 
safe. 

Y



 All vendor booths, entertainment attractions and displays will 
be arranged to secure proper access to all fire hydrants, 
alleyways and driveways. 

 
 As with all Downtown Development events, effected city 

departments will be contacted and the following concerns are 
to be addressed: 

   
1. All intersections remain open for Police Department 

traffic control. 
 

2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained in the center of the 
street to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles. 

 
3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated 

with the Police Department. 
 
4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works are to 

be involved in the logistical aspects of the Event. 
 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, grant the requested temporary closing of the 200 
block of North Center Street on Tuesday, November 26, 2019 
from 9:00 a.m. to 8:30 p.m. and the 100 block of South 
Center and the 100 block of North Center be closed from 
4:15 p.m. to 8:30 p.m. to be used for activities associated 
with Downtown Lights Up!, subject to the above conditions. 

 
  

 
Date: ________________            ________________________________________ 
   Mike West, Police Chief   
    
 
 
Date: ________________   ________________________________________ 
   Tim Salmon, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 

















Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

SEPTEMBER 23, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Hire Outside Legal 
Counsel for and Limited Authority to Resolve Liability Claims 

BACKGROUND: Pursuant to N.C. General Statutes, the City of Goldsboro is 
authorized to enter into contracts for the retention of attorneys for 
services in addition to the retention of the City Attorney. Pursuant to 
N.C. General Statutes, the City of Goldsboro has the authority to 
purchase liability insurance. 

DISCUSSION: Liability insurance carriers often desire, and include in the contracts 
of coverage, the right to retain an attorney other than the City 
Attorney on behalf of the insurance carrier and the City to defend the 
interests of the City and the insurance carrier against claims. 

Oftentimes the said retained attorneys will require the execution of 
an engagement letter/agreement with the City setting forth the terms 
of its retention and representation and fees. It is necessary for such to 
be executed and retained by an official of the City with the authority 
to execute said letter/agreement authority. The City Manager would 
be an appropriate official to execute the same and retain the said 
attorney. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, adopt a resolution authorizing:  

1. The City Manager to retain the services of outside legal counsel
to assist in the defense of claims brought where one or more of
the City’s liability insurance carriers have requested outside
counsel for representation of the their and the City’s interests and
to execute any engagement letters and/or agreements for
retaining the same.

2. The City Manager to authorize the resolution of any claims
covered by liability insurance coverages within and/or to the
extent of the deductible not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars
($10,000.00) applicable to the policy and to execute any
agreements or other documents for said resolution on behalf of
the City within and to the extent of the same.

Date: ________________            ________________________________________ 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney   

Date: ________________  ________________________________________ 
Tim Salmon, City Manager 

Z



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-_______ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO HIRE OUTSIDE 
LEGAL COUNSEL FOR AND LIMITED AUTHORITY TO RESOLVE 

LIABILITY CLAIMS  
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. General Statutes, the City of Goldsboro is 
authorized to enter into contracts for the retention of attorneys for services in 
addition to the retention of the City Attorney, and pursuant to N.C. General statutes, 
the City of Goldsboro has the authority to purchase liability insurance; and 
 

WHEREAS, liability insurance carriers often desire, and include in the 
contracts of coverage, the right to retain an attorney other than the City Attorney on 
behalf of the insurance carrier and the City to defend the interests of the City and 
the insurance carrier against claims; and 
 
 WHEREAS, oftentimes the said retained attorneys will require the execution 
of an engagement letter/agreement with the City setting forth the terms of its 
retention and representation and fees; it is necessary for such to be executed and 
retained by an official of the City with the authority to execute said letter/agreement 
authority; and that the City Manager would be an appropriate official to execute the 
same and retain the said attorney; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City incurs expenses for the procurement of said coverages 
under liability insurance policies which are included in the budget each year and are 
approved each year when the said budget ordinance is approved and therefore any 
deductible not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), applicable to the said 
policies are approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, there is often a deductible for each said policy and it is necessary 
to authorize the resolution of claims either within the said deductible or to the extent 
of the deductible as a contribution to a resolution of a claim and that an official of the 
City have the authority to so enter such agreement and to authorize the settlement 
within and/or to the extent of said deductible and thus the payment of said funds to 
accomplish the same; and that for convenience purposes that City Manager would be 
an appropriate official to authorize and execute the same. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Goldsboro City Council 
that: 
  
 Section 1.  The City Manager is hereby authorized to retain the services of 
outside legal counsel to assist in the defense of claims brought where one or more of 
the City’s liability insurance carriers have requested outside counsel for 



representation of the their and the City’s interests and to execute any engagement 
letters and/or agreements for retaining the same. 
 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to authorize the resolution 
of any claims covered by liability insurance coverages within and/or to the extent of 
the deductible not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) applicable to the 
policy and to execute any agreements or other documents for said resolution on behalf 
of the City within and to the extent of the same. 
 
 Section 3.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 
23rd day of September 2019. 
  
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       By: Chuck Allen, Mayor 
       Goldsboro City Council 
 
 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
________________________________ 
Michelle Capps, City Clerk 
 
 
  
  
 
  
 

 

   

 



City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

August 2019 

1. Human Resources
2. Community Relations 
3. Paramount Theater-GEC
4. Inspections
5. Downtown Development
6. Information Technology
7. Public Works
8. Public Utilities
9. Finance

10. Planning
11. Engineering
12. Fire
13. Police
14. Parks and Recreation
15. Travel and Tourism

Item AA



 

 
 

1 

 
 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES  
August 2019 
Prepared By: Pamela C. Leake  
Date Prepared: September 9, 2019  
 
The Human Resources Department posted 15 job vacancies and processed 247 applications this month. 
One hundred twenty-three notices were sent to applicants (101 sent to applicants not selected for an 
interview and 21 sent to candidates interviewed but not selected for hire). We welcomed nine new hires 
this month: Six full-time (Chandler	Daughtry,	 Jennifer	 LeCrone,	Donald	Riggs,	 Shirley	 James,	 and	
Felicia	Tavares	–	Police	Officer	Trainees	and	Adam	Henn	–	Operator	I	(Public	Utilities)	and three 
part-time (Delbert	Council	–	Custodian,	Parks	and	Recreation; Kayla	Keyes	–	Recreation	Aide,	Parks	
and	Recreation, and John	Stutts,	Fire	Inspector	–	Civilian). There were 28 reductions this month: three 
resignations, one retirement, one termination, and 23 seasonal employees whose assignments ended. Total 
employment for August was 621:	459 full time and 162 part-time. Employee turnover rate (voluntary) was 
4.5% due to seasonal reduction.    
 
Departmental Activities 

 The Senior HR Consultant conducted NeoGov training for Fire personnel on August 1 and 
Employment Law training for the new Police Officer (Recruiter) on August 6.  

 Human Resources staff attended National Night Out on August 6.   
 Skype Interviews were held for candidates who applied for the Golf Director vacancy.  
 Safety Officer Interviews were held August 29.  
 Human Resources staff presented Performance Management and the evaluation process, updates 

to NeoGov, and the new Performance Pay Award at the large staff meeting on August 30. One 
hundred eleven personnel attended the session at W.A. Foster.   

 Plans are underway for this year’s Health/Wellness Fair being held October	4 at the Event Center.  
 
Safety Highlights 

 OSHA consultative reports were sent to the Safety Officer identifying items for abatement, as a 
result of the on-site visits on July 22. They were sent to the respective departments for correction.  

 Employees participated in on-line safety training for professional development. Topics included 
Lock-Out/Tag-Out, Confined Spaces, and Fall Protection.  

 An appeals committee met on July 31 to review two vehicle accident cases. The City Manager 
received the committee’s recommendations and will submit final notifications to affected staff.     

 The Vehicle Accident and Personal Injury Committee met on August 29 to review five (5) vehicle 
accidents. Recommendations were sent to the City Manager with three (3) employees determined 
to be at fault and two (2) not at-fault.  

 
This month’s Occupational Health report includes 68 clinic visits. Four non-DOT random drug screens were 
performed; all tests were negative.   



2 

 
2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JULY AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Applications 348 320 346 542 283 203 401 247     336 
New Hires  11 7 1 3 3 1 8 6     5 
Separations  3 3 6 3 1 5 4 3     3 
Vehicle 
Accidents 

7 4 6 3 6 4 5 
	

5 
 

    5 

Workers’ 
Compensation 

2 4 3 0 2 2 0 0     2 

 
 
 
 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 
August 2019 
Prepared By:  Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  September 18, 2019 
 
 The Commission on Community Relations and Development meeting for Thursday, August 13, 2019 was 

cancelled.  The next scheduled meeting is Tuesday, September 10, 2019 at 6:00 pm. 
 

 The Department received two (2) housing complaints and one (1) request for assistance.  Description of 
said complaints and/or inquiries are: one (1) eviction dispute; one (1) rodent infestation and minimum 
housing issues with the ceiling of the rental; and one (1) request for assistance related to HVAC system 
needed for the home. All complaints were submitted through the 311 GIS system or to the appropriate 
City Department for resolution or designated community/state resources.  
 

 The Goldsboro Mayor’s Youth Council (GYC) is out for summer recess and will return to regular business 
in September.  GYC Orientation is scheduled for Wednesday, September 4, 2019 at 6:00 pm.  A few 
members of the Youth Council participated in recruitment at National Night Out held at Herman Park on 
August 6, 2019. 
 

 The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities met on Thursday, August 15, 2019.  The next 
scheduled meeting is Thursday, September 15, 2019.  The committee is working on planning its annual 
Disability Awards Luncheon, scheduled for Thursday, October 17, 2019 to be held at the Goldsboro Event 
Center. 
 

 On July 26th, the 2019 Summer Youth Employment Initiative (SYEI) program had thirty (30) youth 
employees to end their work assignments at various designated worksites for Track 1.  On July 15th, the 
SYEI program had twenty (20) youth employees to begin their work assignments at various designated 
worksites for Track 2.  Youth employees for SYEI Track 2 work assignments will ended on August 23rd.   
 
SYEI Track 2 youth employees also completed three (3) scheduled training sessions at Wayne Community 
College as part of the program’s comprehensive workforce development strategy.  On August 21st SYEI 
Track 2 youth employees participated in a new workforce readiness component of the SYEI program ─ 
an Industry and Business Tour to Stormberg Foods, Franklin Baking Co., and Uchiyama Manufacturing 
America, Inc.  

Housing 1 4 5 2 2 4 2 2 3

Consumer & Other 3 4 3 4 3 4 6 1 4

Housing 5 5 9 3 2 3 1 3 0 9 0 1 3

Consumer & Other 1 2 0 0 3 2 9 10 2 5 7 2 4

Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep2019	Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr

2018	Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr Oct Nov Dec AVGMay Jun Jul Aug Sep



 

 
 

1 

PARAMOUNT & GEC 
August, 2019 
Prepared By:  Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared: 9/16/2019 

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐PARAMOUNT	THEATRE‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
 August	Activities	included: Princess of North Carolina Pageant, United Way “Elvis in Hawaii” 

Benefit Concert, locally produced feature film premiere, “Blacq Summa”.   
 Repairs	and	Maintenance: 	

o HVAC and Roof leaks identified by PW, repairs being coordinated under HVAC contract.	
o Theatre “Fly rigging” underwent annual inspection and maintenance.	
o Detailed painting, cleaning, storage and equipment mounting executed by Paramount Staff.	

	

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐GOLDSBORO EVENT CENTER‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 

 August	Activities	included: 6 events, including 2 tournaments, 3 meetings, 1 family reunion. 

 Repairs	and	Maintenance:  
o HVAC and Ceiling leaks identified by PW, repairs being coordinated under HVAC contract. 

 Paramount	and	GEC	staff	participation	included: Foundation Board meeting, 
Goldsboro/Wilson/Rocky Mount collaboration meeting, Communications Team, Staff meetings, 
Council Work Sessions, Renter conferences, South Arts/DTI, South Arts/NC Arts, Arts Council, 
Touch a Truck, Wayne County Schools.	

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐FINANCIAL‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐ 
	

Paramount:  Expenses are above average; Revenues are below average. 
o Expenses –$41,241:       Labor ‐   $27,111 /Operational – $15,130     
o Revenues ‐ $8,090:         Rentals ‐$6,238 /Tickets $2,185 /Concession $0     

*August 2018 revenue reflects box office fees transferred from 2017/2018 fiscal year.  Sept. 18 expense includes reapirs to exterior building 

GEC:  Expenses above average; Revenue above average; Non‐revenue City use below average. 
o Expenses – $10,356    Labor ‐  $7,089 /Operational – $3,267 
o Revenues – $8,369:             Rentals ‐ $7,794 /Concessions – $575 
o City Use – $2,700:     Value of non‐Revenue City use: 4 events = $2,700 

  Jan‐19  Feb‐19  Mar‐19  April‐19  May‐19  June‐19  July‐19 Aug‐19  Sept‐19 Oct‐19  Nov‐19  Dec‐19  2019 Total 2019 Average

Exp  $9,198  $8,624  $13,459  $13,121  $6,968  $8,393  $6,887  $10,356    $77,006  $9,626 

Rev  $4,645  $7,204  $11,475  $5,932  $2,529  $13,136  $2,000  $8,369    $55,290  $6,911 

City  $1,900  $5,100  $8,525  $3,875  $7,975  $5,225  $2,075  $2,700    $37,375  $4,672 
  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar‐18  April‐18  May‐18  June‐18  July‐18 Aug‐18  Sept‐18 Oct‐18  Nov‐18  Dec‐18  2018 Total 2018 Average

Exp  $5,379  $7,310  $14,096  $14,484  $7,852  $7,072  $9,083  $11,367  $7,815  $16,427  $8,760  $10,306 $119,951 $9,996 

Rev  $2,890  $5,556  $7,526  $15,201  $9,980  $4,309  $7,971  $7,131  $2,143  $10,781  $3,326  $5,224  $82,038  $6,837 

City  $750  $4,800  $4,750  $4,975  $9,475  $4,325  $3,425  $6,175  $3,925  $12,475  $9,150  $7,000  $71,225  $5,935 

 

  Jan‐19  Feb‐19  Mar‐19  April‐19  May‐19  June‐19 July‐19  Aug‐19  Sept‐19 Oct‐19  Nov‐19  Dec‐19  2019 Total 2019 Average

Exp  $34,447  $33,393  $68,435  $41,297  $25,832  $34,713  $21,916  $41,241          $301,274  $37,659 

Rev  $12,993  $13,259  $15,347  $5,406  $20,107  $19,988  $8,423  $8,090          $103,613  $12,952 

  Jan‐18  Feb‐18  Mar‐18  April‐18  May‐18  June‐18 July‐18  Aug‐18  Sept‐18 Oct‐18  Nov‐18  Dec‐18  2018 Total 2018 Average

Exp  $32,968  $25,012  $48,050  $39,962  $32,137  $24,298  $55,630  $40,550  $68,803  $42,545  $40,161  $32,024  $482,140  $40,178 

Rev  $16,549  $7,471  $35,001  $8,954  $15,408  $11,597  $6,293  $17,910  $332  $5,741  $23,896  $16,954  $179,948  $14,995 

Note:  Elevated Aug 
expenses due to 3 
pay periods in month

Note:  Elevated Aug 
expenses due to 3 
pay periods in month



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
August, 2019 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared: 9/10/19 
 
The valuation of all building permits issued during the month of August totaled $11,095,352. Three (3) of 
these permits were new residential single-family dwellings at a valuation of $557,250. 
 
The valuation of all miscellaneous (Mechanical, gas, insulation, electrical, plumbing, fire, sprinkler, pool, 
tank, demolition, signs, business inspection, & itinerant merchant) permits issued during this time period 
totaled $1,550,251. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $39,877.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, 
$3,285 was collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $1,575. 
Business Registration fees collected totaled $2,120. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 663 inspections for the month.  During the month of August one (1) business 
inspection was completed.  A total of 255 permits were issued for the month.   Thirty-five (35) plan 
reviews were completed for August. We now have a total of 111 residential structures in the Minimum 
Housing Process and 6 commercial structures in the Demolition by Neglect Process. 
 
 
 
 

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
Permit Value 
All Bldgs (mm) $2 $14 $6 $428K $8 $2 $4 $11 $6

Residential (k) $805 $1mm $599 $0 2mm $767 $580 $557 $790

Misc  (mm) $5 $2 $2 $2 $2 $1 $3 $2 $2

Permit Fee (k) $34 $40 $48 $27 $46 $41 $38 $40 $39

Inspections 614 603 531 497 603 488 533 663 566

Permits Issued 296 296 270 271 334 296 329 255 293

Plan Reviews 39 47 65 46 34 43 90 35 50

Min Housing 171 99 102 118 121 125 126 111 122

      In Process 

2018 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
Permit Value 
All Bldgs (mm) $10 $13 $3 $5 $5 $2 $5 $6 $3 $5 $12 $6 $6

Residential (k) $848 $518 $1mm $786 $1mm $2mm $1mm $2mm $120 $207 $246 $807 $882

Misc  (mm) $2 $2 $2 $3 $2 $1 $2 $2 $1 $1 $2 $1 $2

Permit Fee (k) $31 $33 $30 $31 $48 $51 $65 $60 $21 $41 $49 $21 $40

Inspections 524 539 544 564 582 692 675 659 345 589 516 373 550

Permits Issued 258 263 284 295 418 351 344 373 279 326 258 226 306

Plan Reviews 75 41 52 74 85 39 42 67 51 85 39 50 58

Min Housing 163 163 143 152 152 152 161 161 161 161 163 171 159

      In Process 



 

 
 

1 

Downtown Development Department 
August 2019 
Prepared By: Julie Metz 
Date Prepared: August 31, 2019 
  
Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

 Staff continued to work through TIGER VIII developments.    

 Staff met with (or conversed by email/phone) 6 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interests regarding downtown. 

 Over the past month, staff visited current downtown businesses 21 different times. 

 Staff worked on the Wayfinding Signage Bid Package related to the TIGER grant.                

 Staff helped facilitate and participate in several neighborhood plan meetings. 

 Julie worked to assure the continuation of the NC Historic Preservation Tax Credit program throughout the 
month. 

Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Staff created ads for Go, Buzz, 107.9, digital billboards and News‐Argus for upcoming downtown events. 

 Staff attended multiple Merchants Association meetings throughout the month. 

 Staff hosted the Small Business Center in Downtown event on the first Monday of the month. 

 Staff help to facilitate and attended several Streetscape meetings throughout the month of August. 

 Staff attended a meeting with SJAFB and Travel & Tourism to discuss the History Channel visit to film “It’s How 
You Get There”. 

 Staff attended the Economic Outlook Luncheon hosted by the Chamber of Commerce on August 7th. 

 Staff hosted a NC Historic Preservation Site Visit on August 16th. 

 Staff attended the United Way Ribbon Cutting ceremony on August 22nd. 

 Staff attended the WAYne Forward Opportunity Zones in our Community meeting on August 28th. 

 Staff continued to work on establishing a relationship with UNC’s based NC GROWTH that will lead to a 
feasibility study to research an incubator type facility for downtown.   

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  

 Staff facilitated and attended the following monthly meetings: DGDC Board (08/21), DGDC Executive Committee 
(08/14), DGDC Design (08/13), DGDC EV (08/13), DGDC Promotions (08/13) and Org. Work Plan (08/14). 

 Staff helped assist the DGDC with seven (7) DGDC boardroom rentals throughout the month. 

 Staff worked with committees on the 2019 Work Plan development.  

 Staff facilitated notifications to the artists who will install their art on Center Street in October.  

 Staff facilitated and hosted Center Street Jam on August 8th. 

 Staff facilitated and hosted Center Street Jam on August 22nd. 

 Staff continued to plan the Annual Dinner in the month of August.  

 Staff worked through contracts with the artists chosen to display their art in Downtown for the next year. 

Upcoming Events/Activities:  

 Annual Dinner and Awards Ceremony will be held on September 20th from 6:15pm until 8:00pm. 



 

 The Creepy Crawl bar crawl will be held on October 25th from 9:00pm until 12:00am. 

 A play, Blithe Spirit, will be performed at The Paramount Theatre on September 26th and 27th, hosted by the 
DGDC Board of Directors.  

Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased: 

 Gypsy Bean Coffee Shop held its Grand Opening Ribbon Cutting on August 13th. 

 Brisas Latin Cuisine held its Grand Opening Ribbon Cutting on August 16th. 

 Construction has begun on 215 N John St. 

Other: 

 Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers/likes grew from 10,753 to 10,801 in the month of August. 

 



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
August, 2019  
Prepared By: Patricia Wischmann 
Date Prepared: September 10, 2019  
 

 Installed and configured multiple network devices to improve City networking infrastructure. 
 Deployed new Mobile Device Terminals for Police Department vehicles. 
 Installed speakers in Large Conference Room to improve sound level for those in attendance.  
 Set up temporary workspace for Police Department employees due to construction. 
 Installed new multifunction devices for Finance, Fire, Park Maintenance, Police, and Public 

Utilities. 
 Created a mobile app for Public Works users to submit work orders into Cityworks. 
 Created report for tracking open tickets. 

 
 

2019 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL
               
Tickets 
Opened 

662 536 546 519 540 424 686 708     559 3913 

Tickets 
Closed 

551 467 575 429 496 454 942 664     559 3914 

Open  
Tickets 

456 490 457 549 582 612 300 342     474  

 
 



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC WORKS 
August 2019 
Prepared By: Chad Edge 
Date Prepared: September 16, 2019 

Distribution & Collections 
 Responded to 25 after hour calls for a total of 41.25 hours.  
 Set bypass pumps, replaced backflow preventer and mowed around the ponds at WRF. 

Buildings & Grounds 
 Assisted with two Center Street Jam events, set up for the National Night Out event downtown, 

and set up stage for Back To School event at HV Brown Park. 
 Installed 500 feet of new underground electrical conduit and conductor at PD/FD Complex for 

parking lot lighting—saving significant time and money associated with contract change orders.  
 Upgrade and installed 16 LED lighting fixtures in the WA Foster basketball gym area, as well 45 

LED lighting fixtures in the City Garage storage room. 
Streets and Stormwater  

 Continued with Cornerstone Commons DEMO—coordinated with contractor to remove asphalt. 
 Coordinated with CSX to clean partially blocked railroad culvert near Orchard St that conveys city 

stormwater runoff. 

Distribution & Collections Utility Line Maint (1000-ft) 24.2 
 Lines Camera'd (1000-ft) 14.3 
 Water Repairs 26 
 Sewer Repairs 10 
 Hydrants Replaced/Fixed 13 
 Meters Install/Changed 51 
Buildings & Grounds Radio, Electrical, Building Maint. 

Work Orders  324 
 Sign Repairs 25 
 ROW Mowing (ac) 107 
 City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac) 106 
Garage Total Work Orders 397 
  Total Fuel Cost (x1000) $68  
Solid Waste Refuse (x1000 tons) 1.0 
 Recyclables (tons) 79 
 Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons) 0.7 
Cemetery Funerals 3 
Streets & Stormwater Utility Cut Repairs 13 
 Pot Hole Repairs 19 
 Streets Swept (curb miles) 45 
 Storm Pipe Maint (1000-ft) 1.26 
 Ditch Mowing (1000-ft) 6.05 
 Storm Pipe Repairs 5 

 



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
August 2019 
Prepared By: Michael Wagner 
Date Prepared: September 12, 2019 
 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

 The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
 Bids are scheduled to be received October 1, 2019 for the Plate Settler Project. 
 Interviews were conducted with qualified firms for the Utility Rate Study. 

 
Water Reclamation Facility 

 The Water Reclamation Facility operations are proceeding smoothly.  
 The average daily flows for August were 6.83 MGD.  
 All of the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well, with the exception of the 117 station bar 

screen.  
 
Compost Facility 

 One hundred and twenty-one cubic yards of compost/mulch was sold in August 2019. 
 
Historical	data	for	water	and	sewer	volumes	are	in	million	gallons	per	day	(MGD)	and	are	average	
daily	flows	for	each	month.	
 

2019	
MGD	

Jan	 Feb	 Mar	 Apr	 May	 Jun	 Jul	 Aug	 Sep	 Oct	 Nov Dec Monthly	
Average	

Water*	 6.206 6.053 6.016 6.175 7.237 7.351 7.361 6.890     6.661 
Sewer**	 11.66 11.76 12.22 11.01 7.84 8.28 7.39 6.83     9.62 
Compost	 52 319 390 552 503 437 103 121     309 

*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
	

2018	
MGD	

Jan	 Feb	 Mar	 Apr	 May	 Jun	 Jul	 Aug	 Sep	 Oct	 Nov	 Dec	 Monthly
Average

Water*	 6.625 6.232 6.262 6.017 6.303 6.83 6.632 6.727 6.149 6.692 6.374 6.027 6.405 
Sewer**	 7.66 10.45 9.97 9.41 10.77 7.83 6.71 11.50 17.46 10.54 11.48 13.97 10.64
Compost	 395 876 686 913 951 910 220 604 157 144 233 238 527 
*Water permit- 12.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
AUGUST, 2019 
Prepared By: Andrea Thompson 
Date Prepared: September 14, 2019 
 

 

FY	18‐19
Actual	to	Date YTD	%

Revenues Actual Adjusted	Budget August‐19 Collected
General Fund 3,972,919$      43,395,311$        1,500,104$      3.46%
Utility Fund 4,173,469        17,207,328          3,040,250        17.67%
Downtown District Fund 1,803               100,351               345                  0.34%
Occupancy Tax Fund 231,413           1,113,732            178,171           16.00%
Stormwater Fund 236,465           1,366,249            255,583           18.71%
     Total 8,616,069$      63,182,971$        4,974,453$      7.87%

Expenditures
General Fund 7,962,765$      43,395,311$        6,448,219$      14.86%
Utility Fund 3,919,450        17,207,328 1,539,012 8.94%
Downtown District Fund 11,010             100,351 1,146 1.14%
Occupancy Tax Fund 308,033           1,113,732 106,252 9.54%
Stormwater Fund 138,686           1,366,249 97,950 7.17%
     Total 12,339,944$    63,182,971$        8,192,579$      12.97%

FY	18‐19
Revenues Actual	to	Date YTD	%

Actual Adjusted	Budget August‐19 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 529,402$         18,092,380$        349,071$         1.93%
Charges for Services 3,849,685        22,522,489          4,044,932        17.96%
Revenue Other Agencies 2,565,587        16,382,031          292,911           1.79%
Other Revenues 1,671,395        6,186,071            287,541           4.65%
     Total 8,616,069$      63,182,971$        4,974,455$      7.87%

Expenditures
Labor 5,600,811$      31,024,058$        4,705,093$      15.17%
Non-Labor 6,739,133        32,158,913          3,487,445        10.84%
     Total 12,339,944$    63,182,971$        8,192,538$      12.97%

FY	18‐19 Actual Total	
Collections Actual August‐19 Collected	F‐YTD

Debt Setoff 42,896$           478$                     2,545$             
Surplus 160,832$         6,367$                  10,952$           

OVERALL	SUMMARY

MAJOR	CATEGORIES

FY	19‐20

FY	19‐20

SELECTED	OTHER	INFORMATION



1 

PLANNING 
August, 2019 
Prepared By: Debra Creighton 
Date Prepared: 9-13-2019 

During the month of August, the Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial 
and residential building and sign permits. Staff continues to prepare for upcoming 
meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the MTP Update, a marketing contract 
for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to Goldsboro signs and enhancement 
areas. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-
related documents and preparation of case reports. Code Enforcement issues $25.00 
parking violation tickets within the downtown area or upon notification elsewhere in the 
City. During the month of August, sixteen (16) tickets were issued (see below).   

Parked in Wrong Direction 8 
Parked in Proximity of Hydrant 0 
Parked in Prohibited Area – No Parking Zone 8 
Other – Bus Loading, Crosswalk, Sidewalk 0 

2019 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Site/Subdivision Plans

Planning 

Commission
3 6 6 5 5 5 4 1 35 4

Staff Level 0 1 0 3 1 7 3 3 18 2

Rezonings 0 2 3 3 1 3 2 0 14 2

Historic District 

Commission 0/1 0/1 2/1 1/1 1/3 1/3 1/2 1/0 6/10 1/2

Code Enforcement 

Grass Cutting 

# Lots + 

Payments

0 0 0 0
40 /

$4,915

98 / 

$7,025

15/

$1,145

69/ 

$ 5,225

252/ 

$18,310

63 / 

$4,578

Junk Vehicles 4 4 3 4 5 6 2 8 36 5

Tagged 

Vehicles
0 0 0 20 30 18 28 15 111 14

Illegal Signs 

Removed
444 79 30 197 20 25 35 0 830 104

Bags of Litter 

Picked Up
388 551 602 555 522 305 367 307 3597 450



 

 
 

1 

	
 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
AUGUST 2019 
Prepared by:  Guy M. Anderson, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  09-16-2019 
	 	 	 	 	 	 	 ________________________________		 	 ________________	
Stoney	Creek	Greenway			

 Staff is awaiting authorization to construct from NCDOT;	
 Project manual and final estimate are complete; 
 Anticipated advertisement for bids in October 2019. 

	
Phase	IV	Sewer	Collection	Rehabilitation		

 T. A. Loving Company is currently performing pipe bursting and CCTV work for sections of sanitary 
sewer line;	

 Project is 50% complete with a contract completion date of November 26, 2019.	
 
Center/Holly	Street	Water	Tank	Painting			

 Additional work added by Change Order No. 1 for installing davit arm manway and removal of 
internal spider rods and the center hub increased the contract time to October 21, 2019; 

  Project is 75% complete.   
 

SJAFB	Sewer	Outfall	Improvements		
 Staff is coordinating having the sewer line CCTV work completed to determine if sewer line can be 

lined using CIPP; 
 Anticipated advertisement for bids in October 2019. 

 
2019	Infrastructure	Recovery	(Goldenleaf	Foundation)		

 The design phase is complete with a scheduled bid opening of September 27, 2019.	
 
2018	Street	Improvement	Project		

 This paving project includes Oak Hill Drive from North Berkeley Boulevard to Green Drive and East 
Chestnut Street from South Slocumb Street to South Leslie Street;	

 City Council rejected all bids for this project during the August 5th Council meeting;	
 The project scope and design are being revised and the project will be advertised for bids in the next 

couple of months.	
	
2018	Street	Resurfacing		

 Railroad encroachment application has been submitted and approved; however, availability of 
railroad flaggers is approximately 6 weeks out; 

 Contract completion date is May 6, 2019, but will be adjusted due to railroad encroachment permit 
delays;	

 Project is 75% complete.	
 
 
 



 
2 

2018	Wastewater	Collection	System	Rehabilitation	Project		
 Additional work added by Change Order No. 1 is underway;	
 Project is 98% complete.	

 
2018	Virginia	Street	Storm	Sewer	Improvements		

 Staff is researching alternatives to correcting the drainage situation.	
	

Ash	Street/Alabama	Avenue	Sidewalk		
 Preliminary construction plans have been started; 
 Duke Energy has been contacted to relocate needed poles; 
 Anticipated advertisement for bids in October 2019.	

	
2017	Wastewater	System	Improvements		

 Design plans and specifications are being reviewed by NCDEQ;	
 Project advertisement anticipated in November 2019.	

	
2017	Water	System	Improvements	

 Design plans and specifications are being developed;	
 Design plans and specifications are anticipated to be sent for NCDEQ review in November 2019.	

	
2019	Water	System	Improvements	

 Received the NCDEQ Letter of Intent to Fund; 
 Staff is coordinating with the Finance Department to determine if the City of Goldsboro can afford 

the project; 
 Once Finance Department determines affordability, staff will develop a Request for Qualifications 

for design services and advertise in October 2019. 
	
2019	Street	Resurfacing	

 Final list was approved during the August 5th Council meeting; 
 Staff is working to develop a more detailed cost estimate to determine if additional street segments 

can be added; 
 Once the detailed estimate is developed, staff will begin putting together the contract documents 

and advertise for bids; 
 Anticipated advertise for bids in October 2019. 

	
Best	Management	Practices	(BMPs)	Inspections			

 Approximately 308 BMPs have been approved and 258 BMPS have been constructed to date;	
 All BMP inspections have been completed through the month August 2019. 

  



 

 
 

1 

2019 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.
Total Incidents: 196 191 203 209 241 207 215 199 208
Structure Fires: 5 3 2 4 1 1 4 2 3

EMS Calls: 72 84 79 76 76 79 75 74 77
Vehicle  Accidents: 27 30 40 33 39 27 22 36 32

Fire Alarms: 33 33 29 40 54 54 47 46 42
O ther: 59 41 53 56 71 46 67 41 54

Training Hours: 3122 3211 3263 1804 2128 1788 1885 2995 2525
Safety Car Seat Checks: 3 8 5 4 5 8 9 10 7

Inspections: 94 86 123 118 113 71 91 114 101
2018 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg.

Total Incidents: 234 165 196 197 222 182 195 229 375 223 205 197 218
Structure Fires: 3 6 2 2 6 2 1 2 4 4 2 3 3

EMS Calls: 63 52 63 68 89 69 71 87 138 79 87 69 78
Vehicle  Accidents: 49 22 39 27 38 34 38 31 36 34 41 29 35

Fire Alarms: 49 34 44 35 38 38 47 59 80 50 35 45 46
O ther: 70 51 48 65 51 39 38 50 117 56 40 51 56

Training Hours: 2683 2871 2149 2172 1962 1878 2776 3228 1465 1909 2138 1163 2199
Safety Car Seat Checks: 2 10 10 9 10 4 3 8 3 11 6 11 7

Inspections: 52 67 68 95 102 106 99 142 64 19 69 65 79

FIRE DEPARTMENT 
August, 2019 
Prepared By: CL/JD 
Date Prepared: 09.06.19 

Fire	Prevention	and	Outreach	
 8/1, 8/8, 8/15 – Community Service – Sprinkler Fun Days – Golds. Ped. Dent. and Ortho. 
 8/2, 8/9, 8/16 – Community Service – Summer Splash Days – Fairview Homes 
 8/4 – Public Education – Kathy’s Kitchen – Engine 4 
 8/5 – Public Education – Station 1 Tour – First Baptist Summer Camp 
 8/6, 8/13 – Community Service – Summer Splash Days – West Haven Apts. 
 8/6 – Public Education – National Night Out – Engine 2 
 8/7, 8/14 – Community Service – Summer Splash Days – The Grand at Day Point Apts. 
 8/7, 8/14 – Community Service – Summer Splash Days – Lincoln Homes 
 8/7, 8/21 – Community Service – Car Seat Checks – Station 2 
 8/7 – Public Education – Station 1 Tour – US Navy  
 8/8, 8/22 – Community Service – Center Street Jam 
 8/8 – Community Service – Car Seat Checks – Deacon Jones Chevrolet 
 8/10 – Public Education – Staples Back to School Block Party – Engine 5 
 8/16 – Community Service – Dillard/Goldsboro Alumni Back to School Event – Engine 4 
 8/17 – Public Education – North End Park – Engine 3  
 8/18 – Community Service – Waynesboro House - Blood Pressure Checks – Tower 1 
 8/20 – Community Service – Brookdale Senior Living- Blood Pressure Checks – Engine 3 
 8/23 – Community Service – Herman Park Center – Sprinkler Day – Engine 1 
 8/26 – Community Service – Carver Heights Elementary – Clap In – Engine 4 
 

	
	

Working	Structure	Fires	
 8/5 – 1304 N Carolina St 
 8/13 – 306 S John St 

Working	Vehicle	Fires	
 8/13 – 294 S US 117 BYP	

 
 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, 
Haz-Mat Calls, Grass Fires and Unauthorized Burning. 



 

 
 

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
AUGUST, 2019 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West         MDW/KB 
Date Prepared:   September 16, 2019  
 
Total IBR offenses (homicide, rape, robbery, assault, burglary, motor vehicle theft, arson and fraud) for 
August 2019 were 270 compared to 245 for July 2019. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $172,928 was reported stolen while property with an estimated 
value of $114,978 was recovered. 
 
Officers arrested 193 people and 359 citations were issued during the month. There were 48 drug-
related charges.  
 
There were 0 report(s) of assault on an officer.  

 
Revenue collected for August 2019 included: 
 Police Reports   $ 308.00
 Fingerprints   $ 130.00
 Special Events    $ 200.00
    Total     $ 638.00   
      

IBR	COMPARISON	&	TREND	
2019	 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug.	 Sept Oct Nov Dec Total	 AVG	

OFFENSE             
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0         2 0.3 
Rape(&attempts) 1 0 0 2 1 0 2 1         7 0.9 
Robbery 6 4 5 4 5 1 3 5         33 4.1 
Aggravated Assault 7 8 10 5 15 14 9 10         78 9.8 
Simple Assault 30 30 36 24 29 35 33 49         266 33.3 
Breaking & Entering 33 31 24 35 35 22 34 25         239 29.9 
Larceny 157 92 104 135 99 138 134 138         997 124.6 
Motor Vehicle Theft 7 9 11 8 5 7 6 7         60 7.5 
Arson 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0         1 0.1 
Fraud 24 37 35 19 25 35 24 35       234 29.3 
TOTALS	 265 212 225 232 214 254 245 270 0 0 0 0 1917 239.6 

2018	 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug. Sept Oct Nov Dec Total	 AVG	

OFFENSE             
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 3 0.3 
Rape(&attempts) 2 1 0 2 1 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 10 0.8 
Robbery 1 10 7 5 4 6 6 5 2 2 3 8 59 4.9 
Aggravated Assault 6 12 11 13 15 13 17 9 17 12 7 11 143 11.9 
Simple Assault 34 29 55 34 32 32 24 46 43 25 24 41 419 34.9 
Breaking & Entering 40 27 23 31 37 41 36 27 30 31 35 39 397 33.1 
Larceny 129 115 126 134 132 121 127 110 107 96 108 142 1447 120.6 
Motor Vehicle Theft 7 4 7 7 7 5 6 11 6 12 13 8 93 7.8 
Arson 0 2 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 3 0 2 10 0.8 
Fraud 46 33 22 34 42 38 42 35 25 34 23 34 408 34.0 

TOTALS 265 233 251 260 270 257 261 244 234 216 213 285 2989 249.1 

 



 

 
 

1 

Parks & Recreation 
August 2019 
Prepared By: Joshua Shockley 
Date Prepared: 9/16/19 
 August 1st –     South Eastern Seniors Golf Association Tournament at Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 
 August 3rd –    “Ride the City” bike adventure with the Goldsboro Police Dept. & Outdoor World to promote   

        bike fun & safety. 
 August 6th –    “National Night Out” was hosted in Herman Park with the Goldsboro Police Dept. & Wayne  

                                   County Sheriff’s Dept. 
 August 22nd – Annual Sunrise Kiwanis Golf Tournament at Goldsboro Municipal Golf Course 

 

2019	–	FINANCIAL	REPORT	 JAN	 FEB	 MAR	 APR	 MAY	 JUN	 JUL	 AUG	

Herman	Park	Center	     
Program Revenue $1,805 $3045 $1,826 $2,928 $3,225 $7,242 $16,676 $8,574 

Rental Revenue  $860 $1,390 $2,455 $1,770 $2,270 $3,490 $2,765 $2,545 

Facility Usage 1,735 2,126 1,691 1,788 1,901 1,694 1,568 2,013 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $22,141 $8,837 

         

WA	Foster	Rec	Center	         

Program Revenue $200 $1,180 $160 $205 $300 $2,890 $4,695 $3,235 

Rental Revenue $350 $1,275 $350 $1,100 $4,600 $1,600 $1,200 $2,830 

Facility Usage 7899 7,848 8,320 7,525 9,663 8,624 7,452 5,007 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $32,727 $18,189 

         

Specialized	Recreation	         

Program Revenue --- $102 $94 --- --- --- ---- $230 

Rental Revenue --- --- --- --- --- --- --- --- 

Facility Usage 413 388 467 348 1,675 277 368 562 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $1,851 $2,436 

         

Senior	Programs	&	Pools	         

Program Revenue $242 $264 $277 $309 $2,396 $6,124 $7,939 $2,621 

Rental Revenue --- --- --- --- --- $550 $425 $375 

Facility Usage 1,532 1,723 1,674 3,097 2,517 4,920 5,825 3,161 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $20,542 $13,897 

         
Athletics,	Field	&	
Picnic	Shelters,	BMSC         

Program Revenue $5,206 $3,573 $8451 $2,229 $12,128 $11,459 $4,963 $6,487 

Field / Shelter Rental $ $1,600 $150 $610 $890 $1,250 $1,480 $1,300 $795 

Facility Usage 15,250 14,340 13,150 20,470 42,520 27,285 11,372 8,245 

Expenditures N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $13,842 $8,892 

         

Golf	Course	         

Revenues $43,326 $22,930 $28,167 $52,962 $55,502 $65,797 $68,373 $49,754 

Expenditures $33,159 $44,676 $47,976 $41,149 $41,387 $71,439 $43,750 $20,941 

Rounds of Golf 808 1,088 1,741 1,799 2,528 2,812 2,511 2,659 

         

Special	Events	         

Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1.450 $1,990 $0 

Participation 0 0 125 3,000 0 180 256 60 

Expenditures         

         

TOTAL	REVENUE	 $53,589 $33,909 $42,390 $62,393 $81,671 $102,082 $110,326 $77,446 



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
September, 2019 
Prepared By: Josie Jenkins and Amber Herring 
Date Prepared: 09/12/19 
 

 Inquiries were fulfilled for the month of August by the TTO—493 inquiries, 57 incoming phone 

calls, and 76 visitors to the office. 

 Total hotel revenue generated in July was $2,048,726, which is up 12.8% YOY. August revenue not 

yet released. 

 For the month, TTO Facebook page had 157 new page likes. Instagram page has 45 new followers. 

Twitter page gained 10 new followers. 	

 US Quidditch will generate and confirm 250 room nights and approximately 1,000 visitors to the 

area. The tournament is set for November 9-10, 2019 at the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex.  

 Josie Jenkins, the TTO Communications Manager, has finalized the media and marketing plan for 

the FY 2019-2020. The media plan is now rolling out, with a focus on Sports, Meetings, Events, 

Tours and ongoing overall Tourism.  

 Josie is planning a Fam Tour for media for October 18-19th for NC-based journalists, to stay in and 

experience Goldsboro in return for editorial content and promotion in their publications. 	

 The History Channel project planning is underway and TTO is coordinating efforts with partners 

such as Downtown Goldsboro, SJAFB Public Affairs, Busco Beach, and local BBQ establishments. 	

 Josie and Amber are working on the Fall Tour program. The tour program includes Ghost Tours, 

Base Tours, Brews and ‘Cues Tours, and BBQ Tours. WRAL is coming to Goldsboro on September 

19th and 20th to film for the show Out and About, in which Goldsboro is featured in a 5-minute slot. 

The focus of the slot is ‘Goldsboro in Fall’, which will feature Downtown Goldsboro food, drinks, 

and live music, followed by the Downtown Ghost Tour. WRAL has also captured the Base Tour 

which they will feature.	

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2019‐20	 $82,004 $88,424 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $	 $85,214	

2018‐19	 $76,448 $71,981 $72,429 $89,311 $85,534 $49,108 $104,633 $73,949 $59,855 $98,520 $86,921 $141,913 $1,010,602	 $84,217	

  


	Agenda 9-23-19
	Item A Minutes 07 15 19
	Item B-1 Claude Jackson Retirement
	Item B-2 Claude Jackson Retirement
	Item C Veterans Stand Down Day Proclamation
	Item D  Kappa Episilon Psi Proclamation
	Item E CU-8-19 Agenda Memo PH
	Item F CU-9-19 Agenda Memo PH
	Item G CU-10-19 Agenda Memo PH
	Item H CU-11-19 Agenda Memo PH
	Item I  Z-16-19 Magnolia Grove
	Item J  Z-17-19 KG Plaza 303 Lots
	Item K  Z-18-19 Magnolia Grove
	Item L 2017 GCC JAG Grant
	Agenda Memo 2017 GCC JAG Grant P3102 2019-09-23
	ORDINANCE P3102 2017 GCC JAG Grant 2019-09-23
	Gang Grant Documents

	Item M  Resol Sole Source Vendor Barrier Solutions
	Agenda Memo Sole Source Vendor Barrier
	RESOL Sole Source -Flood Stop Barrier

	Item N FY20 Water Rate Tech Correction (REVISED)
	Agenda Item Correction Water Rate Schedules FY19 FY20 2019-09-09 Corrected
	RESOL FY18-19 Water and Sewer Rates Amended 2019-09-09 Corrected
	ORDIN FY20 Operating Budget Amend 2019-09-09
	Pages from 2018-29 2018-06-29 Water Rates Fy19
	Pages from 2019-43 Fy19-20 Budget Ordinance

	Item O  PNC Equipment Golf Turf Equipment Lease
	Agenda Item 2019-09-23 PNC Golf Turf Equip Lease
	RESOLUTION Capital Lease PNC Equip Golf Turf Equip 2019-09-23
	ORDINANCE PNC Golf Course Equipment 2019-09-23
	City of Goldsboro End of Term Purchase-CSC Buyout Contract option 8-2-19
	City of Goldsboro 1188013-2

	Item P-1  Bid Award for Utility Rate Study
	Item P-2 Goldboro Rate Study proposal_20190913
	1. Past Performance
	Firm Background
	General Experience & Specializations
	Local Experience

	2. Scope of Work
	Task 1: Project Initiation & Data Collection
	Task 2: Development of Financial Management Plan
	Task 3: Conduct Cost Allocation Analysis
	Task 4: Rate Design and User Fees
	Task 5: System Development Charges
	Task 6: Reports & Presentations

	3. Cost Proposal
	4. Schedule
	5. Project Team

	Item Q  Approval of Compost Pricing 9-23-19
	Item R Deputy Chief Ordinance Amendment
	Item S-1 JAG 2019
	Item S-2  RESOLUTION JAG 2019
	Item T-1 Fall Fest at First Church SC Memo
	Item T-2 Fall Fest at First Church TSC Request
	Item U-1  Thriller Night Street Closing Memo
	Item U-2  Thriller Night SC Request
	Item V-1 Walk to De-feet Dementia TSC Memo
	Item V-2 Walk to De-feet Dementia TSC
	Item W-1 Christmas Parade TSC Memo
	Item W-2 Christmas Parade Street Closing
	Item X-1 Victorian Mourning TSC Memo
	Item X-2 Victorian Mourning Practices
	Item Y-1 Downtown Lights Up Memo
	Item Y-2 Downtown Lights Up
	Item Z-1 CM Resolution Memo
	Item Z-1 CM Resolution
	Item AA Monthly Departmental Reports
	Item AA-1 HR Monthly Report
	Item AA-2 CR Monthly Report
	Item AA-3 Paramount_GEC Monthly Report
	Item AA-4 Inspections Monthly Report
	Item AA-5 Downtown Monthly Report
	Item AA-6 IT Monthly Report
	Item AA-7 PW Monthly Report
	Item AA-8 PU Monthly Report
	Item AA-9 Finance Monthly Report
	Item AA-10 Planning Monthly Report
	Item AA-11 Engineering Monthly Report
	Item AA-12 Fire Monthly Report
	Item AA-13 Police Monthly Report
	Item AA-14 Recreation Monthly Report
	Item AA-15 Tourism Report



